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CAUTIONARY NOTICE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEME NTS:

This document and the documents incorporated leyae€e herein include “forward-looking statementgthin the meaning of Section
27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended {@eeurities Act”), and Section 21E of the Secusitiexchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Exchange Act”), including, in particular, tetatements about our plans, strategies and prisspeder the headings “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations” and “Business.” We havedglly used the words “may,” “will,”
“expect,” “believe,” “estimate,” “plan,” “intend” d similar expressions in this document and thexd@mts incorporated by reference herein
to identify forward-looking statements. We havedzhthese forward-looking statements on our cunis with respect to future events and
financial performance. Actual results could diffieaterially from those projected in the forward-loakstatements. These forward-looking
statements are subject to many risks, uncertaiatidsassumptions, including, among other things:

” o ” o«

« student enroliment;

« our continued compliance with Title IV of the HigHeducation Act of 1965, as amended (the “Higheudadion Act”), and the
regulations thereunder, as well as state regulagayirements and accrediting agency requirem

< changes in regulation of the U.S. education inguatid eligibility of proprietary schools to parpeite in U.S. federal student financial
aid programs

« risks related to the timing of regulatory approyals

« competitive factors;

e our ability to continue to implement our online gth strategy;

« risks associated with the opening of new campuses;

« risks associated with the offering of new educatigomograms and adapting to other program changes;
» risks associated with the acquisition of educafiamstitutions;

« risks associated with the ability of our studentfinance their education in a timely manner; and

« general economic and market conditions.

You should not put undue reliance on any forwamkiog statements. You should understand that mappitant factors, including those
discussed under the headings “Management’s Dismussid Analysis of Financial Condition and Resaft©perations” and “Business,”
could cause our results to differ materially frdmge expressed or suggested in any forward-loagkatgments. Further information about
these and other relevant risks and uncertaintigsbadound in Item 1A (“Risk Factors”) below and@lvhere in this Annual Report on Form
10-K and in our other filings with the SecuritigalaExchange Commission. We undertake no obligatiarpdate or revise forward-looking
statements, except as required by law.

”ou

References to “we,” “our” and the “Company” referStrayer Education, Inc., together in each ca#le ouir consolidated subsidiary
unless the context suggests otherwise.

Iltem 1. Business

Overview



Our company provides post-secondary education@=svOur mission is to make higher education aelikevfor working adults. We
work to fulfill this mission by offering a varietyf academic programs through our wholly-owned dlibsy, Strayer University (the
“University”). Strayer University prides itself anaking post-secondary education relevant, accessiht affordable to working adults who
were previously unable to take advantage of higheication opportunities.

Founded in 1892, Strayer University is an institatof higher learning that offers undergraduate gnadiuate degree programs in business
administration, accounting, information technologgiucation, health services administration, puddiministration, and criminal justice at
approximately 80 physical campuses, predominantgted in the Mid-Atlantic and Southern regionshef United States, and online. Strayer
University also offers an executive MBA online thgh its Jack Welch Management Institute. For the4Zall term, we had approximately
42,000 students enrolled in our programs. Straygvédsity is accredited by the Middle States Consinis on Higher Education (“Middle
States” or “Middle States Commission”), one of siiteregional collegiate accrediting agencies recoghby the U.S. Department of
Education (“Department of Education”). Middle Staie located at 3624 Market Street, Philadelphfa18104 (267-284-5000). By offering
its programs both online and in physical classrqdhes University provides its working adult studentore flexibility and convenience.
Strayer University, with its online offerings, aitts students from around the country and througiheuwvorld.

We generated net revenue of $446 million in 20b4.rRore information regarding our revenues, prafitd financial condition, please
refer to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis iofRcial Condition and Results of Operations” and apnsolidated financial statements
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Industry Background

The market for post-secondary education is largehéghly fragmented. The U.S. Census Bureau hasteghthat approximately 62
million adults over the age of 25 in the Unitedt&sado not have more than a high school educatidrapproximately 35 million adults over
the age of 25 have some college experience bubifege degree. Although demand for post-seconddngation has been reduced during the
past few years, we believe that over time the deiwéh increase as a result of demographic, econand social trends, including:

« increasing demand by employers for certain typgzafessional and skilled workers;

« growth in the number of high school graduates f&b&million in 1999-2000 to an estimated 3.3 millim 2014-2015, according to
the National Center for Education Statisti

« the significant and measurable income premium ahéieced employment prospects attributable to pa=irglary education; and

< anumber of initiatives underway to reduce the obst post-secondary education.

The adult education market is a significant compomné the post-secondary education market. We belibat the market for post-
secondary adult education should increase as wgpddinlts seek additional education to update amddwe their skills. In addition, we
believe that many working adults will seek degremgpams from regionally accredited institutionsttheovide flexibility to accommodate the
fixed schedules and time commitments associatddtivir professional, family and personal obligasio

According to the National Center for Education Stats, in 2012-2013 there were 3,026 four-yeardegranting institutions in the
United States, including 689 public colleges anwensities, 1,555 not-for-profit colleges and unsities, and 782 for-profit institutions.
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Growth in the market for post-secondary educatias fecently been negatively affected by weaknesieconomy as well as by the
uncertainty associated with legislative and reguiaproposals. Controversy about the cost of higitkeication and the unemployment, or
under-employment, of college graduates due to iffieudt economic conditions may also have causemhs prospective students to question
the value proposition of higher education. Accogdio the National Student Clearinghouse ResearcdteGeollege enroliments declined
1.5% and 1.3% in fall 2013 and 2014, respectivEhe industry is heavily dependent on continuedlakdity of funding for programs under
Title IV of the Higher Education Act (“Title IV pigrams”)and concerns about potential reductions in suctifignalso can reduce the leve
growth.

Company Strengths

We have a 123-year operating history and a traofirceof providing practical and convenient edugatoograms for working adults. We
believe the following strengths position us to talpie on the demand for post-secondary educatioong working adults:

» Consistent operating histonWe have been in continuous operation since 189%hawd demonstrated an ability to operate
consistently and grow profitabl



Practical and diversified curriculaWe offer core curricula in practical areas of a@ddtication. In order to keep pace with a changing
knowledge-based economy, we constantly strive tetrie evolving needs of our working adult studemd their employers by
regularly refining and updating our existing edimmadl programs. In December 2011, we acquired dlok Welch Management
Institute, an online leadership education prograat €énables us to offer a differentiated execUMBA degree and executive
certificates to students and employees of leadamgarations. In addition, we are able to offer peags that are successful in a given
region at other locations in our campus networkay@r University currently offers approximately @iferent degree, diploma and
certificate programs, including emphases and cdratons, to its student

Focus on working adults pursuing degree progranWe focus on serving working adults who are pursuindergraduate and
graduate degrees in order to advance their caa@eremployment opportunities. We believe this isitiractive market within the
post-secondary education sector due to the nunilveoring adults without an undergraduate degrekethe highly motivated nature
of adult students. We consider adult students tousgorimary customers, with the various busineggbgovernment organizations that
provide tuition assistance to their employees aseoondary customers. In addition, we believe tthastructure of our curriculum,
featuring associate, bachelor’'s and graduate-egtee programs, encourages students to contieireettucation and results in
extended periods of student enrollment. Approxifye@8% of our students were enrolled in degree g for the 2014 fall tern

Flexible program offerings We maintain flexible quarterly programs that allerking adult students to attend classes and cdmple
coursework on a convenient evening and weekendls@héhroughout the calendar year. Our online @ogr enable students to
pursue a degree partially or entirely via the Imé¢rthereby increasing the convenience, accesgibild flexibility of our educational
programs. Approximately 65% of our students endbite the 2014 fall term were taking all of theourses online

Attractive and convenient campus locatiorOur campuses are located in growing metropolitaasgrmostly in the Mid-Atlantic and
Southern regions where there are large populatbm®rking adults with demographic characterississilar to those of our typical
students. Strayer Univers's campuses are attractive and modern, offeringwowe learning environments in convenient locatic

Established brand name and alumni suppoWith a 123-year operating history, Strayer Univgris an established brand name in
post-secondary adult education, and our studetgduates work throughout corporate America. &wmni network fosters
additional referral opportunities for studer

Company Strategy

Our goal is to be a leading provider of post-seeop@ducation programs, primarily in the areasusfibess, accounting and information
technology, that prepare working adults for advameet in their careers and professional lives. W hdentified the following strategic
priorities as key to achieving our goal:

Improve student succe— Our success as a Company depends on the suéargsstudents. The more we focus on helping our
students succeed, the more likely it is that wé sui€ceed. In order to improve student successnust continue to hire outstanding
faculty, individuals who are experts in their figldnd who are great at teaching working adultsmwist also offer high quality course
content that is relevant in toc’s job market

Enhance student experienc— Our students are working adults who are pursdewyees for advancement in their careers and
professional lives. Since they are working, theyshpursue their education at night and on weekdd®n the lack of free time that
our students have, we must make sure every intenagith our students is a productive one. We amstantly looking for ways to
serve them better. This includes providing outsitagdervice not only in the classroom but alsorgma such as student advising,
tutoring, registration, technology, and administnat We measure our performance through studemegarand focus group

Address affordability— The cost of a post-secondary degree has increagestantially over the last ten years while averegrnings
have failed to keep up. Recognizing that affordghis an important factor in a prospective stutedecision to pursue a college
degree, we reduced our undergraduate tuition farstadents by 20% beginning in our 2014 winter acaid term. Also, in mid2013,
we introduced our Graduation Fund. Under this mogrqualifying students enrolled in a bachelor'grde program are eligible to
receive one free course for every three coursestekvards a bachelor's degree. The free coursasceare redeemable in osdinal
academic year. We will monitor these initiatives dmok for other ways to make our offerings as @fétle as possible for the work
adult student

Establish new platforms for growt— We are constantly exploring new avenues for ghoWiur acquisition of the Jack Welch
Management Institute in 2011 and its subsequem@aship with Skillsoft are good examples of th@apunities that exist. With our
physical campus infrastructure and robust onlim¢fpim, we have the capability to offer new progsaand products that focus on
areas with high potential. We recently announced! $trayer University will be offering a new progrdor registered nurses to earn a
Bachelor of Science in Nursing degree beginnintpéfall 2015 academic ter

Build a high performing culture— In order to be a leading university, we must halertted and motivated faculty and employees,
ones who are passionate about serving the worklaly student. We strive to attract the best taéett then develop and retain them.



We want to be known as an employer of choice ana flace where one can build a I-term career
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Strayer University

Curriculum

Strayer University offers business, informationhtealogy and professional curricula to equip stuslevith specialized and practical
knowledge and skills for careers in business, itrghund government. Our Academic College DeansRrodram Curriculum Committees
regularly review and revise the University’s couo$ierings to improve the educational programs i@sgond to competitive changes in job
markets. We regularly evaluate new programs andegsgo ensure that we stay current with the needar students and their employers.

Strayer University offers programs in the followiaggas:

Graduate Programs Undergraduate Programs
» Master of Business Administration (M.B.A.) » Bachelor of Science (B.S.) Degree
Degree Accounting
« Jack Welch Executive Master of Business Information Systems
Administration (M.B.A.) Degree Information Technology
» Master of Education (M.Ed.) Degree Economics
» Master of Science in Health Services Administrati Criminal Justice
(M.S.H.S.A)) Degree » Bachelor of Business Administration (B.B.A.)
» Master of Public Administration (M.P.A.) Degree Degree
» Master of Science (M.S.) Degree * Associate in Arts (A.A.) Degree
Information Assurance Accounting
Information Systems Acquisitions and Contract Management
Accounting Business Administration
Human Resource Management Information Systems
Management Information Technology
Economics
Marketing

* Diploma Program
Acquisition and Contract Management
* Certificate in Business Administratic

Each undergraduate degree program includes comrseal and written communication skills as wellraathematics and various
disciplines in the humanities and social scienkreaddition to our degree, diploma and certifiqategrams, we offer classes to non-degree
and non-program students wishing to take coursegeisonal or professional enrichment.

Although all of our programs are generally offeeg@dach campus, the University adapts its courfeginds to the demands of the student
population at each location. Strayer Universitydstuts may enroll in courses at more than one campdisake courses online.

Strayer University structures its curricula to allstudents to advance sequentially from one legrlavel to another by applying credits
earned in one program toward attainment of a mdvareced degree. For example, a student originallgying an associate’s degree in
information systems can extend his or her origéthlcational objective by taking additional courgagling to a bachelor’s degree in
information systems, and ultimately a master’s degn information systems. This curriculum desigovjzles students a level of competency
and a measure of attainment in the event theyrirgetheir education or choose to work in theifdfief concentration prior to obtaining their
final degree.

Online

In August 1997, the University began offering ckssenline. Students may take classes online ugingy @ synchronous (“real time”) or
asynchronous (“on demand”) format. The asynchrofiousat was first introduced by the University etsummer 2001 academic term and

has grown significantly due to increasing demangtréhtly, almost all students taking classes ontim@ose the asynchronous format.
Students may




take all of their courses online or may take ontinarses in combination with classrodrased courses. A student taking classes onlinthk
same admission and financial aid requirementsjbgest to the same policies and procedures andviescthe same student services and
support as campus-based Strayer University stud€uitson for online courses is the same as cancpusses.

Faculty

The University appoints faculty who hold appropiatademic credentials, are dedicated, active gsiofieals in their field and are
enthusiastic and committed to teaching working @dih accordance with our educational missionUh&ersity faculty focuses its efforts
teaching. The normal course load for a full-timeulty member is four courses per quarter for eddhree quarters, or 12 courses per
academic year. In addition, the University requitdstime faculty members to provide eight houes pveek of service hours which may be
dedicated to developing curriculum, mentoring naeufty, and tutoring and other student supportisesv Further, many full-time faculty
members participate actively in the University g\pding leadership curriculum, setting academitiqgyoand serving on assessment
committees.

We provide financial support for faculty membersigag to enhance their skills and knowledge. Théskhsity maintains a professional
development funding program that reimburses ekgiatulty and deans for completing courses, comgaducation, seminars and various
programs that enhance their current credentialkaodledge base to improve their content experksé-time faculty (and all other full tim
employees) receive a 90% discount for all Straymivélsity courses. The University also conductsuahim-house faculty workshops in each
discipline. We believe that our dedicated and ckpfatulty is one of the keys to our success.

Organization of Strayer University

Overall academic and business decisions of theddsity, including review and approval of the anrfirsdncial budget, are directed by
Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees consfdiy.cCharlotte F. Beason, Chairwoman, and curyesitiht other members. The Univers
By-Laws prescribe that a majority of members bepehdent from the University and Strayer Education, to assure independent oversight
of all academic programs and services. Of the miambers, five are independent from the Univergity Strayer Education, Inc. The current
Trustees are listed below:

Board of Trustees

Dr. Charlotte F. Beason Dr. Beason is the Chairwoman of the Board of Trest&he has served as a member of the Board o
Trustees since 1996. She has extensive experiergghication, distance learning, and the
accreditation of education programs. (See Iltemel6vb for additional biographical informatior

Mr. Mark C. Brown Mr. Brown was elected to the Board of Trusteesehriary 2015. Mr. Brown joined Strayer
Education, Inc. in 2001 and has been serving asuxe Vice President & Chief Financial Officer.
He is retiring from this position effective March2015. (See Item 10 below for additional
biographical information.

Mr. Roland Carey* Mr. Carey has served as a member of the Boardust@es since 1990 and is Chair of its Noming
Committee. He served for 23 years as a U.S. Arnfic€fin the specialties of Air Defense Missile
Evaluation and Military Education. He retired in8B9as a Lieutenant Colonel. Mr. Carey served 12
years as a mathematics instructor and as an Im#oweProgram Coordinator with Fairfax Coul
Public Schools. Additionally, he has served on oifter organizational management and supervi
boards. Mr. Carey holds a bachelor’s degree in emadtics from Florida A&M University and a
maste’s degree in educational leadership from George Masuversity.
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Dr. Jonathan Gueverra* Dr. Gueverra was elected to the Board of Truste@912. He now serves as the President and Chie
Executive Officer of Florida Keys Community Colled®ior to this appointment, he was the
founding Chief Executive Officer of the Communitpl@ge of the District of Columbia, the first
community college in Washington, D.C. With overy&ars of higher education experience, Dr.
Gueverra has served in a variety of administradive faculty positions in two-year and four-year
colleges and universities along the natsoeast coast. He recently served as a member bbtrd o
the American Association for Community Colleges anethaired the Commission on Workforce
Development. In addition, Dr. Gueverra led a taskd on distance education for the Council of
Presidents for the Florida College System. Dr. @uaevholds an associate degree from Newbury
College, a bachelor's degree from Providence Cellegd a master’'s degree in business
administration and a doctorate in education baimfthe University of Massachuse!



Mr. Todd A. Milano Mr. Milano has served as a member of the Boardro$tEes since 1992 and has more than 30 years
of experience in post-secondary education. HeasiBent Emeritus and Ambassador for Central
Penn College, where he has devoted his entire gsiofieal career, having served as President and
Chief Executive Officer from 1989 to 2012. (Seenit&0 below for additional biographical
information.)

Dr. Michael Plater Dr. Michael Plater was elected to the Board of T@es in 2012 as an ex officio member. He has
served as Strayer University President since 2DL1Plater joined Strayer in 2010 as the Provost
and Chief Academic Officer. Prior to joining StrayBr. Plater had a distinguished career with
various other academic institutions. (See ltem dl@w for additional biographical informatior

Dr. William C. Reha, MD* Dr. Reha has served as a member of the Board stdgs since 2007 and is Chair of its Alumni and
Student Affairs Committee. He is a Board Certifidablogic Surgeon in Woodbridge, Virginia. He
also serves as Speaker of the House for the MeSazkty of Virginia and President of the Virginia
Urological Society. Dr. Reha is active in Strayemiversity alumni affairs and is the 2005
Outstanding Alumni Award winner. Dr. Reha has sdras president of the Prince William County
Medical Society and the Potomac Hospital Medicaffsand is a Fellow of the Claude Moore
Physician Leadership Institute. He holds a bachettggree in biochemistry from Binghamton
University, an M.D. from New York Medical Collegand a mastes’in business administration frc
Strayer University. He completed his residencyung®ry/Urology at Georgetown Universii

Dr. Peter D. Salins* Dr. Salins has served as a member of the Boardusft@es since 2002 and is Chair of its Curriculum
and Assessment Committee. Having served as Pramds¥ice Chancellor for Academic Affairs of
the State University of New York (SUNY) system frd®97 to 2006, he is currently University
Professor of Political Science at SUNY’s Stony Beddniversity and Director of its graduate
program in public policy. Dr. Salins is a Fellowtbhe American Institute of Certified Planners and a
Director of the Citizens Housing and Planning CaousicNew York. Dr. Salins holds a bachelor’'s
degree in architecture, a master’'s degree in refjiganning and a doctorate in metropolitan studies
and regional planning, all from Syracuse Univers
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Dr. J. Chris Toe* Dr. Toe has served as a member of the Board ot8easince 2003. He served as President of
Strayer University from 2003 to April 2006 and asidter of Agriculture of the Republic of Liberia
from 2006 to 2009. Dr. Toe now serves as Exec@ivairman of Agrifore Advisory & Investment
Services (AAIS), Incorporated in Liberia and Comsnt for the World Food Programme, Food and
Agriculture Organization, African Development Baankd the World Bank, among others. Dr. Toe
holds a bachelor’'s degree in economics from thevétsity of Liberia, and a master’s degree in
agricultural economics and a doctorate in econgnbicth from Texas Tech Universii

* Independent member.

Within the academic, strategic and financial par@nseset by the Board of Trustees, the Universitpanaged on a daily basis by the
University President. The President is charged tighresponsibility of overseeing the implementatid the policies established by the Ba
of Trustees and is supported in this function hyigeadministrative officers, including the ColleBeans, one each for the College of
Business, the College of Arts & Sciences, and #toék Welch Management Institute. The majority of theversity’s operations are
centralized within the President’s Office or theildmsity’s senior administrative staff offices, sugs faculty development, curriculum
development, institutional research and assessititenary administration, student records, studdfaiis, accounting and auditing, human
resources, operations, marketing, public relatitarslities, information technology, and regulat@ympliance, including oversight of the
University’s participation in federal student firgdal aid programs.

Within this centralized structure, responsibilitféisnto two broad categories: academic functiang operational functions. The senior
administrative officers that support the Presidemterforming academic functions include three 8eNiice Provosts who are also Deans of
the University’s three academic units (the Colle§Business, the College of Arts & Sciences, amdJifick Welch Management Institute) and
a Senior Vice Provost of Campus Academics and &tuliifairs. Together, these individuals are resigiesor faculty hiring and
management; curriculum development; policy ovetsighd student learning outcomes. Each academatiumreceives further support from
the University Registrar, the University Librariand the Dean of Institutional Research, AssessamhEvaluation.

Operational functions are the primary responsibiitthree Senior Vice Presidents whelead the three academic units with the Se



Vice Provosts/College Deans. These Senior ViceitRrets manage course offering schedules and facaliyse assignments; new
program feasibility assessments; and oversighiefdarning management platform. Other senior adtnittive officers also support the
President in areas such as legal compliance, atinoguand auditing, computer technology, insuranue lsjuman resources. All of the senior
administrative officers collaborate to ensure thaiversity operations meet the annual budget estadad by the Board of Trustees and all
applicable regulatory requirements.

University Senior Management

Dr. Michael A. Plater is University President. Bisgraphical information is set forth in Item 10de. At the regional and campus leve
the academic functions are overseen by the Assobiean of Campus Academics and the Campus DeartdBday business operations are
managed by a Campus Director. Campuses are staittegpersonnel performing instructional, acadendeising, financial aid, student
services, admissions and career development fursctd learning resource center at each campus sispgpe University's instructional
programs. Each learning resource center contdibsaay and computer laboratories and is operated full-time manager and support staff
who assist students in the use of research resource

Strayer Education, Inc. Executive Officers
For a description of Strayer Education, Inc.’s semianagement, see the biographical informatiorios#t in Item 10 below.
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Outreach

To identify potential students, we engage in a in@age of activities to inform working adults ahéir employers about the programs
offered at Strayer University. These activitiediie direct and digital marketing, marketing to euisting students and graduates, print and
broadcast advertising, student referrals, and catp@nd government outreach activities. Direqi@ase methods (direct and digital
marketing) are used to generate inquiries frommg@kestudents. Strayer University maintains boahd information tables at appropriate
conferences and expos, as well as at transferatay@mmunity colleges. We also depend on the recamdiation of our alumni network to
maintain and enhance Strayer University’s reputatiod promote its quality education. Our businesistisiness outreach efforts include
personal telephone calls, distribution of inforroatthrough corporate intranets and human resowgpartinents, and on-site information
meetings. We record inquiries in our database mwdk them through to application and registratiddditionally, we provide information
about new programs to students and alumni to eageuhem to return for further education.

Student Profile

The majority of Strayer University students are kitag adults completing their first college degreémprove their job skills and advance
their careers. Of the students enrolled in Stréjréversity’s programs at the beginning of the 2@dliquarter, approximately 66% were age
31 or older and approximately 84% were engageaitrtpme study (fewer than three courses each guint undergraduate students and
fewer than two for graduate students). In the 2@dl4yuarter, our undergraduate students registinedn average of approximately two
courses and our graduate students for an averaagpodximately one course.

Strayer University has a very diverse student patpart. At the beginning of the 2014 fall quartgpeoximately 76% of students report
ethnicity were minorities and approximately 65%stfdents were women. Approximately 1% of the Urditgis students were international,
and approximately 1% were active duty military parsel. Strayer University prides itself on makirgspsecondary education accessible to
working adults who were previously unable to taéleamtage of educational opportunities.

The following is a breakdown of our students bygwean level as of the 2014 fall term:

Number of Percentage o
Program students total students
Bachelo’'s 23,78¢ 57%
Maste’s 14,06: 33%
Associat’s 3,92 9%
Total Degree 41,77 9%
Diploma 14 *
Undergraduate Certifica 33 *
Graduate Certificat 89 *
Undeclarec 281 *
Total Nor-Degree 417 1%

Total Student: 42,18¢ 10C%




* Represents less than 1%.

Our business is seasonal and as a result, oureglyartsults of operations tend to vary within yfear due to student enroliment patterns.
Enrollment generally is lowest in the third quartarsummer term.

Student Admissions

Students attending Strayer University’s undergréglpeograms must possess a high school diplomaGan&ral Educational
Development (GED) Certificate. Students attenditrgy®r University’s graduate programs must havachblor’'s degree from an accredited
institution and meet certain other requirementa. dfudent’s undergraduate major varies widely ftioenstudent’s proposed graduate course
of study, certain undergraduate prerequisite caursay also be necessary for admission. To maxiorigergraduate students’
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chances for academic success and to ensure thayadhe support they need, Strayer University waals incoming students’ proficiency in
fundamental English and math prior to the firstrigids registration.

International students applying for admission nmeset the same admission requirements as othemgsuddose students whose native
language is not English must provide evidencettiey are able to use the English language withicsefit facility to perform college-level
work in an English-speaking institution.

Tuition and Fees

Strayer University charges tuition by the coursdti®n rates may vary in states with specific regioins governing tuition costs. Each
course is 4.5 credit hours. As of January 1, 20h8grgraduate students who were new to the Untyeafter January 1, 2014 are charged
$1,420 per course. Undergraduate students whallpignrolled at Strayer prior to January 1, 20felcharged $1,700 per course if the
student attends on a full-time basis or $1,775cperse if the student attends on a part-time b&s&sduate students who are new to the
University as of January 1, 2015 are charged ateaaf $2,450 per course while all other gradutatéents are charged at a rate of $2,325 per
course. For the Jack Welch Management Institutelestts who were new as of July 1, 2014 are chaagadate of $3,250 per course; new as
of July 1, 2013 at a rate of $3,000 per course;ravd prior to July 1, 2013 at a rate of $2,580qmmse. Under a variety of different progr:
and in connection with various corporate and gowvemt sponsorship and tuition reimbursement arraegémStrayer University offers
scholarships and tuition discounts to students. @rleese programs, the Graduation Fund, offets@desit in a bachelor’'s program an
opportunity to earn up to a 25% reduction of thedn required for a degree. A new undergraduaidesit seeking to obtain a bachelor’s
degree in four years and who was eligible for otadbation Fund would currently pay on average apprately $11,000 per year in tuition.

Career Development Services

Although most of Strayer University’s students already employed, the University actively assistsiudents and alumni with career-
related matters. The focus for Career Servicesray& University is to provide career guidance eggburces to assist students and alumni in
reaching their educational and professional g&@sdsvices are delivered through various media inotpdnline, in person, recorded video,
books, periodicals, and by telephone. The senpeegided include career webinars, recorded semicarser teleconferences, career advi
and resume review.

We regularly conduct alumni surveys to monitor ¢heser progression of our graduates and to supptzbme assessment efforts requ
by Middle States and state regulators.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014, we had a total of 1,4858ifue employees including 318 full-time facultyembers and 1,137 ndaeulty staff
Full-time faculty members teach on average 4-5s@aiper quarter. The remainder of the classesaght by adjunct faculty who normally
teach 1-2 courses per quarter. Although we hadoxppately 1,700 adjunct faculty, not all of thenat¢t every quarter. In the 2014 fall
quarter, approximately 30% of our courses weretiaby full-time faculty. Because we are not a reseainiversity, all faculty members are
expected to spend their time teaching and advisindents. In addition to our faculty, we employ3¥, hon-faculty staff plus 79 part-time
employees in the areas of information systemsnfiig aid, recruitment and admissions, student agnation, marketing and human
resources, corporate accounting and other admatiigrfunctions



Intellectual Property

In the ordinary course of business, we develop nkamys of intellectual property that are or will e subject of copyright, trademark,
service mark, patent, trade secret or other pliotext Such intellectual property includes, butas limited to, our courseware materials for
classes taught online or other distance-learningnmand business know-how and internal processepranedures developed to respond to
the requirements of our operations and variousahcregulatory agencies. We also claim rightseidain
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marks, and have obtained federal registration @htlarks, including the mark “STRAYER” for educat@bservices.
Competition

The higher education industry is highly competitigat with no single participant possessing a $icgnit market share. We compete for
students with traditional public and private twayand four-year degree-granting accredited collegel universities, other proprietary
degree-granting accredited schools and also atteesato higher education. In addition, we face petition from various nontraditional,
credit-bearing and noncredit-bearing education nog, provided by both proprietary and not-for-finpfoviders, including massive open
online courses offered worldwide without chargetaglitional educational institutions and other diren-consumer education services. As the
proportion of traditional colleges providing altative learning modalities increases, we will faceréasing competition for students from
traditional colleges, including colleges with weltablished reputations for excellence. As thenerdind distance learning segment of the
post-secondary education market matures, we belietehe intensity of the competition we face wdhtinue to increase.

We believe the key factors affecting our competifposition include the quality of the programs wdte the quality of other services
provided to students, our reputation among studemdsin the general marketplace, the cost and pect@alue of our offerings, the
employment rate and terms of employment for oudgages, the ease of access to our offerings, thigyjand reputation of our faculty and
other employees, the quality of our campus faesitind online platform, the time commitment reglitcecomplete our program and obtain a
degree, the quality and size of our alumni, andrelationship with other learning institutions.

Regulation
Regulatory Environment

As an institution of higher education accreditedigdle States and operating in multiple jurisdicis, Strayer University is subject to
accreditation rules and varying state licensing r@glatory requirements. In addition, the fedétigher Education Act and the regulations
promulgated thereunder require all higher educatistitutions that participate in the various Tif\éprograms, including Strayer University,
both to comply with detailed substantive and rapgrtequirements and to undergo periodic regulasorutiny. The Higher Education Act
mandates specific regulatory responsibility forreatthe following components of the higher edumatiegulatory triad: (1) the institutional
accrediting agencies recognized by the U.S. Segrefe&Education (“Secretary of Education”); (2)tst@ducation regulatory bodies; and (3)
the federal government through the Department ofcBtion. The regulations, standards and policidbede regulatory agencies are subje
frequent change.

Accreditation

Strayer University has been institutionally accredlisince 1981 by Middle States, a regional actngdagency recognized by the
Secretary of Education. Strayer University’s cutigeriod of accreditation by Middle States extetimeugh 2017. Accreditation is a system
for recognizing educational institutions and th@ingrams for integrity, educational quality, fagulbhysical resources, administrative
capability and financial stability that signifidsat they merit the confidence of the educationatmuoinity and the public. In the United States,
this recognition comes primarily through privatdurgary associations of institutions and prograrfikigher education. These associations
establish criteria for accreditation, conduct pestiew evaluations of institutions and programgj pablicly designate those institutions that
meet their standards. Accredited schools are sutgjgeeriodic review by accrediting bodies to detiere whether such schools maintain the
performance, integrity and quality required for raclitation.

Middle States accredits degree-granting public@indhte colleges and universities in its regiorciiinling Delaware, Washington, D.C.,
Maryland, New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania, RuBRito and the U.S. Virgin Islands), including diste education programs offered by
those institutions. Accreditation by
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Middle States is an important attribute of Stralyeiversity. Colleges and universities depend onetitation in evaluating transfers of credit
and applications to graduate schools. Employeysaelthe accreditation status of institutions whgaluating a candidate’s credentials or
considering tuition reimbursement programs. Stusleglyy on accreditation status for assurance thatstitution maintains quality educatio
standards.

In order for institutions to be eligible to parpeite in federal student financial assistance prograhey must be accredited by an
institutional accreditor recognized by the Deparitref Education. The Higher Education Act chardesNational Advisory Committee on
Institutional Quality and Integrity (“NACIQI") withrecommending to the Secretary of Education whedheaiting or state approval agencies
should be recognized as reliable authorities fdgjng the quality of post-secondary institutionsl @nograms. In December 2012, NACIQI
renewed its recognition of Middle States, and rexfuMiddle States to submit a follow-up staff repor

As with all its regulatory relationships, Strayemitersity strives to maintain close contact withdado provide frequent status updates to,
Middle States regarding matters pertinent to adétingdstandards and policies. This regular conkaetps Middle States informed of the
University’s planned activities and aims to enghi the University’s performance continues to nidieldle States’ expectations. To thkead
Strayer University is committed to evaluating pdibally its own performance, submitting reportsvmdle States and making any necessary
improvements to continue meeting Middle Statestedtitation standards as the University grows anmheds geographically. If an
institution’s performance were ever not to meeadsrediting agency’s (or other regulator’'s) exptohs or applicable standards, then its
operations could be conditioned, severely constchor even curtailed, depending on the severith®@hon-compliance.

Accordingly, Strayer University endeavors proadiive keep Middle States (and all of its other ragors) fully informed and satisfied
with its performance and strives to maintain goeglutatory relationships as a key University priorBeginning in 2013, Middle States
undertook a review of its accreditation standards @ June 2014, approved revised accreditatimdsirds. Both accreditation standards
remain in effect, and Middle States will begin measy some institutions against the revised staftwlatarting with the 2016-2017
institutional evaluations, but institutions scheatufor evaluations during that time frame were githee opportunity to proceed under either
set of standards. Strayer’s next evaluation, whithcommence with a self-study scheduled to begiapring 2015, will proceed under the
accreditation standards in place prior to the femis

In 2006, Strayer University completed a comprehenself-study report, which was submitted to Mid8tates in support of Strayer
University’s request for early reaffirmation of aeditation prior to Middle States’ next scheduledraditation review in 2011. Our objective
is to provide a high quality post-secondary edecato working adult students, and participatiom@ademic peer review processes is an
important way to help us meet that objective. M@d8tates reviewed Strayer University’s report amdune 28, 2007, reaffirmed Strayer
University’s accreditation for 10 years through 20h accordance with Middle States’ accreditastandards, every accredited institution
must file a periodic review report at the mid-pdietween its decennial evaluations. Strayer Unityefited its periodic review report on May
15, 2012, demonstrating that the institution camimto meet Middle States’ standards. At its regukeeting on November 15, 2012, Middle
States accepted the Periodic Review Report antirreall Strayer University’s accreditation. Straysiversity subsequently filed a progress
report in November 2013, and the next evaluatisit is scheduled for 2016-2017. All of Strayer Uatisity’s substantive changes require
prior Middle States approval. In connection withr olosing of approximately 20 physical location2bil3, we received Middle States’
approval and submitted a follow-up report on thesates on April 1, 2014.

In 2000, the agencies that accredit higher edutatistitutions in various regions of the Unitedt8saadopted a Policy Statement on
Evaluation of Institutions Operating InterregiogalUnder that policy, both the home regional acitoeédnd the host regional accreditor
cooperate to evaluate an institution that delieehgcation at a physical site in the host accreditegion. Although the home region is solely
responsible for final accreditation actions, asopen campuses in regions outside Middle Stategdmethe host regional accreditors may
elect to participate in the accreditation procdssuch expansion operations.

In addition to our institutional accreditation, Wave obtained specialized or programmatic acctaatitaor professional recognition, from
the following organizations for specific prograrii$te Accreditation Council
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for Business Schools and Programs, The Societidfimnan Resource Management, The National Securignégjs Committee on National
Security Systems, and the Teacher Education Adettézth Council.

State Education Licensure
Licensure of Physical Campuses

Strayer University is required by the federal Higkducation Act and certain state laws to be lggalithorized to provide educational
programs in the states in which the Universityhiggically located. We are authorized to offer orogsams by the applicable educational
regulatory agencies in all states where our physex@puses and online delivery facilities are ledatWe are dependent upon



authorization of each state where we are physitadigted to allow us to operate and to grant deg@iplomas or certificates to students
in those states. We are subject to extensive riégnla each jurisdiction in which our campuses lagated, including in 2014: Alabama,
Arkansas, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Louisianaryiéad, Mississippi, New Jersey, North Carolinani®ylvania, South Carolina,
Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, West Virginia, Wiscoraid Washington, D.C. We will be subject to simdatensive regulation in those
additional states in which we may expand our ojanatin the future. State laws and regulationscaféeir operations and may limit our abi
to introduce educational programs or establish campuses. At the end of 2013, we implemented euating intended to better align our
resources with our current student enroliments,cmsed approximately 20 physical locations in eghtes. In addition, in 2014 we closed
our Wisconsin physical location, and in March ol 2@ve will close our Metairie, Louisiana location.

On October 29, 2010, the Department of Educatiapted new regulations, effective July 1, 2011, Hetnew requirements for state
authorization for purposes of Title IV eligibilitEvery state above in which Strayer is authorizasl frocesses in place that comply with tt
new requirements.

Licensure of Online Programs

The increasing popularity and use of the Intermetather technology for the delivery of educatias ked, and may continue to lead, to
the adoption of new laws and regulatory practicethé United States or foreign countries or torpretation of existing laws and regulations
to apply to such services. These new laws andpretations may relate to issues such as the reneirethat online education institutions be
licensed as a school in one or more jurisdictiorenaevhere they have no physical location. New laegulations, or interpretations related to
doing business over the Internet could increasgy8trUniversity’s cost of doing business, affegtability to increase enrolliments and
revenues, or otherwise have a material adverseteffeour business.

On October 29, 2010, the Department of Educatiapted new regulations, which were to be effectivg 1, 2011, regarding state
authorization of online programs. The revised rslescified that an institution offering distancespsecondary education must meet any state
requirements for it to be legally offering pagteondary distance or correspondence educatitrairstate. On May 6, 2011, the Departmer
Education issued a Dear Colleague Letter intenpgetiis new regulation, stating that it “will naiitiate any action to establish repayment
liabilities or limit student eligibility for distace education activities undertaken by an institubefore July 1, 2014, so long as the institution
is making good faith efforts to identify and obtaiecessary State authorizations before that date July 12, 2011, the U.S. District Court
the District of Columbia vacated the regulatioratielg to state authorization for distance educatidrich decision was upheld by the U.S.
Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Ciitan June 5, 2012. In April 2013, the DepartmerEducation announced that it would
state authorization of distance education to a ti@gad rulemaking previously initiated in May 2032hile four negotiated rulemaking
sessions were conducted from February through Nday 2no consensus was reached. The DepartmentuchEon has stated that it intends
to issue a proposed rule in the spring of 2015.
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Department of Education

To be eligible to participate in Title IV progran&rayer University must comply with specific stards and procedures set forth in the
Higher Education Act and the regulations issuedethveder by the Department of Education. An ingttutmust, among other things, be
authorized to offer its educational programs byhestate in which it is physically located and maintinstitutional accreditation by a
recognized accrediting agency as discussed abdweingtitution also must be certified by the Deamt of Education to participate in Title
IV programs and follow Department of Education sulegarding the awarding and processing of furglseid under the Title IV programs.
purposes of the Title IV programs, Strayer Univgraind all of its campuses are considered to beghesinstitution of higher education, such
that Department of Education requirements appleablin institution of higher education are gemggbplied to all of Strayer University’s
campuses in the aggregate rather than on an indivizhsis. On October 1, 2014, Strayer Universiteived an executed provisional Prog
Participation Agreement with the Department of Eadian allowing it to participate in Title IV progmes until June 30, 2017. The Program
Participation Agreement is provisional becausénefdpen program reviews described below.

Other Approvals

Strayer University is approved by appropriate arities for the education of veterans and membetheEelective reserve and their
dependents, as well as for the rehabilitation dérans. In addition, Strayer University is autheddy the U.S. Department of Homeland
Security to admit foreign students for study in thdted States subject to applicable requiremérits.U.S. Department of Homeland
Security, working with the U.S. Department of Stétas implemented a mandatory electronic reposijrsgem for schools that enroll foreign
students and exchange visitors. The Universitysis authorized to participate in state financidl giograms in Pennsylvania, Florida and
Vermont.

Financing Student Education

Students finance their Strayer University educaitioa variety of ways, and historically about thoperters of our students participated in
one or more Title IV programs. Many financial aidgrams are designed to assist eligible students&/financial resources are inadequa



meet the cost of education. With these programaptfiial aid is awarded on the basis of financiadngenerally defined under the Higher
Education Act as the difference between the coattehding a program of study and the amount aestugasonably can be expected to
contribute to those expenses. All recipients oéfatistudent financial aid must maintain a satisfgcgrade point average (“GPA”) and
progress in a timely manner toward completion pf@agram of study. Undergraduate students must &&/6 cumulative GPA to graduate;
graduate students other than JWMI students must &8/0 cumulative GPA to graduate; and JWMI sttedenust have a 2.5 cumulative G
to graduate.

In addition, many of our working adult studentsafiice their own education or receive full or patiigtion reimbursement from their
employers. Congress has enacted several tax cfedgtidents pursuing higher education and hagiged for a tax deduction for interest on
student loans and exclusions from income of cettation reimbursement amounts. Eligible studentSteayer University may also
participate in educational assistance programsmdtared by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, theeSf Florida, the State of Vermont,
private organizations, the U.S. Department of \@tsrAffairs (and related state agencies), and tBe Department of Defense (“DOD").

Congress recently expanded education benefitsadkaito veterans who have served on active dutgsieptember 11, 2001. Under the
relevant law, known as the Post-9/11 Veterans Behre Assistance Act of 2009 (as amended Augug01]), sometimes referred to as the
“New Gl Bill,” eligible veterans may receive, amoather benefits, tuition benefits up to the nett¢oghe student (after accounting for state
and federal aid, scholarships, institutional ag Wwaivers, and similar assistance), subject tpao€ $20,235 for non-public domestic
institutions for 2014t5. In addition, eligible students pursuing an edional program solely through distance learnireggedigible to receive
housing stipend, equal to half the amount availebudents attending certain classroom-basedgmugor programs that combine
classroom learning and distance learning.
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DOD promulgated regulations, published Decemb@012 and effective January 7, 2013, requiringregtifutions participating in DOD
military tuition assistance programs to sign a Mesndum of Understanding, or MOU, by March 1, 2048that time, Strayer University
executed such an MOU with DOD. In 2014, the DODsed the MOU and required participating institusda execute a new MOU. Strayer
University participates in DOD military tuition asance programs under a revised Memorandum of tdtateding with the DOD, executed
on September 5, 2014, and various branches ofrthedaservices. Thereunder, the University agreestiaply with DOD rules and
procedures regarding the receipt of tuition assc#an behalf of active duty military personneldualifying family members) in attendar
at the University.

Title IV Programs
Strayer University maintains eligibility for itsugtents to participate in the following Title IV gmams:

« Federal GrantsGrants under the Federal Pell Grant program ariéeél@to eligible students based on financial naed other
factors. In April 2011, year-round Pell Grant awsaab&ginning with the 2011-2012 award year were paantly eliminated. In
addition, effective July 1, 2012, eligibility foeR Grants was reduced from 18 semesters to 12stenst

« Campus-Based ProgramBhe campus-based Title IV programs include the F@@upplemental Educational Opportunity Grant
program, the Federal Perkins Loan, and the Fetl¢oak-Study Program. Strayer University does noivaty participate in the
Perkins Loan or the Federal W-Study Program

e Federal Direct Student LoanUnder the William D. Ford Federal Direct Loan Prarg; the Department of Education makes loans
directly to students and their parents. Students edmonstrate financial need may qualify for a &libsd loan. With a subsidized
loan, the federal government will pay the inte@sthe loan while the student is in school andrdueny approved periods of
deferment, until the student’s obligation to replag loan begins. Unsubsidized loans are availabétudents who do not qualify for a
subsidized loan or, in some cases, in additiongobsidized loan. PLUS loans, including Graduatgd®loans, are unsubsidized. The
Budget Control Act of 2011, signed into law on Asgg, 2011, eliminated federal direct subsidizeth&for graduate and professic
students as of July 1, 2012. The terms and comditid subsidized loans originated prior to Jul2d12 are not affected by the char

Federal Financial Aid Regulation

To be eligible to participate in Title IV progran&rayer University must comply with specific stards and procedures set forth in the
Higher Education Act and the regulations issuedeitveder by the Department of Education. As patho$e participation standards, the
Department of Education determines whether, amdimgr ahings, the institution meets certain stanslafdadministrative capability and
financial responsibility. The institution must af&dlow extensive Department of Education rulesareiing the awarding and processing of
funds issued under the Title IV programs. Somédnefikey provisions regarding institutional eligityiland processing federal financial aid are
described below.

Program Participation Agreement



Each institution participating in Title IV programsust enter into a Program Participation Agreemstit the Department of Education.
Under the agreement, the institution agrees tofiothe Department of Educati@nfules and regulations governing Title IV prograBisaye!
University’s provisional Program Participation Agreent with the Department of Education allows ipéaticipate in Title IV programs until
June 30, 2017.
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Provisional Certification

In certain circumstances, the Department of Edanatiay certify an institution’s continuing eligiityl to participate in Title IV programs
on a provisional basis for up to three completerdwaars (July 1 — June 30) from the date of prome certification. During the period of
provisional certification, the institution must cpiy with any additional conditions included in fisogram participation agreement. If the
Department of Education determines that a provadlgrcertified institution is unable to meet itspansibilities under its program
participation agreement, it may seek to revokeuahg&r condition the institution’s certification participate in Title IV programs with fewer
due process protections for the institution thahwfere fully certified. Should the DepartmentiEducation seek to revoke eligibility during
the provisional period, the institution will have apportunity to show cause why such revocatiamisvarranted and the Department of
Education’s decision to accept or reject such catlbeonstitute final agency action. Strayer Unisi¢y is operating under a provisional
Program Participation Agreement through June 30728nd the only material additional condition ttregt University must comply with as a
result of this provisional certification is obtaigi the Department of Educati@napproval for substantial changes, including thditeon of any
new location, level of academic offering, or norgaee and degree programs.

Administrative Capability

Department of Education regulations specify extemsriteria by which an institution must establisht it has the requisite administrative
capability to participate in Title IV programs. Titeet the administrative capability standards, atitirtion, among other things, must comply
with all applicable Title IV program regulationspust not have cohort default rates above speciéedl$, must have various procedures in
place for safeguarding federal funds, must notibhd,not have any principal or affiliate who is, deld or suspended from federal contrac
or engaging in activity that is cause for debarnmerguspension, must submit in a timely mannereglbrts and financial statements required
by the regulations and must not otherwise appelactoadministrative capability.

Financial Responsibility

The Higher Education Act and Department of Educateggulations establish extensive standards ohfita responsibility that institutiol
such as Strayer University must satisfy in ordgpadicipate in Title IV programs. These standagelserally require that an institution prov
the services described in its official publicati@ml statements, properly administer the Title tygoams in which it participates and meet all
of its financial obligations, including requireduads and any repayments to the Department of Eihinctor debts and liabilities incurred in
programs administered by the Department of Edueatio

Department of Education standards utilize a comfilexula to assess financial responsibility. Trendards focus on three financial
ratios: (1) equity ratio (which measures the insitin’s capital resources and ability to borrovid) primary reserve ratio (which measures the
institution’s financial viability and liquidity) ash(3) net income ratio (which measures the institis ability to operate at a profit or within
means). An institution’s financial ratios must yiel composite score of at least 1.5 for the insituto be deemed financially responsible
without alternative measures and further federatsight. Strayer University has applied the finahmsponsibility standards to its financial
statements as of and for the year ended Decemb@024, and based on its composite score and mlesant factors, we believe that Stra
University meets the Department of Education’sriirial responsibility standards.

Student Loan Defaults

Under the Higher Education Act, an educationalitimson may lose its eligibility to participate some or all of the Title IV programs if
defaults on the repayment of Direct Loan or Fed€aahily Education Loan (FFEL) Program loans bysitedents exceed certain levels. The
Department of Education uses a specific methodologletermine default rates and imposes varyingtgars based upon the results of that
calculation. As discussed below, the cohort defiaié calculation and threshold for regulatory $ans changed effective 2014 as a result of
the reauthorization of the Higher Education Acbtigh the Higher Education Opportunity Act (“HEOAiYhich was effective August 18,
2008.
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The Department of Education calculates a rateunfestt defaults (known as a cohort default ratefah institution with 30 or more
borrowers entering repayment in a given federabfigear. The Department of Education include&iendohort all student borrowers at the
institution who entered repayment on any DiredeBEL Program loan during that year. The cohort défate is the percentage of thc



borrowers who become subject to their repaymengatibn in the relevant federal fiscal year andadéfby the end of the second federal
fiscal year following that fiscal year, resultinga three-year cohort default rate. Because ofi¢leel to collect data on defaults, the
Department of Education publishes cohort defatdtsréhree years in arrears; for example, in tHef82014, the Department of Education
issued cohort default rates for federal fiscal y2@i1.

The Department of Education may take adverse aafiamst an institution if it has excessive coldefault rates, including the following:

< If aninstitution’s cohort default rate is 30% oora in a given fiscal year, the institution will kequired to assemble a “default
prevention task for¢” and submit to the Department of Education a defengtovement plar

< If aninstitution’s cohort default rate exceeds 3faf¥two consecutive years, the institution will tegjuired to review, revise and
resubmit its default improvement plan. The Deparnhod Education may direct that the plan be amendeédclude actions, with
measurable objectives, that it determines will psterioan repaymen

» If an institution’s cohort default rate exceeds 3f@f¥two out of three consecutive years, the Depent of Education may subject the
institution to provisional certification. The insttion may file a timely appeal on specified grosiagcording to specified procedures,
and if the Secretary of Education determines thairstitution demonstrated a basis for relief, Seeretary may not subject the
institution to provisional certification based dglen the institutio’s cohort default rate

« If aninstitution’s cohort default rate is equaldiogreater than 30% for each of the three mogntefederal fiscal years for which data
are available, the institution will be ineligible participate in the Direct Loan Program and Fddeel Grant Prograrr

An institution generally loses eligibility to pastpate in Title IV programs if its most recent caohadefault rate is greater than 40%, and
institutions with a cohort default rate equal tagoeater than 15% for any of the three most refiecal years for which data are available are
subject to a 30-day delayed disbursement periofirkiryear, firsttime borrowers. Because its cohort default rate2@#0 was 15.1%, Stray
disburses Direct Loans in this manner.

Strayer’s official three-year cohort default rates2009, 2010, and 2011, as well as the averafjgadfthree-year cohort default rates for
proprietary institutions nationally, were as follaw

National Average

Strayer University Proprietary Institutions
2011 14.9% 19.1%
2010 15.1% 21.&%
2009 13.€% 22.1%

As part of its compliance program related to thieacbdefault rate, Strayer University provides ante and exit counseling to its students
and engages the services of a third party to coshsgents once they are in repayment status ragptideir repayment obligations.

The 90/10 Rule

A requirement of the Higher Education Act, commordferred to as the 90/10 Rule, applies only tgpetary institutions of higher
education, which includes Strayer University. Untihés rule, a proprietary institution is prohibittdm deriving more than 90% of its
revenues (as revenues are computed under the Degrairdf Educatiors methodology) from Title IV funds on a cash acdmgbasis (exce|
for certain institutional loans) for any fiscal yea
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The 90/10 Rule is a compliance obligation thatag pf an institution’s program participation agresnt with the Department of
Education. A proprietary institution of higher edtion that violates the 90/10 Rule for any fisoahywill be placed on provisional status for
up to two fiscal years. Proprietary institutionshigher education that violate the 90/10 Rule ¥av tonsecutive fiscal years will become
ineligible to participate in Title IV programs fat least two fiscal years and will be required éondnstrate compliance with Title IV
eligibility and certification requirements for &dst two fiscal years prior to resuming Title Nogram participation. In addition, the
Department of Education discloses on its websitepmaprietary institution of higher education tiiaits to meet the 90/10 requirement, and
reports annually to Congress the relevant ratiog#&geh proprietary institution of higher education.

HEOA changes in 2008 generally codified the regquiatormula for 90/10 rule calculations, but alsgppanded on the Department of
Education’s formula in certain respects, includiygoroadening the categories of funds that mayoomted as non-Title IV revenue for 90/10
Rule purposes. The HEOA provisions were effectivéagust 14, 2008, and the Department of Educasisued final regulations
implementing the 90/10 Rule and certain other HEfévisions that were effective July 1, 2010, btitntions could have, at the



discretion, implemented the 90/10 Rule regulatom®r after November 1, 2009. These regulationgfgltne treatment of certain types
revenue, and require institutions to report inrthainual financial statement audits not only thee@etage of revenues derived from Title IV
funds during the fiscal year, but also the dollmoants of the numerator and denominator of the®6élculation and specified categories of
revenue. The regulations also shorten from 90 tdad5s the time period within which institutions rmostify the Secretary after the end of a
fiscal year in which the institution failed to mebké 90/10 Rule requirement.

Using the HEOA formula, Strayer University derivaggproximately 74% of its cash-basis revenues fratte TV program funds in both
2012 and 2013. Our computation for 2014 has nobgen finalized and audited; however, we believemilllemain in compliance with the
90/10 Rule requirement.

The key components of non-Title IV revenue for @rdJniversity are individual student payments, &yer tuition reimbursement
payments, veterans benefits, vocational rehaliditefunds, private loans, state grants, and schloljps. Certain members of Congress have
proposed to revise the 90/10 Rule to count DODomiassistance and veterans education benefitg alih Title IV revenue toward the 90%
limit and to reduce the limit to 85% of total reven

Incentive Compensation

As a part of an institution’s program participatisgreement with the Department of Education aratoordance with the Higher
Education Act, the institution may not provide amynmission, bonus or other incentive payment bdgedtly or indirectly on success in
securing enrollments or financial aid to any persoentity engaged in any student recruitment, adions or financial aid awarding activity.
Failure to comply with the incentive payment ruteild result in loss of certification to participatefederal student financial aid programs,
limitations on participation in the federal studéntincial aid programs, or financial penalties.

Effective July 1, 2011, the Department of Educagtiminated 12 “safe harbor#fiat had been established in 2002 to define cirtamess
under which an institution would not run afoul bétincentive payment prohibition. The final ruleshibit payments made “in any part,”
directly or indirectly, upon the success of seaynrollments or financial aid, apply to all empdeg at an institution who are engaged in or
responsible for any student recruitment or admisaittivity, limit “profit-sharing payments,” andtseiles for third-party contracts. The
Department of Education published Dear Colleagutet 6 EN-11-05 interpreting this regulation. Weibe¢ we are in compliance with the
regulation.

Gainful Employment

Under the Higher Education Act, a proprietary insibn offering programs of study other than a ladagreate degree in liberal arts (for
which there is a limited statutory exception) muspare students for gainful employment in a recmghoccupation. The Department of
Education previously attempted to define “an eligipprogram of training to prepare students for fydiemployment in a recognized
occupation.” After

18

a federal court invalidated the Department of Etino& regulation (except for disclosure requiremsgnthe Department of Education
established a negotiated rulemaking committee &nagpnsider the issue of gainful employment, gogbinted Strayer University’s then-
General Counsel to serve on the committee. The GQtigendid not achieve the required consensus, allpthe Department of Education to
put forth its own proposed rules. On March 25, 2@é Department of Education issued a Notice opBsed Rulemaking for public
comment, and on October 31, 2014, the DepartmeBtiotation published the final regulation whichl\wicome effective on July 1, 2015.

The new requirements include two debt-to-earningasures, consisting of an annual income rate agteetionary income rate. The
annual income rate measures student debt in nelagiearnings, and the discretionary income ratasmes student debt in relation to
discretionary income. Under the new gainful emplentregulation, a program would pass if the progsagraduates:

« have an annual income rate ratio that does noteex8&o;0r

« have a discretionary income rate that does notezk26%.

In addition, a program that does not pass eithénefiebt-taearnings metrics, and that has an annual incoraebetveen 8% and 12%,
a discretionary income rate between 20% and 30%idnwe considered to be in a warning zone. A progrebuld fail if the program’s
graduates have an annual income rate of 12% otegraad a discretionary income rate of 30% or gred program would become Title V-
ineligible for three years if it fails both metrif@r two out of three consecutive years, or fallpass at least one metric for four consecutive
award years.

If an institution is notified by the Secretary tlaprogram could become ineligible, based oniitsl fiates, for the next award ye



» the institution must provide a warning with resptecthe program to students and prospective stadedicating, among other things,
that students may not be able to use Title IV fudsttend or continue in the program; :

« the institution must not enroll, register or ert#o a financial commitment with a prospective smduntil a specified time after
providing the warning to the prospective stud

The new regulation also requires institutions fmoré student and program level data to the DepanrtmmeEducation, and comply with
additional disclosure requirements beginning iruday 2017.

In addition, the gainful employment regulation reggsi institutions to certify by December 31, 20a8ong other things, that each eligible
gainful employment program is programmatically adited if required by a federal governmental ertity state governmental entity of a
state in which it is located or is otherwise regdito obtain state approval, and that each eligitdgram satisfies the applicable educational
prerequisites for professional licensure or cedifion requirements in each state in which it cated or is otherwise required to obtain state
approval, so that a student who completes the progind seeks employment in that state qualifiéski® any licensure or certification exam
that is needed for the student to practice or &émgbloyment in an occupation that the program pespsiudents to enter.

The Company does not have adequate guidance ofrdatahe Department of Education to determinerdtiiely the full financial or
operational impact, if any, of the new regulatigaéng forward. The requirements associated withgiaful employment regulations will
substantially increase our administrative burdermdsauld affect our student enroliment, persistearw retention. Further, although the
regulations provide opportunities for an institatim correct any potential deficiencies in a proggaior to the loss of Title IV eligibility, the
continuing eligibility of our academic programs Mik affected by factors beyond management’s chrsueh as changes in our graduates’
employment and income levels, changes in studanbWwong levels, increases in interest rates, anmobua other factors. Even if we were able
to correct any deficiency in the gainful employmamtrics in a timely manner, the disclosure requésts associated with a progranfailure
to meet at least one metric may adversely affectestt enrollments in that program and may adversi#ct the reputation of our institution.

In November 2014, two organizations filed sepalatesuits against the Department of Education irefalcourts seeking to have the new
regulation invalidated. Both suits allege that Erepartment of
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Education exceeded its statutory authority in prigiating the regulation, that the regulation viotatiee institution’s constitutional rights, and
that the regulation is arbitrary and capricious. ¥danot predict when or how the courts may rul¢hese lawsuits.

Return of Federal Funds

Under the Higher Education Act’s return-of-fundsyision, an institution must return Title IV funtisa Title IV program in a timely
manner if a student received funds from that pnogbait did not earn them due to the student’s wihad from the institution. In order to
determine if funds should be returned, the ingtitumust first determine the amount of Title IV gram funds that the student earned. If the
student attends the institution, but withdraws wigithe first 60% of any period of enroliment or pent period, the amount of Title IV
program funds that the student earned is equapto aata portion of the funds for which the studeaould otherwise be eligible. Strayer
University uses the studestfast day of attendance as the withdrawal datpudguoses of return to Title 1V. Effective July211, institution:
that use the last day of attendance are requiretttsure the last day of attendance based onabffitendance records, and “attendance” for
online classes must include participation in ardaazically related activity. Strayer University’sssgms allow for measurement on this basis.
If the student withdraws after the 60% point, thies student has earned 100% of the Title IV progdi@mds. The institution must return to the
appropriate Title IV programs, in a specified ordbe lesser of the unearned Title IV program fuaidthe institutional charges incurred by
the student for the period multiplied by the petage of unearned Title IV program funds. An indiin must return the funds no later thar
days after the date that the institution determthasa student withdrew.

If the funds are not returned in a timely mannarinetitution may be subject to adverse actioniiog being required to submit a letter
of credit equal to 25% of the refunds the institatshould have made in its most recently complésedl year. Under Department of
Education regulations, if late returns of Title pvogram funds constitute 5% or more of studentgpdeanin the institution’s annual
compliance audit for either of its two most recegmibmpleted fiscal years, an institution generailyst submit an irrevocable letter of credit
payable to the Secretary of Education.

Third-Party Servicers

Department of Education regulations permit an fastin to enter into a written contract with a thiparty servicer for the administration
of any aspect of the institution’s participationTiitle IV programs. The third-party servicer mumtiong other obligations, comply with Title
IV requirements and be jointly and severally liabiéh the institution to the Secretary of Educatfonany violation by the servicer of any
Title IV provision. An institution must report theé Department of Education new contracts or anyifsignt modifications to contracts with
third-party servicers as well as other matters relatelitd-party servicers. Strayer University has writtentcacts with thir-party servicer:



to perform activities related to Strayer Universitparticipation in Title IV programs. Strayer Unisity also has a contract with Heartle
Payment Systems, Inc. for processing stipendsaseitients and with General Revenue Corporatiotofor default prevention. Prior to
September 30, 2011, Strayer University utilizediald-inancial Aid Services, Inc., for services udihg certifying Title IV loan application
preparing reports from Strayer University to thepBement of Education, and issuing federal graoggam payments. The University’s
agreement with Global Financial Aid Services exphioa September 30, 2011, at which point Strayewélsity in-sourced its financial aid
processing.

Lender Relationships

As part of an institution’s program participatiogreement with the Department of Education, thatut&in must adopt a code of conduct
pertaining to student loans. Strayer University da@sde of conduct that it believes complies whih provisions of HEOA in all material
respects. In addition to the code of conduct reguoénts that apply to institutions, HEOA containsvisions that apply to lenders, prohibiting
lenders from engaging in certain activities as timgract with institutions.
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Prior to the termination of the FFEL Program onelBA, 2010, Strayer University was subject to ralgslicable to institutions that make
available a list of recommended or suggested fétmaa lenders for use by potential borrowers. \&trdJniversity remains subject to those
rules with respect to private education loans.

Restrictions on Adding Locations and Educational &grams

State requirements and accrediting agency stantiantishe ability of Strayer University to estasiti additional locations and programs.
Most states require approval before institutions @dd new programs, campuses or teaching locafitidslle States requires institutions that
it accredits to notify it in advance of implemergtinew programs or locations, which may require tialtl approval. At its discretion, Midd
States may also conduct site visits to additionedtions to ensure that accredited institutionselperience rapid growth in the number of
additional locations, among other reasons, mairgdurcational quality. All new Strayer Universityngaus locations require Middle States
approval before students are enrolled, and theéfiflducation Act requires Middle States to monitgtitutions with significant enroliment
growth. In addition, under Strayer University’s pisional certification, the Department of Educationst approve any new campus location,
level of academic offering and non-degree and degregrams.

The Higher Education Act requires proprietary ingidns of higher education to be in full operatfontwo years before qualifying to
participate in Title IV programs. However, the dpgble regulations in many circumstances perminatitution that is already qualified to
participate in Title IV programs to establish aduitl locations that are exempt from the two-yede.rThese additional locations generally
may qualify immediately for participation in thetl€i IV programs, unless the location was acquirechfanother institution that has ceased
offering educational programs at that location had Title IV liabilities that it is not repaying accordance with an agreement to do so, and
the acquiring institution does not agree, amongiothatters, to be responsible for certain lialei#itof the acquired institution. The new
location must satisfy all other applicable requiesnts for institutional eligibility, including appval of the additional location by the relevant
state authorizing agency and the institution’s editing agency. Strayer University’s expansion plaasume its continued ability to establish
new campuses as additional locations of Strayevéysity under such applicable regulations and thete avoid incurring the twgear delay
in participation in Title IV programs. The losssifite authorization or accreditation of Strayendrsity or an existing campus, or the failure
of Strayer University or a new campus to obtaitestaithorization or accreditation, would rendeagr University ineligible to participate in
Title IV programs at least in that state or at fbaation. Department of Education regulations megjunstitutions to report to the Department
of Education a new additional location at whicteaist 50% of an eligible program will be offerethie institution wants to disburse Title IV
program funds to students enrolled at that locatibrder its provisional Program Participation Agremt with the Department of Education,
Strayer University must obtain Department of Ediacaapproval for the addition of any new locatitwstitutions are responsible for knowi
whether they need approval, and institutions tddtlacations and disburse Title IV program fundthwiit having obtained any necessary
approval may be subject to administrative repaysant other sanctions.

The gainful employment regulation that becomescéiffe July 1, 2015 provides that an institution neggablish a new program’s Title IV
eligibility by updating the list of the institutimprograms maintained by the Department of Edooatnd thereby making the certification
required by the regulation. However, an institutinay not update its list of eligible programs tolire a gainful employment program, or a
gainful employment program that is substantialiyikir to a failing or zone program that the ingtga voluntarily discontinued or became
ineligible, that was subject to the three-year lofssligibility until that three-year period expire

Other Regulations Governing Title IV Programs

The Department of Education has enacted a compseleeset of regulations governing an institutigpésticipation in the Title 1V
programs. If Strayer University were not to conéria comply with these regulations, such non-coamae might affect the operations of the
University and its ability to participate in Titlg¢ programs.
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Compliance Reviews

Strayer University is subject to announced and noanced compliance reviews and audits by variotereal agencies, including the
Department of Education, its Office of Inspectom@el, state licensing agencies, guaranty ageramesaccrediting agencies. The Higher
Education Act and Department of Education regufetialso require an institution to submit annuallyhte Secretary of Education a
compliance audit of its administration of the Tifleprograms conducted by an independent certfigllic accountant in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and applicable agudides of the Department of Education’s Officertddector General. In addition, to
enable the Secretary of Education to make a detetion of financial responsibility, an institutiomust submit annually to the Secretary of
Education audited financial statements preparedtdaordance with Department of Education regulations

In an August 2010 letter to members of the SenatH, Education, Labor and Pensions (HELP) Conemitthe Secretary of Education
announced plans to increase the number of progeaiaws by 50%, from 200 conducted in 2010 to 30RdM1. In 2014, the Department of
Education conducted four campus-based programwevié¢ Strayer University locations in three staiad the District of Columbia, with one
on-site review conducted August 18-20, 2014, onsitsreview conducted September 8-11, 2014; aondovsite reviews conducted
September 22-26, 2014. The reviews covered fefiegaicial aid years 2012-2013 and 2013-2014, amddfithe reviews also covered
compliance with the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Qasrfpecurity Policy and Campus Crime Statistics thet,Drug-Free Schools and
Communities Act, and regulations related thereto G@tober 21, 2014, the Department of Educatiameidsan Expedited Final Program
Review Determination Letter for one of the prognawiews conducted the week of September 22, 20ading the program review with no
further action required by us. On November 17, 20delreceived a Program Review Report for the mnogreview conducted in August
2014, and provided a response to the Departmebtiofation on December 15, 2014. On January 7, 204 %eceived a Final Program
Review Determination letter from that August 20&diew, closing the review with no further actioguéred by us. In addition, while the on-
site portions of the other two program reviews hemecluded, Strayer University has yet to receednination letters from these reviews.

Potential Effect of Regulatory Violations

If Strayer University fails to comply with the regtory standards governing Title IV programs, trepBrtment of Education could impc
one or more sanctions, including transferring Srayniversity from the advance payment method éordimbursement or cash monitoring
system of payment, seeking to require repaymeaédin Title IV funds, requiring the University post a letter of credit in favor of the
Department of Education as a condition for contthiigtle IV certification, taking emergency actiogainst the University, referring the
matter for criminal prosecution or initiating precings to impose a fine or to limit, condition, geisd or terminate Strayer University’s
participation in Title IV programs. Although theaiee no such sanctions currently in force, if suaicions or proceedings were imposed
against Strayer University and resulted in a sutbistecurtailment, or termination, of the Univeys# participation in Title IV programs or
resulted in substantial fines or monetary liakahti Strayer University would be materially and adely affected.

If Strayer University lost its eligibility to padipate in Title IV programs, or if Congress redudieel amount of available federal student
financial aid, the University would seek to arratgerovide alternative sources of revenue or foiaraid for students. Although the
University believes that one or more private orgations would be willing to provide financial agaisce to students attending Strayer
University, there is no assurance that this woaldhe case, and the interest rate and other tdreweh student financial aid are unlikely to
as favorable as those for Title IV program fundsayger University might be required to guaranté@apart of such alternative assistance
manner that complies with rules governing schaakitionships with lenders or might incur otherigiddal costs in connection with securing
alternative sources of financial aid. Accordingheg loss of eligibility of Strayer University to gigipate in Title IV programs, or a reduction
in the amount of available federal student finalnaid, would be expected to have a material adveffeet on Strayer University, even if it
could arrange or provide alternative sources oémere or student financial aid.
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In addition to the actions that may be brought mstaiis as a result of our participation in Titlegkbgrams, we also may be subject, from
time to time, to complaints and lawsuits relatingagulatory compliance brought not only by ourulatpry agencies, but also by other
government agencies and third parties.

Change in Ownership Resulting in a Change of Conitro

Many states and accrediting agencies require unistits of higher education to report or obtain appt of certain changes in ownershig
other aspects of institutional status, but the sypfeand triggers for such reporting or approvay\eanong states and accrediting agencies. In
addition, Strayer University’s accrediting agenklddle States, requires institutions that it acaetb inform it in advance of any substantive
change, including a change that significantly altee ownership or control of the institution. Exdes of substantive changes requiring
advance notice to and approval of Middle Statekidecchanges in the legal status, ownership or fofroontrol of the institution, such as the
sale of a proprietary institution. Middle Statesstapprove a substantive change in advance in twdeclude the change in the institution’s
accreditation status. Middle States will undertalgite visit to an institution that has undergombange in ownership or control no later than
six months after the chanc



The Higher Education Act provides that an insté@ntthat undergoes a change in ownership resuhirgchange of control loses its
eligibility to participate in the Title IV programend must apply to the Department of Educatiorrdepto reestablish such eligibility. An
institution is ineligible to receive Title IV progm funds during the period prior to recertificatidime Higher Education Act provides that the
Department of Education may temporarily, provisibneertify an institution seeking approval of aactge of ownership and control based on
preliminary review by the Department of Educatidraanaterially complete application received by Bepartment of Education within 10
business days after the transaction. The Departofdfducation may continue such temporary, prowai@ertification on a month-to-month
basis until it has rendered a final decision onitiséitution’s application. If the Department of dchtion determines to approve the application
after a change in ownership and control, it issupsovisional certification, which extends for aipd expiring not later than the end of the
third complete award year following the date ofyismnal certification. The Higher Education Acffiles one of the events that would trig
a change in ownership resulting in a change ofrobas the transfer of the controlling interestha# stock of the institution or its parent
corporation. For a publicly traded corporation, sieeurities of which are required to be registeneder the Exchange Act, such as Strayer
Department of Education regulations implementirgltigher Education Act define a change in ownersbgulting in a change of control as
occurring when a person acquires ownership andaasfta corporation such that the corporatioreiguired to file a Form 8-K with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) publidgldsing the change of control. The regulatios® g@irovide that a change in ownership
and control of a publicly traded corporation ocdties person who is a controlling stockholder af torporation ceases to be a controlling
stockholder. A controlling stockholder is a stockies who holds or controls through agreement b&tt r more of the total outstanding
voting stock of the corporation and more sharestihg stock than any other stockholder.

The U.S. Department of Homeland Security, workinthwhe U.S. Department of State, has implementedhadatory electronic reportil
system for schools that enroll foreign students excthange visitors. Strayer University currenthaighorized by the U.S. Department of
Homeland Security to admit foreign students fodgtin the United States subject to applicable negoents. In certain circumstances, the
Department of Homeland Security may require aritutgin to obtain approval for a change in ownepsdid control.

Pursuant to federal law providing benefits for vaits and reservists, some of the programs offeyegtdayer University are approved for
the enrollment of persons eligible to receive UD8partment of Veterans Affairs educational bendfjtshe state approving agencies. In 2!
we had such approval in Alabama, Arkansas, Delavdoeida, Georgia, Louisiana, Maryland, Mississjfew Jersey, North Carolina,
Pennsylvania, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texaginidr West Virginia, Wisconsin, and WashingtonCDIn certain circumstances, state
approving agencies may require an institution tmiobapproval for a change in ownership and control
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If Strayer University underwent a change of conthalt required approval by any state authority, diédStates or any federal agency, and
any required regulatory approval were significawiiiyayed, limited or denied, there could be a netadverse effect on Strayer University’s
ability to offer certain educational programs, asveertain degrees, diplomas or certificates, opesat or more of its locations, admit certain
students or participate in Title IV programs, whictiurn would materially and adversely affect $&raUniversity’s operations. A change that
required approval by a state regulatory authokitigdle States or a federal agency could also d8tagyer University’s ability to establish
new campuses or educational programs and may higeadverse regulatory effects. Furthermore, tispansion from Title IV programs
and the necessity of obtaining regulatory approwatnnection with a change of control may mathrianit Strayer University’s flexibility
in future financing or acquisition transactions.

Recent or Pending Legislative and Regulatory Adtjvi

Congress has been considering legislation thatdvmake further changes in the Higher Educationahct other educatiorelated federe
laws. Congressional activity may adversely affecbément in for-profit educational institutions. &\¢tannot predict the impact, if any, of
these recent or pending legislative changes otongrterm business model, or whether the newly tited 114t Congress will consider
similar legislation, although uncertainty assodatgth Congressional activity has had a negativgaiat on the industry as a whole.

As discussed more fully above, the Department efcaton recently issued a final regulation on galiefnployment, which becomes
effective on July 1, 2015. This regulation estdi#sdebt-to-earnings metrics that a Title IV eligiprogram must pass in order to maintain
eligibility. A program failing both debt-to-earniagnetrics in two out of three consecutive yeardaiting or in a warning zone for four
consecutive years, would be deemed ineligible ¢eive Title IV funds for a period of three years.

Congress

Congress historically has reauthorized the Highirdation Act (“HEA”), which is the law governingtlé IV programs, approximately
every five to six years. On July 31, 2008, Congressithorized the HEA through the end of 2013, &igsjng the HEOA, which President
Bush signed into law on August 14, 2008. The HE@dvsions became effective upon enactment, unlgsxwise specified in the law.
HEOA includes numerous new and revised requirenfentsigher education institutions. In October 206& Department of Education
published final regulations to implement HEOA chasi¢p Title IV of the Higher Education Act. Thosgulations were effective July 1,
2010. Congress extended funding for Title 1V thrio@eptember 30, 2016, through the Consolidatedartier Continuing Appropriations
Act, 2015. On November 20, 2014, Senator Harkie ftmmer Chairman of the Senate HELP Committee hdssince retired, introduced S.
2954, the Higher Education Affordability Act, whigould reauthorize the HEA through the next reartfation. Concurrently, the House |
continued to hold hearings regarding the reauthtidn of the HEA. We cannot predict what the fireduthorization will, or will not do, ¢



when or how it will be enacted, or its effects drager University.

In addition to HEOA, three other laws to amend eralithorize aspects of the Higher Education AceHseen enacted over the last few
years. In February 2006, President Bush signe®#iieit Reduction Act of 2005, which included thégHer Education Reconciliation Act
2005, or HERA. Among other measures, HERA reautleorihe Higher Education Act with respect to thaefal guaranteed student loan
programs. In September 2007, President Bush sithee@ollege Cost Reduction and Access Act, whicheiased benefits to students under
the Title IV programs and reduced payments to aigkd costs for lenders that participate in thefadstudent loan programs. In May 2008,
President Bush signed the Ensuring Continued AdeeSsudent Loans Act of 2008, or ECASLA, which vadesigned to facilitate student
loan availability and to increase student acce$ederal financial aid in light of then-current rkat conditions. Congress extended ECASLA
for an additional year, to June 30, 2010. In M&6k0, Congress passed the Student Aid and FissgldReibility Act of 2009, which
eliminated the FFEL Program and required all instihs participating in Title IV programs to convexclusively to the Direct Loan Program
by July 1, 2010.
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The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, or CFHRBmitted two reports to Congress in 2012 with Bjga@commendations for
restructuring the student borrowing experiencduitiog requiring institutions to certify that a dant is not eligible for any further federal
funds before a private loan may be issued to stuzteat. On October 16, 2014, the CFPB Student I@aibudsman released its third annual
report analyzing more than 5,300 complaints the EFeeived from private student loan borrowers leetwOctober 1, 2013 and September
30, 2014. The report stated that, as CongressaemssHEA reauthorization, it may be useful to assdsether certain reforms related to the
servicing of credit cards and mortgages might atsengthen loan servicing. We do not know whatstap CFPB or Congress may take in
response to these actions and whether such a¢ti@mg) will have an adverse effect on our businesresults of operations.

On August 9, 2013, the Bipartisan Student Loandest Act became law. Under the Act, interest ratesll Direct loans to
undergraduates are pegged to the 10-year T-bdllptais 2.05%, with a cap at 8.25%. Interest ratediect loans to post-graduate students
will be at the T-bill rate plus 3.6%, with a capab%. Interest rates on direct PLUS loans aratsiste T-bill rate plus 4.6%, with a cap at
10.5%. Direct consolidation loan rates will be dgied average of the interest rates of the cotiatd loans rounded to the nearesta8
1%. Interest rates would be reset every Juliatd effective for loans taken out from Jul§ttb June 3¢ of the next year. Those interest re
would be effective for the life of the loan.

On December 19, 2013, Senator Jack Reed (D-Rfdnted legislation in the Senate that would craatsk sharing program for those
institutions with more than 25% of its studentstiggrating in a student loan program. Institutiamshe program would be assessed betwe
and 20 percent of the amount students owe on ltheais, depending on the degree to which the inistitls cohort default rate exceeded 15%.
Similar legislation was introduced in the HouseSaptember 18, 2014. The POST Act of 2013, introducehe House by Representative
Steve Cohen (D-TN), would require proprietary ingions to derive at least 15% of their revenuenfron-federal funding sources, including
funds from the Department of Defense and DepartoEveterans Affairs. We cannot predict whetheisther similar bills, and others
affecting our business, will be reintroduced in &t Congress and will pass or what, if any, impact tweuld have on our business.

Appropriations

Congress reviews and determines appropriationSifier [V programs on an annual basis. An eliminatad certain Title IV programs, a
reduction in federal funding levels of such progsamaterial changes in the requirements for pagtan in such programs, or the
substitution of materially different programs couddluce the ability of certain students to finatiwar education. This, in turn, could lead to
lower enroliments at Strayer University or requigeto increase our reliance upon alternative sesus€student financial aid. Given the
significant percentage of our revenues that areltindirectly from the Title IV programs, the foef or a significant reduction in Title IV
program funds available to our students could lzareaterial adverse effect on Strayer University.

Senate Health, Education, Labor and Pensions (HEL&nhmittee

In 2010, the U.S. Congress increased its focusoprigtary education institutions, including regardpatrticipation in Title IV programs
and DOD oversight of tuition assistance for miltaervice members. Since June 2010, the Senate i@Bhinittee, formerly led by Senator
Harkin, has held hearings to examine the propsietducation sector. Other committees of the U.SigBess have also held hearings into,
among other things, the standards and procedurascoéditing agencies, credit hours and programtherthe portion of federal student
financial aid going to proprietary institutions,datihe receipt of veterans and military educationdfiés by students enrolled at proprietary
institutions. Strayer University has cooperatedwlitese inquiries. A number of legislators haveotesly requested the Government
Accountability Office (GAO) to review and make r@amendations regarding, among other things, recantmractices, educational quality,
student outcomes, the sufficiency of integrity gafirds against waste, fraud and abuse in Titlerdgnqams, and the percentage of proprietary
institutions’ revenue coming from Title IV and otHederal funding sources. The GAO released foports on for-profit post-secondary
education: first, a report in August 2010 (subsedyeevised in November 2010) that concluded, dasea three-month undercover
investigation, that employees at a non-random saumipl5 proprietary institutions (not including &ter University) made deceptive
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statements to students about accreditation, grimsuattes, job placement, program costs, and filmhad; second, a report in October 2010
critical of the Department of Educatienéfforts to enforce the ban on incentive paymehis], a report in October 2011 critical of thedznt
experience and instructor performance at somerwfitnline institutions; and fourth, a reportlirecember 2011 comparing various student
outcomes across proprietary, non-profit, and pubktitutions.

On July 30, 2012, the then-majority of the Sendit. Pl Committee, led by Demaocrats, released its fiepbrt on the for-profit sector of
higher education entitled “For Profit Higher Eduoat The Failure to Safeguard the Federal Investrard Ensure Student Success.” While
acknowledging that for-profit institutions havederto play in higher education, the report critézd the proprietary institution industry on
many fronts. However, the report also concluded $timyer University’s “performance, measured lugdsnt withdrawal and default rates, is
one of the best of any company examined, and ianspthat students are faring well at this degesedb for-profit college.” S. Rept. 112-37.
The report ultimately recommended several meadarasform which could change the participatiorpodprietary institutions in Title IV
funding, including the following:

« Tie access to federal financial aid to minimum stucdutcome thresholds.

< Prohibit institutions from funding marketing, adtiging and recruiting activities with federal firaal aid dollars.
* Expand the reporting period for cohort default sdieyond three years.

« Require that for-profits receive 15% of revenuesfmon-federal sources.

» Extend the ban on incentive compensation to inchldemployees of institutions of higher educatiand clarify that this ban extends
to numeric threshold or qu«-based termination policie

The report was not adopted by the full Committexel the Republican minority released their own repoticizing the majority’s
investigation in many aspects, including that d dot include a review of all institutions of higheducation. In addition, on July 30, 2014, the
then-majority of the Committee released a repatitled “Is the New G.I. Bill Working?: For-Profit @leges Increasing Veteran Enroliment
and Federal Funds,” detailing the amount of Pokt-@ I Bill Benefits paid to for-profit colleges,dluding Strayer, and recommending that
the 90/10 rule be “strengthened.” The report stitasat least four companies, including Strayappear to be receiving close to or more than
half of their reported non-federal financial aidgeaue on the 10 side of the equation from Post-@HRill benefit funds.” Of the top ten
proprietary institutions mentioned receiving sughds, Strayer University was noted as receivingairtbe lowest amounts of Post 9/11 Gl
Bill funds.

On September 21, 2012, a group of Democratic senatmte a letter to the Federal Trade Commissiging it to evaluate the marketing
practices utilized by many proprietary institutidghsough the use of third-party lead generatoraddition, legislation was introduced in the
Senate by then Senator Harkin in April 2012, whigduld prevent institutions from using Title 1V fusdor marketing activities. Similar
legislation may be introduced in the 1 €ongress.

This increased congressional activity is expeabecbhtinue and may result in legislation, furthdemaking affecting participation in
Title IV programs, and other governmental actions.

U.S. Department of Education

Title IV regulations applicable to Strayer Univéyshave been subject to frequent revisions, manwto€h have increased the level of
scrutiny to which higher education institutions aubjected and have raised applicable standard3ctiwber 2009, the Department of
Education published final regulations to implemiéreg HEOA’s numerous new and revised requirememtiifher education institutions.
These regulations were effective July 1, 2010. @toker 29, 2010, the Department of Education phbtisinal regulations regarding
program integrity at higher education institutigRsogram Integrity Regulations), most of which bwezeffective July 1, 2011. On May 5,
2011, the Department of Education initiated a negatiated rulemaking process on teacher preparptimgrams and federal student loans.
The negotiations ended in April 2012. On Novemlt®rZD14, the Department of Education issued a NaifdProposed Rulemaking related
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to teacher preparation programs which would, amathgr things, encourage states to develop systeidgntify high- and low-performing
teacher preparation programs and report annualth@performance of such programs.

In May 2012, the Department of Education annouritseititent to establish a negotiated rulemaking wiitee to prepare propos



regulations designed to prevent fraud and othereusiseire proper use of Title IV, HEA program furelspecially in the context of current
technologies. In particular, the Department of Edion intends to propose regulations to addressdkeof debit cards and other banking
mechanisms for disbursing Federal Student Aid fuadd to improve and streamline the campus-basedr&eStudent Aid programs. Public
hearings were held in May 2012. On April 16, 20th@, Department of Education announced that it wadldi gainful employment, program
integrity, Title IV cash management, and state auhtion of distance education among others ® phéviously initiated negotiated
rulemaking. In June 2013, the Department of Edooainnounced that it would break out gainful emplewt, and establish a separate
negotiated rulemaking committee for this purpodee megotiated rulemaking committee dealing witmfydiemployment held several
meetings in the third and fourth quarters of 2GR] as discussed in further detail above, the Degat of Education issued a final regula
in October 2014 related to gainful employment.

Strayer University must comply with the campus saéad security reporting requirements as wellthgrorequirements in the Jeanne
Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Casn@rime Statistics Act, or Clery Act, includingceat changes made to the Clery Ac
the Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act @12, which was signed into law on March 7, 2013.Apnil 1, 2014, a negotiated
rulemaking committee reached consensus on propegethtions, and on October 20, 2014, the DepattwieBducation promulgated final
regulations implementing the recent amendmentisg¢dlery Act. In addition, the Department of Edimathas interpreted Title 1X of the
Education Amendments of 1972, or Title IV, to catére sexual violence as a form of prohibited siserimination and to require institutions
to follow certain disciplinary procedures with respto such offenses. Failure to comply with Clacy or Title IX requirements or regulatic
thereunder could result in action by the Departnegfducation to require corrective action, fine thniversity or limit or suspend its
participation in Title IV programs, could lead ttigation, and could harm the University’s reputati

State Licensure

Under the Program Integrity Regulations regardiageslicensure, a proprietary institution is coesédl legally authorized by a state if the
state has a process to review and appropriatelgracomplaints concerning the institution, incluglenforcing applicable state laws, and the
institution complies with any applicable state ayjyad or licensure requirements consistent withRhegram Integrity Regulations. These
requirements became effective July 1, 2011, bubDiagartment of Education has delayed the implentientdate twice provided certain
conditions are met, such as the state is estafdjsin acceptable authorization process and thituiish obtains an explanation from the state
that supports application of the extension. Thetmaxsent such extension was announced in June 28ti4he delayed implementation dat
July 1, 2015.

If an institution offers post-secondary educatiorotigh distance or correspondence education testsith a state in which it is not
physically located or in which it is otherwise sedijto state jurisdiction as determined by theesthie institution must meet any state
requirements for it to be legally offering post-sedary distance or correspondence education irstatg. On June 5, 2012, the Court of
Appeals upheld a lower court’s ruling vacating stete authorization of online programs requirem@ntJuly 27, 2012, the Department of
Education issued a Dear Colleague Letter cautioathgcation institutions to remain in compliancetwatl applicable state laws and
regulations related to distance education. In A203, the Department of Education announced theduld add state authorization of
distance education to a negotiated rulemaking ptesly initiated in May 2012. While four negotiatedemaking sessions were conducted
from February through May 2014, no consensus wachezl. The Department of Education has statedgbylttiat it intends to issue a
proposed rule in the spring of 2015.

The Program Integrity Regulations also amendedjémeral provisions regarding student consumer iméion. Under this revision, the
institution must make available for review to amyaled or prospective student upon request, a obplge documents describing the
institution’s accreditation and its state, federal,
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or tribal approval or licensing. The institution st@also provide its students or prospective stideith contact information for filing
complaints with its accreditor and with its stapgoval or licensing entity and any other relevstate official or agency that would
appropriately handle a student’s complaint.

We are authorized to offer our programs by theiapple educational regulatory agencies in all stateere our physical campuses and
online delivery facilities are located, and thesges have the applicable complaint processesatems required by the regulations.

Incentive Compensation

Institutions participating in the Title IV programsay not pay any commission, bonus, or other ineemayment based directly or
indirectly on securing enrollments or financial éadpersonnel engaged in recruitment or admissiomsaking decisions about awarding Title
IV aid. Previously, there were 12 “safe harbordéatiag to payment and compensation plans thattirigins may practice without fear of
violating the prohibition. The Program Integrity gRéations removed the safe harbors when they beeffieetive on July 1, 2011.

The regulations prohibit incentive compensatioertployees engaged in any student recruitment orsatbn activity or in making



decisions regarding the award of Title IV fundsttisebased in any part, directly or indirectly, npguccess in securing enrollments or the
award of financial aid. Meribased adjustments to employee compensation mayde ifithey are not based in any part, directlindirectly,
upon success in securing enrollments or the awididancial aid. Profit-sharing payments may be mad long as they are not provided to
any person who is engaged in student recruitmeationission activity or in making decisions regagdine award of Title IV funds. The
regulations also obligate a third-party serviceretf@r to the Office of Inspector General of thepBiement of Education any information
indicating payment of any commission, bonus, oepthcentive payment based in any part, directlindirectly, upon success in securing
enrollments or the award of financial aid to anyspe or entity engaged in any student recruitmemidmission activity or in making
decisions regarding the award of Title IV funds.

Misrepresentation

Under the Higher Education Act, the Department@fi¢tion may fine, suspend or terminate the pagtain in Title IV programs by an
institution that engages in substantial misrepresdem of the nature of its educational programfiiancial charges, or the employability of
its graduates. The Program Integrity Regulationg$asth the types of activities that constitute mjzresentation and describe the adverse
actions that the Department of Education may thkdinds that an institution or a third party th@rovides educational programs, marketing,
advertising, recruiting or admissions servicestitstitution engaged in substantial misrepresiemal he new rule specifies the types of
statements that can subject the institution talitglfor misrepresentation, the nature and formoleading statements, and provides that an
institution may not describe the eligible institutis participation in Title IV programs in a mannbkat suggests approval or endorsement by
the U.S. Department of Education of the qualityt@fducational programs. On June 5, 2012, the Co8rt of Appeals for the District of
Columbia Circuit held that the Department of Ediaras expansion of the definition of misrepreseiotato include “any statement that has
the likelihood or tendency to deceive or confus@swinsupported by law, and thus vacated that poofithe regulation. In response to the
court’s ruling, on September 20, 2013, the Depantroé Education published technical amendmentheéaégulation.

Gainful Employment Reporting and Disclosure

Under the Higher Education Act, a proprietary ingidn offering programs of study other than a ladeareate degree in liberal arts (for
which there is a limited statutory exception) mustpare students for gainful employment in a reciaghoccupation. The Program Integrity
Regulations established new annual reporting reqénts that are applicable to these programs.detr such program, Strayer University
reported specific information regarding the progréme students enrolled in the program, and stedehb completed the program, including
the amount the student received from private edutaitloans and institutional financing plans. tdaion, the Program Integrity Regulations
require institutions with gainful
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employment programs to disclose to prospectivessttgicertain information relating to those programduding the occupations that the
program prepares students to enter; thérae-graduation rate; tuition, fees, and costs;glaizement rates, if applicable; and median lodn

of students who completed the program. Strayer &isity makes such disclosures on its website apdamotional materials. The June 30,
2012 U.S. District Court for the District of Columldecision related to Gainful Employment vacateslreporting requirements, but the
disclosure requirements remain in effect. The Dipant of Education required institutions to make finst disclosures by July 1, 2011 to
update the disclosures for the 2011-2012 award lygdanuary 31, 2013, and to update the disclodarébe 2012-2013 award year, using a
newly developed template released by the Departofdaducation in November 2013 by January 31, 20iich was subsequently updated
in September 2014. We made our first disclosur@®irl, and completed timely updates of the discésstor the 2011-2012, 2012-2013, and
2013-2014 years.

The new gainful employment regulations, which beeaffective on July 1, 2015, re-establish reporteguirements previously
invalidated by the U.S. District Court, with thestireporting required by July 31, 2015 of inforioatrelated to the previous second through
seventh award years. In addition, institutions Wélrequired every year thereafter to report aegtaident and program level information to
the Department of Education every subsequent yeah& most recently concluded award year. In aidithe new regulation will sunset the
current program disclosures on December 31, 20i6,new disclosures required, as determined byesyent releases to be published by
Department of Education in the Federal Registartiag in January 2017.

New Programs

The Program Integrity Regulations established reguénts intended to remain in place until the Dpant of Education implements
performance-based standards for approving additimograms using gainful employment measures. Thegalations required an institution
to notify the Department of Education of new pragsa(defined in the regulations) that are subjeg@ioful employment requirements.
Notification was to be made at least 90 days befwedirst day of class. The institution could pged to offer the program, unless
Department of Education advised the institutiort tha additional educational program must be apgoThis program approval process was
vacated by the U.S. District Court for the DistoétColumbia in its June 30, 2012 decision invaiidgthe gainful employment regulation.

The new gainful employment regulation that becosféective July 1, 2015 provides that an institutioay establish a new program’s
Title IV eligibility by updating the list of the Btitutior's programs maintained by the Department of Educakliowever, an institution me



not update its list of eligible programs to inclumgainful employment program, or a gainful empleytnprogram that is substantially
similar to a failing or zone program that the ington voluntarily discontinued or became ineligibthat was subject to the three-year loss of
eligibility until that three-year period expires.

Administration of Financial Aid

Several of the Program Integrity Regulations refatthe administration of financial aid, includitige areas of the definition of online
attendance, definition of credit hours, measurmtisfactory academic progress, return of fedenadiéuvhen a student withdraws, verification
and disbursement.

College Affordability and Transparency Lists

The Department of Education publishes on its webists of the top 5% of institutions, in each afencategories, with (1) the highest
tuition and fees for the most recent academic y@athe highest “net price” for the most recerd@amic year, (3) the largest percentage
increase in tuition and fees for the most recemelacademic years, and (4) the largest percemtagese in net price for the most recent
three academic years. An institution that is plamea list for high percentage increases in eithigion and fees or in net price must submit a
report to the Department of Education explainirgiticreases and the steps that it intends to takedluce costs. The Department of
Education will report annually to Congress on thiesétutions and will publish their reports onwgbsite. The Department of Education also
posts lists of the top 10% of institutions in eathhe nine categories with lowest tuition and feethe lowest net price for
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the most recent academic year. Under HEOA, neéprieans average yearly price actually chargeddstime, full-time undergraduate
students who receive student aid at a higher ehcmstitution after such aid is deducted.

College Ratings

On December 19, 2014, the Department of Educasisumed a framework for a college ratings systemchvhiill include predominantly
four-year and two-year institutions. Although thedartment of Education has not chosen the metratsaill be used in the ratings system, it
is considering using metrics such as completioestatansfer rates, and labor market success. €parbnent of Education requested that the
public submit comments on its proposed frameworkéyruary 17, 2015.

Executive Order on Military and Veterans Benefitedg?ams

In April 2012, President Obama issued an Execulixder directing the Departments of Defense andrdateAffairs, along with other
Executive Branch agencies, to implement actiorestablish “Principles of Excellence” to apply tasedtional institutions receiving funding
from Federal military and veterans educational Benprograms, including benefits programs provittgdhe Pos8/11 Gl Bill and the tuitio
assistance program. The Principles of Excellenia¢erdroadly to information regarding tuition am@$, academic quality, marketing, and
state authorization requirements. The PrincipleSxafellence require federal agencies to createntmalized complaint system for students
receiving federal military and veterans educatidrelefits to register complaints that relevant agencan track and address. On January 30,
2014, the Department of Defense, Department of rdateAffairs, Department of Education, and Fed&ratle Commission, in collaboration
with the CFPB and the U.S. Department of Justinepanced a new online student complaint systerasdorice members, veterans, and their
families to report negative experiences at edunatistitutions and training programs administeriing Post-9/11 Gl Bill, Department of
Defense tuition assistance programs, and othetamyitrelated education benefit programs.

Credit Hours

In 2009, the Department of Education’s Office adpactor General criticized three accreditors, idiclg Middle States, for deficiency in
their oversight of institutions’ credit hour alld@ms. In June 2010, the House Education and L&leonmittee held a hearing concerning
accrediting agencies’ standards for assessingdutistis’ credit hour policies. The Program Integiegulations define the term “credit hour”
for the first time and require accrediting ageneipd/or state authorization agencies to reviewehability and accuracy of an institution’s
credit hour assignments. If an accreditor doecapntply with this requirement, its recognition by thepartment of Education could be
jeopardized. If an accreditor identifies systematisignificant noncompliance in one or more ofrestitutior’s programs, the accreditor must
notify the Secretary of Education. If the DepartingifEducation determines that an institution is @ucompliance with the credit hour
definition, the Department of Education could impdiabilities or other sanctions.

Additional Information

We maintain a website at www.strayereducation.cbime. information on our website is not incorporapgdeference in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K and our web address is incladedn inactive textual reference only. We makdahla on our website our Annual
Report on Form 1-K, Quarterly Reports on Form -Q, Current Reports on Forn-K and amendments to those reports filed or furr



pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchahcteas soon as reasonably practicable after werelgcally file such material with, or
furnish it to, the SEC.

The Form 10-K and other reports filed with the SE&&@ be read or copied at the SEC’s Public ReferBooen at 100 F Street, N.E.,
Washington, D.C. 20549. Information on the operatibthe Public Reference Room can be obtainedabing the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.
The SEC maintains a website that contains repmrtsy and information statements, and other infdiomaregarding issuers that file
electronically with the SEC; the website addressvisv.sec.gov.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our common stock involves a high degrferisk. You should carefully consider the follogwisk factors and all other
information contained in this Annual Report on FatiK or in the documents incorporated by refereherein before making an investment
decision. The occurrence of any of the followirglsicould materially harm our business, advers#fgcathe market price of our common
stock and could cause you to suffer a partial anptete loss of your investment. Additional riskspresently known to us or that we
currently deem immaterial may also materially hasor business and operations. See “Cautionary Ndiegarding Forward-Looking
Statements.”

Risks Related to Extensive Regulation of Our Busirss

If we fail to comply with the extensive regulatorgquirements for our business, we could face sigrdgint monetary liabilities, fines ani
penalties, including loss of access to federal stntlloans and grants for our students.

As a provider of higher education, we are subjeextensive regulation on both the federal ane d&atels. In particular, the Higher
Education Act and related regulations subject Stréjniversity and all other higher education ingigns that participate in the various Title
IV programs to significant regulatory scrutiny.

The Higher Education Act mandates specific regmatesponsibilities for each of the following conmgmts of the higher education
regulatory triad: (1) the federal government thilotige Department of Education; (2) the accreditiggncies recognized by the U.S. Secrt
of Education (Secretary of Education) and (3) staliecation regulatory bodies. In addition, otheiefal agencies, such as the Consumer
Financial Protection Bureau and Federal Trade Casion, and various state agencies and state Aytei@eneral enforce consumer
protection laws applicable to post-secondary edmcal institutions.

The regulations, standards and policies of thegalatory agencies frequently change, and changes imew interpretations of, applical
laws, regulations, standards or policies could reaweaterial adverse effect on our accreditatioth@irzation to operate in various states,
permissible activities, receipt of funds underdiV programs or costs of doing business.

Title IV requirements are enforced by the Departheéicducation and in some instances by privatfifes. If we are found to be in
noncompliance with these laws, regulations, stadwlar policies, we could lose our access to TWl@ilogram funds, which would have a
material adverse effect on our business. Findifiggoncompliance also could result in our being megfuto pay monetary damages, or being
subjected to fines, penalties, injunctions, restnis on our access to Title IV program funds ¢reotcensure that could have a material
adverse effect on our business.

Our failure to comply with the Department of Edudah’s gainful employment regulations could resulh iheightened disclosure
requirements and loss of Title IV eligibility.

To be eligible for Title IV funding, academic pragns offered by proprietary institutions of highdueation must prepare students for
gainful employment in a recognized occupation. Aftéederal court invalidated the previously addmainful employment regulations, the
Department of Education convened a negotiated rakémg to propose new regulations related to gaiaefaployment — which negotiations
did not yield the required consensus. On March2R34, the Department of Education published a MaticProposed Rulemaking for public
comment, and on October 31, 2014, the DepartmeBtio€ation published the final regulation, effeetduly 1, 2015. The new requirements
include two debt-to-earnings measures, consistirgn@nnual income rate and a discretionary incaatee The annual income rate measures
student debt in relation to earnings, and the digmmary income rate measures student debt iroeléd discretionary income. Under the new
regulation, a program would pass if the program&igates:

* have an annual income rate that does not exceed8%;

* have a discretionary income rate that does notezk28%.

31



In addition, a program that does not pass eithéneftlebt-toearnings metrics, and that has an annual incoradeatveen 8% and 12%,
a discretionary income rate between 20% and 30%idnrme considered to be in a warning zone. A prognauld fail if the program’s
graduates have an annual income rate of 12% otegraad a discretionary income rate of 30% or gred program would become Title V-
ineligible for three years if it fails both metrit@r two out of three consecutive years, or fallpass at least one metric for four consecutive
award years. The regulations provide a means bghndm institution may challenge the Departmentaidation’s calculation of any of the
debt metrics prior to loss of Title IV eligibility.

At this point, we do not have adequate guidanatata from the Department of Education to deterrdiefénitively the full financial or
operational impact, if any, of the new regulatigaéng forward. The requirements associated withgiaful employment regulations will
substantially increase our administrative burdetdsauld affect our student enroliment, persistearwd retention. Further, although the
regulations provide opportunities for an institatim correct any potential deficiencies in a proggzior to the loss of Title IV eligibility, the
continuing eligibility of our academic programs Mik affected by factors beyond management'’s cbstrch as changes in our graduates’
employment and income levels, changes in studanblwang levels, increases in interest rates, anmobua other factors. Even if we were able
to correct any deficiency in the gainful employmamtrics in a timely manner, the disclosure requésts associated with a progranfailure
to meet at least one metric may adversely affectestt enrollments in that program and may adversi#ct the reputation of our institution.

Congressional examination of for-profit post-seccany education could lead to legislation or otherggrnmental action that may
negatively affect the industry.

In 2010, the U.S. Congress increased its focuspprofit higher education institutions, includinggarding participation in Title IV
programs and oversight by the Department of Defensaition assistance for military service membeaftending for-profit colleges. Since
June 2010, the Senate HELP Committee, formerlple8enator Harkin, has held hearings to examin@tberietary education sector, and
the final report of the majority Members of the Quittee was critical of the industry as a whole.tker, the report recommended various
reforms which would affect proprietary institutiopsrticipation in Title IV programs. Other Comngitts of the U.S. Congress have also held
hearings into, among other things, the standardgeascedures of accrediting agencies, credit handsprogram length, the portion of federal
student financial aid going to proprietary insfibats, and the receipt of veterans and military etioo benefits by students enrolled at
proprietary institutions. Strayer University ha®perated with these inquiries. A number of leg@isthave variously requested the GAO to
review and make recommendations regarding, amdrey things, recruitment practices, educationaligyatudent outcomes, the sufficier
of integrity safeguards against waste, fraud angalin Title IV programs, and the percentage oppetary institutionsrevenue coming fro
Title IV and other federal funding sources. GACessled four reports on for-profit post-secondarycatan: first, a report in August 2010
(subsequently revised in November 2010) that catedubased on a three-month undercover investigatiat employees at a non-random
sample of 15 proprietary institutions (not inclugli@trayer University) made deceptive statemengsudents about accreditation, graduation
rates, job placement, program costs, and finaadialsecond, a report in October 2010 criticalhaf Department of Education’s efforts to
enforce the ban on incentive payments; third, antap October 2011 critical of the student expecie and instructor performance at some
for-profit online institutions; and fourth, a repan December 2011 comparing various student oussoatross proprietary, non-profit, and
public institutions.

On July 30, 2012, the then-majority of the Senaft Pl Committee, led by Democrats, released a repuitled “For Profit Higher
Education: The Failure to Safeguard the Federadment and Ensure Student Success.” The repatuctad that Strayer University’s
“performance, measured by student withdrawal rate®)e of the best of any company examined, aagpears that students are faring we
this degree based for-profit college.” S. Rept.-BI2While acknowledging that for-profit institutie have a role to play in higher education,
the report criticized the proprietary institutiordustry on many fronts. The report ultimately reaoended several measures for reform which
could change the participation of proprietary itgtdbns in Title IV funding, including the followmn

* Tie access to federal financial aid to minimum stntcdbutcome thresholds.
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» Prohibit institutions from funding marketing, adtising and recruiting activities with federal firzal aid dollars.
« Expand the reporting period for cohort default sdieyond three years.
* Require that for-profits receive 15% of revenuesifmon-federal sources.

e Extend the ban on incentive compensation to inchldemployees of institutions of higher educatiang clarify that this ban extends
to numeric threshold or qu«-based termination policie

The report was not adopted by the full Committeel the Republican minority released their own réputicizing the majority’s
investigation in many aspects, including that it dot include a review of all institutions of higheducation. In addition, on July 30, 2014, the
ther-majority of the Committee released a report emt“Is the New G.I. Bill Working?: F«Profit Colleges Increasing Veteran Enrollm



and Federal Funds,” detailing the amount of Pak1-@I Bill Benefits paid to for-profit colleges,dluding Strayer, and recommending
that the 90/10 rule be “strengthened.” The reptates that at least four companies, including ®irdiappear to be receiving close to or more
than half of their reported non-federal financial @venue on the 10 side of the equation from-Bkt Gl Bill benefit funds.” Of the top ten
proprietary institutions mentioned receiving sughds, Strayer University was noted as receivingairthe lowest amounts of Post 9/11 Gl
Bill funds.

On September 21, 2012, a group of Democratic senatmte a letter to the Federal Trade Commissiging it to evaluate the marketing
practices utilized by many proprietary institutidghsough the use of third-party lead generatorgaddition, legislation was introduced in the
Senate by then Senator Harkin in April 2012 thatildgrevent institutions from using Title IV funés marketing activities. Similar
legislation may be introduced in the 1 €ongress.

This increased activity is expected to continue mag result in legislation, further rulemaking atieg participation in Title IV program
and other governmental actions. In addition, comegenerated by Congressional activity may adweedéct enrollment in and revenues of
for-profit educational institutions. Limitations d¢ne amount of federal student financial aid foicktour students are eligible under Title IV
could materially and adversely affect our business.

We are dependent on the renewal and maintenanc@&ité IV programs.

The Higher Education Act (“HEA”), which is the laauthorizing Title IV programs, is subject to peiodeauthorization. Congress
completed the most recent reauthorization throughipte pieces of legislation and may reauthorize HEA in a piecemeal manner in the
future. Additionally, Congress determines the fungdievel for each Title IV program on an annuali®a&ny action by Congress that
significantly reduces funding for Title IV prograrasthe ability of our school or students to paptte in these programs could materially
harm our business. A reduction in government fugdivels could lead to lower enrollments at ourosdtand require us to arrange for
alternative sources of financial aid for our studehower student enroliments or our inability toamge such alternative sources of funding
could adversely affect our business. The autoneatiension of the HEA expired at the end of 2014,@angress extended funding for Title
IV programs through September 30, 2016, througiCihiesolidated and Further Continuing Appropriatiéas, 2015.

We are subject to compliance reviews, which, ifyhresulted in a material finding of non-compliancepuld affect our ability to
participate in Title IV programs.

Because we operate in a highly regulated industeyare subject to compliance reviews and claimsooafcompliance and related lawst
by government agencies, accrediting agencies artighrties, including claims brought by third paston behalf of the federal government.
For example, the Department of Education regulestyducts program reviews of educational institigithrat are participating in Title IV
programs, and the Office of Inspector General efllepartment of Education regularly conducts awatits investigations of such institutions.
In August 2010, the Secretary of Education annodiptans to increase the number of program revigns8o to 300 in 2011. The
Department of Education could limit, suspend, omiaate our participation in Title IV programs onpose other penalties such as requiring
us to make
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refunds, pay liabilities, or pay an administratfiree upon a material finding of non-compliance. Department of Education conducted four
campus-based program reviews of Strayer Univessagministration of Title IV programs in three eatind the District of Columbia, with
one on-site review conducted August 18-20, 2014;amsite review conducted September 8-11, 201dhwaa on-site reviews conducted
September 22-26, 2014. On October 21, 2014, theuepnt of Education issued an Expedited Final RirogReview Determination Letter
for one of the program reviews conducted the wdekeptember 22, 2014, closing the program revietls wd further action required by us.
On November 17, 2014, we received a Program ReRieport for the program review conducted in Augxt4, and provided a response to
the Department of Education on December 15, 20Ml@duary 7, 2015, we received a Final ProgrameReldetermination letter from that
August 2014 review, closing the program review withfurther action required by us. In addition, hhe on-site portions of the other two
program reviews have concluded, Strayer Univelsity yet to receive determination letters from thes@ews.

On August 21, 2014, the Department of EducatioifiadtStrayer University that its Program Partidipa Agreement was approved on a
provisional basis because of the Department of &ilut's open program reviews. On October 1, 20%lraceived a fully executed
provisional Program Participation Agreement whittbves us to continue to administer Title IV aid dugh June 30, 2017.

If we fail to maintain our institutional accreditabn or if our institutional accrediting body losesecognition by the Department of
Education, we would lose our ability to participabe Title IV programs.

The loss of Strayer University’s accreditation bidie States or Middle Statds'ss of recognition by the Department of Educatimuld
render Strayer University ineligible to participateTitle IV programs and would have a material e effect on our business. In additior
adverse action by Middle States other than loggofeditation, such as issuance of a warning, doavg a material adverse effect on our
business. Increased scrutiny of accreditors bys#aetary of Education in connection with the Dapant of Educatic’s recognition proces



may result in increased scrutiny of institutionsdmgreditors or have other adverse consequences.

If we fail to maintain any of our state authorizains, we would lose our ability to operate in th&ate and to participate in Title IV
programs there.

Each Strayer University campus is authorized toaeeand to grant degrees, diplomas or certifidayethe applicable education agency
of the state where the campus is located. Such atahorization is required for students at themeso participate in Title IV programs. The
loss of state authorization would, among othergbjmender Strayer University ineligible to pagpate in Title IV programs at least at those
state campus locations, limit Strayer Universigfility to operate in that state and could haveatenial adverse effect on our business.

Effective July 1, 2011, Department of Educationutaions provide that a proprietary institutiorc@nsidered legally authorized by a state
if the state has a process to review and appregyiatt on complaints concerning the institutiorcliiding enforcing applicable state laws,
the institution complies with any applicable stapproval or licensure requirements consistent thighnew rules. However, if a state in which
Strayer has a physical campus fails to comply énftiiure with the provisions of the new rule oisdo provide the University with legal
authorization, it could limit Strayer Universityability to operate in that state and have a mdtadeerse effect on our operations.

If we fail to obtain recertification by the Departent of Education when required, we would lose ouiléity to participate in Title IV
programs.

An institution generally must seek recertificatfoom the Department of Education at least everysixrs and possibly more frequently
depending on various factors, such as whethepitagisionally certified. The Department of Educatimay also review an institution’s
continued eligibility and certification to particpe in Title IV programs, or scope of eligibilitp@ certification, in the event the institution
undergoes a change in ownership resulting in agdahcontrol or expands its activities in certaiays, such as the
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addition of certain types of new programs, or,ént&@in cases, changes to the academic credemizlg bffers. In certain circumstances, the
Department of Education must provisionally certfyinstitution. The Department of Education mayhditw our certification if it determin
that we are not fulfilling material requirements émntinued participation in Title IV programs.thfe Department of Education does not
renew, or withdraws our certification to participan Title IV programs, our students would no lonige able to receive Title IV program
funds, which would have a material adverse effacbar business.

Each institution participating in Title IV programsust enter into a Program Participation Agreemstit the Department of Education.
Under the agreement, the institution agrees tofothe Department of Education’s rules and regotetigoverning Title IV programs. On
October 1, 2014, Strayer University received arceted provisional Program Participation Agreemeith the Department of Education
allowing it to participate in Title IV programs uindune 30, 2017. The Program Participation Agregmes issued on a provisional basis
because of the Department of Education’s open progeviews. Under the provisional agreement, thg material additional condition that
the University must comply with is obtaining Depaent of Education approval for substantial changedyding the addition of any new
location, level of academic offering, or non-dega@e degree programs.

A failure to demonstrate financial responsibilityr@administrative capability may result in the loss eligibility to participate in Title IV
programs.

To be eligible to participate in Title IV progran&rayer University must comply with specific stards and procedures set forth in the
Higher Education Act and the regulations issuedetiveder by the Department of Education, includamgong other things, certain standards
of financial responsibility and administrative chjiy. If we fail to demonstrate financial respdiiity or maintain administrative capability
under the Department of Education’s regulationscaudd lose our eligibility to participate in Titl¥ programs or have that eligibility
adversely conditioned, which would have a matexiblerse effect on our business.

Student loan defaults could result in the loss digibility to participate in Title IV programs.

In general, under the Higher Education Act, an atlanal institution may lose its eligibility to gaipate in some or all Title IV programs
if, for three consecutive federal fiscal years, 3@@tnore of its students who were required to begpaying their student loans in the relev
federal fiscal year default on their payment byehd of the second federal fiscal year followingttfiscal year. Institutions with a cohort
default rate equal to or greater than 15% for drth@three most recent fiscal years which dateasadlable are subject to a 30-day delayed
disbursement period for first-year, first-time hmwers. Because its cohort default rate for 2010 1#a%%, Strayer disburses Direct Loans in
this manner. In addition, an institution may lotseeligibility to participate in some or all Titl® programs if its default rate for a federal fig
year was greater than 40

If we lose eligibility to participate in Title IVq@egrams because of high student loan default ratesuld have a material adverse effect
on our business. Strayer Univer’s thre-year cohort default rates for federal fiscal ye2189, 2010, and 2011, were 13.8%, 15.1%,



14.9%, respectively. The average official cohoftid# rates for proprietary institutions nationatere 22.7%, 21.8%, and 19.1% for
federal fiscal years 2009, 2010, and 2011, respedgti

Our school could lose its eligibility to participatin federal student financial aid programs or beqvisionally certified with respect to
such participation if the percentage of our reversiderived from those programs were too high.

A proprietary institution may lose its eligibilitp participate in the federal Title IV student fivtdal aid program if it derives more than
90% of its revenues, on a cash basis, from Titlpildgrams for two consecutive fiscal years. A pigtary institution of higher education that
violates the 90/10 Rule for any fiscal year willfdaced on provisional status for up to two fispadirs. Using the formula specified in the
Higher Education Opportunity Act, we derived appnaately 74% of our cash-basis revenues from thesgrams in 2013. Certain members
of Congress have proposed to revise the 90/10 t&weunt tuition assistance provided by the Depantnof Defense and veterans education
benefits, along with Title IV
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revenue, toward the 90% limit and to reduce thé im85% of total revenue, which proposals coulkmit difficult for us to comply with tt
90/10 rule. If we were to violate the 90/10 Ruke toss of eligibility to participate in the fedestudent financial aid programs would have a
material adverse effect on our business.

Our failure to comply with the Department of Edudah’s incentive compensation rules could result $anctions and other liability.

If we pay a bonus, commission or other incentivenpent in violation of applicable Department of Edtion rules or if the Department of
Education or other third parties interpret our cemgation practices as such, we could be subjesztrictions or other liability, which could
have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our failure to comply with the Department of Edudah’s misrepresentation rules could result in saims and other liability.

The Higher Education Act prohibits an institutidrat participates in Title IV programs from engagingsubstantial misrepresentatioaf
the nature of its educational program, its finahclerges, or the employability of its graduatese Department of Education’s Program
Integrity Regulations, which took effect July 1,12Q interpret this provision to prohibit any statarhon those topics, made by the institution
or a third party that provides educational programarketing, advertising, recruiting, or admissisasvices to the institution, that has the
likelihood or tendency to confuse. Although the WCBurt of Appeals for the District of Columbia i@n June 5, 2012, that the term
“substantial misrepresentation” could not includeet nondeceitful statements that are merely camfushe misrepresentation rules are
expansive. In the event of substantial misrepresgient, the Department of Education may revoke atitirtion’s program participation
agreement, limit the institution’s participationTitle IV programs, deny applications from the ington such as to add new programs or
locations, initiate proceedings to fine the ingtan or limit, suspend, or terminate its eligibjlio participate in Title IV programs. If the
Department of Education or other third partiesrimtet statements made by us or on our behalf ia b®lation of the new regulations, we
could be subject to sanctions and other liabilithich could have a material adverse effect on oginess.

Our failure to comply with the Department of Edudan’s credit hour rule could result in sanctions a@hother liability.

In 2009, the Department of Education’s Office adpactor General criticized three accreditors, idiclg Middle States, for deficiency in
their oversight of institutions’ credit hour alld@ms. In June 2010, the House Education and L&leonmittee held a hearing concerning
accrediting agencies’ standards for assessingutistis’ credit hour policies. The Program IntegiRegulations define the term “credit hour”
for the first time and require accrediting ageneied state authorization agencies to review thahiéity and accuracy of an institution’s
credit hour assignments. If an accreditor doe<apntply with this requirement, its recognition by thepartment of Education could be
jeopardized. If an accreditor identifies systematisignificant noncompliance in one or more ofrestitutior’s programs, the accreditor must
notify the Secretary of Education. If the DepartingiEducation determines that an institution is @ucompliance with the credit hour
definition, the Department of Education could imgdiabilities or other sanctions, which could havmaterial adverse effect on our business.

Our failure to comply with the Jeanne Clery Disclase of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime $tits Act or Title 1X of the
Education Amendments of 1972 could result in samcts and other liability.

Strayer University must comply with the campus saéend security reporting requirements as welltagrorequirements in the Jeanne
Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Casn@rime Statistics Act, or Clery Act, includingeat changes made to the Clery Ac
the Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act @12, which was signed into law on March 7, 2013.Apnil 1, 2014, a negotiated
rulemaking committee reached consensus on propegethtions, and on October 20, 2014, the DepattwieBducation promulgated final
regulations implementing the recent amendmentisedlery Act. In addition,

36



the Department of Education has interpreted TKlef the Education Amendments of 1972, or Title tX categorize sexual violence as a
form of prohibited sex discrimination and to reguimstitutions to follow certain disciplinary pratgres with respect to such offenses. Failure
to comply with Clery Act or Title IX requirements cegulations thereunder could result in actiorth®yDepartment of Education to require
corrective action, fine the University or limit suspend its participation in Title IV programs, keblead to litigation, and could harm the
University’s reputation.

We are subject to sanctions if we fail to calculatecurately and make timely payment of refunds ofid IV program funds for student
who withdraw before completing their educationalqgram.

The Higher Education Act and Department of Educatagulations require us to calculate refunds @auned Title IV program funds
disbursed to students who withdraw from their etiooal program before completing it. If refunds ad properly calculated or timely paid,
we may be required to post a letter of credit whidn Department of Education or be subject to sanstor other adverse actions by the
Department of Education, which could have a mdtadserse effect on our business.

Investigations, legislative and regulatory developnts and general credit market conditions relatedthe student loan industry may
result in fewer lenders and loan products and inased regulatory burdens and costs.

The HEOA contains new requirements pertinent tati@hships between lenders and institutions. 2@t Department of Education
promulgated regulations that address these rekdtips, and state legislators have also passedybeeonsidering legislation related to
relationships between lenders and institutiongddition, new procedures introduced and recomméenrdamade by the Consumer Financial
Protection Bureau create uncertainty about whefloegress will impose new burdens on private stulderdters. These developments, as'
as legislative and regulatory changes such as tietesting to gainful employment and repayment rateating uncertainty in the industry and
general credit market conditions, may cause songels to decide not to provide certain loan praglaad may impose increased
administrative and regulatory costs. Such actiauddcreduce demand for and/or availability of ptévaducation loans, decrease Strayer
University’s non-Title IV revenue and thereby ingse Strayer University’s 90/10 ratio and have aenedtadverse effect on our business.

We rely on one or more third parties to administeur participation in Title IV programs and failur¢o comply with applicable
regulations by a third party or by us could causs o lose our eligibility to participate in TitleM programs.

Until September 30, 2011, Global Financial Aid $egg, Inc. assisted us with the administrationwfmarticipation in Title IV programs,
and other third parties continue to assist us wftler aspects of our participation in the Titlegkdgrams. Because Strayer University is
jointly and severally liable to the Department afu€ation for the actions of th-party servicers, failure of such servicers to ctymyith
applicable regulations could have a material adveffect on Strayer University, including loss bf#ility to participate in Title IV
programs. If any of the third-party servicers digioue providing such services to us, we may nadlide to replace them in a timely, cost-
efficient, or effective manner, or at all, and veild lose our ability to comply with the requirent®of the Title IV programs, which could
adversely affect our enrollment, revenues and tesdiloperations.

Since September 30, 2011, we have directly adrei@dtStrayer University’s participation in Title programs. If our financial aid
personnel, processes, and quality assurance pnesefdil to comply with applicable regulation, sdafiure could have a material adverse
effect on Strayer University, including loss ofggtiility to participate in Title IV programs.

Our business could be harmed if we experience augition in our ability to process student loans uedthe Federal Direct Loan
Program.

We collected the majority of our fiscal year 20&tht consolidated net revenue from receipt of Tiddinancial aid program funds,
principally from federal student loans under theétal Direct Loan Program. Any processing disrugiby the Department of Education r
affect our students’ ability to obtain student
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loans on a timely basis. If we experience a disoagh our ability to process student loans throtigh Federal Direct Loan Program, either
because of administrative challenges on our patiemability of the Department of Education togess the volume of direct loans on a
timely basis, our business, financial conditiosutes of operations and cash flows could be adiyees® materially affected.

Our business could be harmed if Congress makes aemto the availability of Title IV funds.

We collected the majority of our fiscal year 20&tht consolidated net revenue from receipt of Tidinancial aid program fund:



principally from federal student loans under theétal Direct Loan Program. Changes in the avaitgtwf these funds or a reduction in
the amount of funds disbursed may have a matetisrae effect on our enrollment, financial condificesults of operations and cash flows.
Congress eliminated further federal direct subsidiibans for graduate and professional studend$ &dy 1, 2012. On August 9, 2013,
Congress passed legislation that ties interess @teTitle IV loans to the rate paid on U.S. Trepdfionds. Interest rates are set every Jifly 1
for loans taken out from Julystto June 3¢ of the following year. In April 2011, Congress elivated year-round Pell Grant awards
beginning with the 2011-2012 award year and in 201%2, Congress reduced eligibility for Pell Grainten 18 semesters to 12 semesters. To
date these changes have not had a material impamirdousiness, but future changes in the avaitiploif Title 1V funds could impact
studentsiability to fund their education and thus may havaaderial adverse effect on our enrollment, finahcondition, results of operatic
and cash flows.

Risks Related to Our Business
Our enrollment rate is uncertain, and we may not bble to assess our future enrollments effectively.

Our growth depends on a number of factors, inclgidticreased unemployment and the resulting lowefigence in job prospects, and
many of the regulatory risks discussed above. l2We revised our business model to acknowledgergrowth or reductions in
enrollments. Our enrollment in 2015 will be affettey legislative uncertainty, regulatory activiagnd market conditions. Until legislative,
regulatory, and market uncertainty are resolveshay be difficult to assess whether and to whagrexhere is an impact on our long-term
growth prospects. In 2013, we closed physical lonatto better align our resources with our curgtatlent enrollments. Although we may
continue to invest in new campuses and to pursustoategic goals in the future, there can be sarasce as to what our growth rate will be
or as to the steps we may need to take if regylatod legislative matters are not clarified or #dnket conditions do not stabilize.

Opening new campuses and adding new services apeéent on our forecast of the demand for adult-med post-secondary
education and on regulatory approvals.

Establishing new locations and adding new serwvieggire us to expend significant resources, indganaking human capital and
financial capital investments, incurring marketagenses and reallocating other resources. Sigodisant growth in enrollment in new
campuses is required for them to become profitatlewillingness to add new campuses depends oahilitly to predict growth in
enrollment. The recent activity by the DepartmédrEducation and the U.S. Congress has introducedrtainties into our business model
has slowed our pace of opening of new campusesyardb not currently have plans to open new cangims2015. To open a new location,
we are required to obtain appropriate federalestatd accrediting agency approvals, which mayoneliioned or delayed in a manner that
could significantly affect our growth plans. We nahassure investors that we will continue to opew campus locations or add new sen
in the future.

Our future success depends in part upon our abilioyrecruit and retain key personnel.

Our success to date has been, and our continuaugssiwill be, substantially dependent upon ouitabd attract and retain highly
qualified executive officers, faculty and admirédtrs and other key personnel. If we cease to gmpiy of these integral personnel or fail to
manage a smooth transition to new personnel, asinbss could suffer.
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Our success depends in part on our ability to upeland expand the content of existing academic prags and develop new programs
in a cost-effective manner and on a timely basis.

Our success depends in part on our ability to wpdatl expand the content of our academic progrdevelop new programs in a cost-
effective manner and meet students’ needs in dyttimanner. Prospective employers of our graduateasingly demand that their entry-
level employees possess appropriate technologicabther skills. The update and expansion of oistiey programs and the development of
new programs may not be received favorably by stigj@rospective employers or the online educatiarket. If we cannot respond to
changes in industry requirements, our businesshaadversely affected. Even if we are able to dgvatceptable new programs, we may
not be able to introduce these new programs aklguas students require due to regulatory condsainas quickly as our competitors
introduce competing new programs.

Our financial performance depends in part on our #iby to continue to develop awareness of the acaieprograms we offer among
working adult students.

The continued development of awareness of the atageograms we offer among working adult studéntgitical to the continued
acceptance and growth of our programs. If we aeblento continue to develop awareness of the progjrae offer, this could limit our
enrollments and negatively impact our business.fél@wing are some of the factors that could prewss from successfully marketing our
programs:

« the emergence of more successful competitors;



« customer dissatisfaction with our services and Eog;
« performance problems with our online systems; and

» our failure to maintain or expand our brand or oflaetors related to our marketing.

Congressional and other governmental activities &damage the reputation of Strayer University ahighit our ability to attract and
retain students.

Since 2010, the U.S. Congress has increased itis fut proprietary educational institutions, inchgladministration of Title IV programn
military assistance programs, and other federajnams. The Department of Education has indicatégbiogress that it intends to increase its
regulation of and attention to proprietary eduagaianstitutions, and the Government Accountabilifffice has released several reports of
investigations into proprietary educational ingidos. These and other governmental activitiedudiog new regulations on program integ
and gainful employment, even if resulting in no @dbe findings or actions against Strayer, singlgwnulatively could affect public
perception of investor-funded higher education, agenthe reputation of Strayer University, and limit ability to attract and retain students.

We face strong competition in the post-secondaryeation market.

Post-secondary education in our market area idyhigimpetitive. We compete with traditional puldiad private two-year and four-year
colleges, other for-profit schools and alternatiteekigher education, such as employment and myilgarvice. Public colleges may offer
programs similar to those of Strayer Universita &wer tuition level as a result of governmentsidies, government and foundation grants,
tax-deductible contributions and other financial soanset available to proprietary institutions. Sorhi@eur competitors in both the public a
private sectors have substantially greater findraaid other resources than we do. Congress, tharbegnt of Education, and other agencies
require increasing disclosure of information tosumers. While we believe that Strayer Universitgviides valuable education to its stude
we cannot predict the bases on which individuadettitss and potential students will choose amongahge of educational and other options
available to them. This strong competition couldeadely affect our business.
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Strayer University relies on exclusive proprietatights and intellectual property, and competitorsap attempt to duplicate Strayer
programs and methods.

Third parties may attempt to develop competing pots or duplicate or copy aspects of Strayer Usityés curriculum, online library,
quality management and other proprietary conteny. #uch attempt, if successful, could adverselgafbur business. In the ordinary course
of its business, Strayer develops intellectual prigpof many kinds that is or will be the subjettopyright, trademark, service mark, patent,
trade secret or other protections. Such intellégit@perty includes but is not limited to Strayecsurseware materials for classes taught
online and business know-how and internal processdgrocedures developed to respond to the reneires of its various education
regulatory agencies.

Seasonal and other fluctuations in our operatings@ts could adversely affect the trading price afracommon stock.

Our business is subject to seasonal fluctuatiohgcause our operating results to fluctuate foprarter to quarter. This fluctuation may
result in volatility or have an adverse effect ba tharket price of our common stock. We experieand,expect to continue to experience,
seasonal fluctuations in our revenue. Historically, quarterly revenues and income have been lawdise third quarter (July through
September) because fewer students are enrolledgdilié summer months. We also incur significaneesps in the third quarter in preparing
for our peak enrollment in the fourth quarter (®eothrough December), including investing in oaland campus infrastructure necessal
support increased usage. These investments radluttuations in our operating results which corddult in volatility or have an adverse
effect on the market price of our common stockaddition, the online education market is a rapalplving market, and we may not be able
to forecast accurately future enrollment growth esncenues.

Regulatory requirements may make it more diffictdt acquire us.

A change in ownership resulting in a change of mmif Strayer would trigger a requirement for ndifieation of Strayer University by
the Department of Education for purposes of pauditton in federal student financial aid programsg\aew of Strayer University’s
accreditation by Middle States and reauthorizatib8trayer University by certain state licensingl ather regulatory agencies. If we
underwent a change of control that required appioyany state authority, Middle States or any fatlagency, and any required regulatory
approval were significantly delayed, limited or aeh there could be a material adverse effect arability to offer certain educational
programs, award certain degrees, diplomas or iwatéfs, operate one or more of our locations, adenthin students or participate in Title IV
programs, which in turn could have a material asweffect on our business. These factors may diggeuakeover attempt



Capacity constraints or system disruptions to Seayniversity s computer networks could damage the reputatiorStfayer University
and limit our ability to attract and retain studeat

The performance and reliability of Strayer Univirsi computer networks, especially the online ediooal platform, is critical to our
reputation and ability to attract and retain studeAny system error or failure, or a sudden agdificant increase in traffic, could result in
the unavailability of Strayer University’'s computegtworks. We cannot assure you that Strayer Usiityetincluding its online educational
platform, will be able to expand its program infrasture on a timely basis sufficient to meet dedhfar its programs. Strayer University's
computer systems and operations could be vulnetatigerruption or malfunction due to events beayds control, including natural disast
and telecommunications failures. Any interruptiorStrayer University’s computer systems or openaticould have a material adverse effect
on our ability to attract and retain students.

Strayer University’s computer networks may be vulalele to security risks that could disrupt operati® and require it to expend
significant resources.

Strayer University’'s computer networks may be vedibde to unauthorized access, computer hackerspuiemviruses and other security
problems. A user who circumvents security meascwesd misappropriate proprietary information or ainterruptions or malfunctions in
operations. As a result, Strayer University
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may be required to expend significant resourcgsdtect against the threat of these security besaohto alleviate problems caused by these
breaches.

The personal information that we collect may be matable to breach, theft or loss that could advdysaffect our reputation and
operations.

Possession and use of personal information in parations subject us to risks and costs that daaich our business. We collect, use,
retain large amounts of personal information regaydur students and their families, including sbsiecurity numbers, tax return
information, personal and family financial data @neldit card numbers. We also collect and mairgaisonal information of our employees
in the ordinary course of our business. Some sfgibisonal information is held and managed by iceveendors. Although we use security
and business controls to limit access and usersbpal information, a third party may be able t@wmnvent those security and business
controls, which could result in a breach of studeremployee privacy. In addition, errors in therage, use or transmission of personal
information could result in a breach of studenémployee privacy. Possession and use of persdioafiation in our operations also subjects
us to legislative and regulatory burdens that coetglire notification of data breaches and restnictuse of personal information. We cannot
assure you that a breach, loss or theft of persofamation will not occur. A breach, theft or ®ef personal information regarding our
students and their families or our employees thaeld by us or our vendors could have a matediadige effect on our reputation and results
of operations and result in liability under statel dederal privacy statutes and legal actions atesiuthorities and private litigants, any of
which could have a material adverse effect on ogirtess.

Strayer University, with its online programs, opées in a highly competitive market with rapid techliegical changes and it may not
compete successfully.

Online education is a highly fragmented and contipetimarket that is subject to rapid technologid@nge. Competitors vary in size and
organization from traditional colleges and univiéesi, many of which have some form of online ediaceprograms, to for-profit schools,
corporate universities and software companies gimogionline education and training software. Weeetgghe online education and training
market to be subject to rapid changes in technefo@trayer University’'s success will depend omlii$ity to adapt to these changing
technologies.

We may not be able to complete or integrate anyfatacquisitions successfully.

As part of our growth strategy, we expect to coasigklective acquisitions. We cannot assure invesat we will be able to complete
successfully any acquisitions on favorable termshat if we do, we will be able to integrate susfally the personnel, operations and
technologies of any such acquisitions. Our faibloreomplete or integrate successfully future adtjoiss could disrupt our business and
materially and adversely affect our profitabilitydaliquidity by distracting our management and esgpes and increasing our expenses. In
addition, because an acquisition is considerechagd in ownership and control of the acquired tutstin under applicable regulatory
standards, we must seek approval from the Depattaidtducation if the acquired institution partiatps in Title IV programs, and most
applicable state agencies and accrediting ageanigpossibly other regulatory bodies when we aecaririnstitution. If we were unable to
obtain such approvals of an institution we acquitegbending on the size of that acquisition, thédtfe could have a material adverse effect
on our business.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments



There are no SEC staff comments on our periodic &p0Grts which are unresolved.

Item 2. Properties

Except for five campus facilities which we own, @ampus and administrative facilities are leasad.f@xilities are located
predominantly in the Eastern United States, anctorporate headquarters is located at 2303 Dutke$o8 Blvd., Herndon, VA 20171. Our
leases generally range from five to 10 years with  two renewal options for extended terms. ABedember 31, 2014, we leased 93
campus and administrative

41

facilities consisting of approximately 1.7 milli@guare feet. The facilities that we own consisagfroximately 110,000 square feet.

As announced in October 2013, we closed approxigna@ephysical locations predominantly in the MidszeMost of these locations,
currently representing approximately 265,000 sqéeeeof our 1.7 million square feet under leass/ehremaining lease obligations ranging
from two to eight years. We are evaluating variopgons to address unused facility space includingets, both short-term and long-term,
and lease buyouts.

We evaluate current utilization of our facilitiesdaanticipated enrollment to determine facility d@eWe do not anticipate any significant
addition of campus or administrative space in 2015.

For more information regarding our ongoing leasmimitments, see Notes to Consolidated FinanciakStants below.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are involved in litigationcaather legal proceedings arising out of the ondirtaurse of our business. There are no
pending material legal proceedings to which wesaitgect or to which our property is subject.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Sto&kholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Sedaities

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Globake8&eMarket under the symbol “STRA.” The followirgpte sets forth, for the
periods indicated, the high, low, and closing gaiees of our common stock, as reported on the NAQIStock Market.

High Low Close
2013
First Quarte! $64.7( $46.31 $48.3¢
Second Quarte $58.5¢ $44.5( $48.8¢
Third Quartel $52.8¢ $39.2% $41.5:
Fourth Quarte $49.9¢ $33.6¢ $34.47
2014
First Quarte! $51.12 $33.5] $46.4:
Second Quarte $59.9¢ $41.5: $52.51

Third Quartel $61.5¢ $47.47 $59.8¢



Fourth Quarte $79.71 $57.21 $74.2¢

As of January 31, 2015, there were 10,903,341 stereommon stock outstanding, and approximatefyidlders of record.

We did not pay a regular quarterly dividend in 2012014. Whether to declare dividends and the atnoludividends to be paid in the
future will be reviewed periodically by our Boarfiirectors in light of our earnings, cash flonndincial condition, capital needs, investment
opportunities and regulatory considerations. Ther® requirement or assurance that common divislanlll be paid in the future.

Peer Group Performance Graph

The following performance graph compares the cutivéatockholder return on our common stock sineednber 31, 2009 with The
NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S.) Index and a sdetermined peer group consisting of Apollo Grauag, (APOL), Career Education
Corporation (CECO), Corinthian Colleges, Inc. (COCDeVry, Inc. (DV), and ITT Educational Servicésc. (ESI). At present, there is no
comparative index for the education industry. Tgreph is not deemed to be “soliciting material't@be filed with the SEC or subject to the
SEC'’s proxy rules or to the liabilities of Sectib® of the Securities Exchange Act, and the grajphl ebt be deemed to be incorporated by
reference into any of our prior or subsequentdgiunder the Securities Act or the Securities EnghaAct.
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Comparison of 60 Month Cumulative Total Return*
Among Strayer Education, Inc.
The NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S.) Index and a Peer Grop
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Name 12/31/08  12/31/10  12/31/11 12/31/12  12/31/13  12/31/14
Strayer Education, Ini 10C 72 46 26 16 35
NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S. 10C 117 11& 132 184 20¢

Peer Grouj 10C 69 53 25 36 36



* The comparison assumes $100 was invested on Dec&hh2009 in our common stock, the NASDAQ Stockikéa (U.S.) Index and tt
peer companies selected by

There were no sales by us of unregistered secudtieing the year ended December 31, 2014.

In November 2003, our Board of Direct@ngthorized us to repurchase shares of common stamgéen market purchases from time to t
at the discretion of our management, depending arken conditions and other corporate considerationg Board of Directors amended the
program on various dates, increasing the repurcimeeint authorized and extending the expiratioe.dst December 31, 2014,
approximately $70.0 million of our share repurchasthorization was remaining for repurchases thnabg end of 2015. All of our share
repurchases were effected in compliance with RO 118 under the Exchange Act. Some repurchasestiemremade in accordance with a
share repurchase plan adopted by us under RuleILOb8er the Exchange Act. Our share repurchasegromay be modified, suspendel
terminated at any time by us without notice.
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A summary of our share repurchases since the ilecepf the plan is as follows:

Total Average

number of dollar price Cost of share
shares paid per repurchases

repurchased share (millions)
2003 32,35( $ 99.57 & 3.2
2004 346,44 106.1: 36.¢
2005 410,07: 92.5¢ 38.C
2006 349,06t 100.3¢ 35.C
2007 260,81¢ 146.0¢ 38.1
2008 603,38: 180.8¢ 109.1
2009 451,61: 177.3¢ 80.1
2010 687,34( 168.0¢ 115.¢
2011 1,581,44. 128.1¢ 202.7
2012 484,84 51.5¢€ 25.C
2013 495,08 50.4¢ 25.C
2014 — — —
Toial 5,702,45  $124.2¢ § 708

We did not make any share repurchases in 2014.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth, for the periods atdhe dates indicated, selected consolidateddiahand operating data. The financial
information has been derived from our consolidditegihcial statements. The information set fortholels qualified by reference to and
should be read in conjunction with our consoliddtrdncial statements and notes thereto and “Mamagés Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” atfter information included elsewhere or incorpaidig reference in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

(Dollar and share amounts in thousands, except peshare data)
Income Statement Data:
Revenue: $636,73: $627,43: $561,97¢ $503,60( $446,04.




Costs and expense

Instruction and educational supp 269,55 292,00: 300,09¢ 310,44t 236,30:

Marketing 70,27( 74,29! 71,86¢ 75,42¢ 66,49¢

Admissions advisor 25,277 26,53: 26,37¢ 20,39( 16,66

General and administratic 55,851 55,46¢ 50,05¢ 64,63’ 44,83t
Total costs and expens 420,96: 448,29: 448,39: 470,89¢ 364,29:
Income from operation 215,77: 179,14: 113,58 32,70 81,74%
Investment and other incor 1,22¢ 152 4 2 117
Interest expens — 3,77: 4,61¢€ 5,41¢ 5,24¢
Income before income tax 216,99¢ 175,52: 108,97! 27,28¢ 76,61¢
Provision for income taxe 85,73¢ 69,47¢ 43,04¢ 10,85¢ 30,26(
Net income $131,26( $106,04: $ 65,93( $ 16,42¢ $ 46,35¢
Net income per share:

Basic $ 9.7¢ ¢ 8.91 $ 5.7¢ $ 15t $ 4.3¢

Diluted § 9.7¢C § 8.8¢ § 5.7¢ § 15t § 43¢
Weighted average shares outstandin¢

Basic 13,42¢ 11,90¢ 11,39( 10,58¢ 10,56

Diluted @ 13,53t 11,94 11,44( 10,62« 10,65(
Other Data:
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 17,30¢ $ 21,52¢ $ 23,97: $ 35,56 $ 20,63(
Stock-based compensation expel $ 11,98 $ 13,23« $ b5,46¢ $ 9,291 $ 9,452
Capital expenditure $ 46,01t $ 29,99: $ 24,73 $ 8,72¢ $ 6,902
Cash dividends per common share (p $ 3.2t $ 4.0C ¢§ 4.0 $ — & —
Average enrolimen¥) 56,00: 53,90 49,32: 43,96¢ 40,25¢
Campuse¥) 84 92 97 10C 79
Full-time employee) 2,09¢ 2,14( 2,01¢ 1,48t 1,45t
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At December 31,

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

(In thousands)
Balance Sheet Data:

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable sect $ 76,49: $ 57,13 $ 47,517 $ 94,76( $162,28:
Working capitak® 62,20" 17,48 46,63 82,18: 140,31¢
Total asset 235,17¢ 231,13 227,79. 254,26t 307,81!
Long-term debi — 90,00( 121,87 118,75l 112,50(
Other lon¢-term liabilities 12,64« 21,65¢ 21,90¢ 51,45¢ 46,24¢
Total liabilities 59,174 188,84( 186,80 215,36« 215,08
Total stockholder equity 176,00« 42,29: 40,98¢ 38,90: 92,73:

(a) Diluted weighted average shares outstanding inabatiemon shares issued and outstanding, and thévdiimpact of restricted stoc
restricted stock units, and outstanding stock ogtiasing the Treasury Stock Meth

(b) Reflects average student enroliment for the foadamic terms for each year indicated.

(c) Reflects number of campuses offering classes dihiadourth quarter of each year indicated. In ®et®2013, we announced that
approximately 20 physical locations would be cloatdr classes were taught in the fall academiuo.t@he University now has 79
physical campuse

(d) Reflects full-time employees including full-timecfalty as of December 31 of each year.



(e) Working capital is calculated by subtracting cutrébilities from current assets.

Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

You should read the following discussion in conjurteon with “Selected Financial Data,” our consolidatd financial statements and
the notes thereto, the “Cautionary Notice Regardind-orward-Looking Statements,” Item 1A entitled “Risk Factors” and the other
information appearing elsewhere, or incorporated byeference, in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Background and Overview

We are an education services holding company thies&trayer University. Strayer University is astitution of higher education which
offers undergraduate and graduate degree prographysical campuses, predominantly located in thetérn United States, and online.

Set forth below are average enrollment, full-timiidn rates, revenues, income from operationsinmeeime, and diluted net income per
share for the last three years.

Year Ended December 31

2012 2013 2014
Average enrollmer 49,32 43,96¢ 40,25¢
% Change from prior ye: (8%) (11% (8%)
Full-time tuition for a new student (per cour ¢ 1,65( ¢ 1,70( ¢ 1,42
% Change from prior ye: 4% 3% (16%)
Revenues (in thousanc $561,97¢ $503,60( $446,04:
% Change from prior ye: (10% (10% (11%)
Income from operations (in thousan $113,58" $ 32,70 $ 81,747
% Change from prior ye: (37% (71% 15C%
Net income (in thousand $ 65,93( $ 16,42¢ $ 46,35¢
% Change from prior ye: (38% (75% 182%
Diluted net income per sha ¢ b5.7¢ ¢ 15 $ 4.3t
% Change from prior ye: (35% (73% 181%
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Strayer University derives approximately 96% ofrégenue from tuition for educational programs, thke delivered in person at a
physical campus or delivered online. The academir pf the University is divided into four quartendich approximately coincide with the
four quarters of the calendar year. Students makenpnt arrangements for the tuition for each coatdhe time of enrollment. Tuition
revenue is recognized in the quarter of instructiba student withdraws from a course prior to ptetion, the University refunds a portion
the tuition depending on when the withdrawal occlitstion revenue is shown net of any refunds, di#twals, corporate discounts, emplo
tuition discounts and scholarships. The Univeralgp derives revenue from other sources such #somkrelated income, certificate reven
certain academic fees, licensing revenue, and atheme, which are all recognized when earned.

We record tuition receivable and deferred revemu®tir students upon the start of the academic. tBevause the University’s academic
guarters coincide with the calendar quarters,aethd of the fiscal quarter (and academic ternit)ptureceivable represents amounts due
from students for educational services alreadyigexiand deferred revenue represents advance p&yfmam students for academic servi
to be provided in the future. Based upon past éepee and judgment, the University establishedlawance for doubtful accounts with
respect to accounts receivable. Any uncollected@aticmore than one year past due is charged aghmstlowance. Accounts less than one
year past due are reserved according to the lerigiime the balance has been outstanding. In eskéld our reserve amounts, we &
consider the status of students as to whethertaheg are currently enrolled for the next termwadl as the likelihood of recovering balan
that have previously been written off, based ontostiorical experience. Our bad debt expense &sa@eptage of revenues for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014, was 4.2%, 4PB8 8%, respectively.

Below is a description of the nature of the costduded in our operating expense categories:

« Instruction and educational support expengenerally contain items of expense directly attidbie to educational activities of the
University. This expense category includes salaiesbenefits of faculty and academic administstas well as administrative
personnel who support and serve student intedestsuction and educational support expenses atdade costs of educational
supplies and facilities, including rent for campasilities, certain costs of establishing and n&imng computer laboratories and all



other physical plant and occupancy costs, withetteeption of costs attributable to the corporafieed. Bad debt expense incurred on
delinquent student account balances is also indlim@struction and educational support exper

« Marketing expenseinclude the costs of advertising and productiomafketing materials and related personnel costs.
« Admissions advisory expendnclude salaries, benefits and related costs afquarel engaged in admissions.

e General and administration expenseslude salaries and benefits of management andiogegs engaged in accounting, human
resources, legal, regulatory compliance, and atbgrorate functions, along with the occupancy aheérorelated costs attributable to
such functions

Investment income consists primarily of earningd exalized gains or losses on investments, andesitexpense consists of interest
incurred on our outstanding borrowings, unused Ixénvg credit facility fees, and amortization of defed financing costs.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€ahdition and Results of Operations” discussesonsolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordeititaccounting principles generally accepted m thnited States of America. The
preparation of these consolidated financial statésmequires management to make estimates and pritgrthat affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expensestancktated disclosures of contingent assets ahilities. On an ongoing basis, management
evaluates its estimates and judgments related @lldwance for doubtful accounts; income tax Bimns; the useful lives of property and
equipment; redemption rates for scholarship progrdair value of future contractual operating leabégations for facilities that have been
closed; valuation of deferred tax
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assets, goodwill, and intangible assets; valuaifavur interest rate swap arrangement; forfeitates and achievability of performance tar
for stockbased compensation plans; and accrued expenseaghbhaent bases its estimates and judgments onitédtexperience and varic
other factors and assumptions that are believee t@asonable under the circumstances, the reduwitisich form the basis for making
judgments regarding the carrying values of asseddiabilities that are not readily apparent frothey sources. Management regularly revi
its estimates and judgments for reasonablenesmagdnodify them in the future. Actual results méffed from these estimates under
different assumptions or conditions.

Management believes that the following critical@atting policies are its more significant judgmesntsl estimates used in the prepare
of its consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition- Like many traditional institutions, Strayer Uniggy offers its educational programs on a quaystem having
four academic terms, which coincide with our qudyténancial reporting periods. Approximately 9686our revenues during the year ended
December 31, 2014 consisted of tuition revenuetidrurevenue is recognized ratably in the quarténgtruction as the University provides
academic services in a given term, whether deld/@rgerson at a physical campus or online. Tuitewrenue is shown net of any refunds,
withdrawals, corporate discounts, scholarshipseangloyee tuition discounts. The University alsovtEs revenue from other sources such as
textbook-related income, certificate revenue, ¢era@ademic fees, licensing revenue, and othemicavhich are all recognized when
earned. At the start of each academic term, ditiakdeferred revenue) is recorded for academiuises to be provided and a tuition
receivable is recorded for the portion of the @uitnot paid upfront in cash. Any cash receivedrgndhe start of an academic term is reco
as deferred revenue.

Students finance their education in a variety ofsyand historically about three quarters of oudsents participated in one or more
financial aid programs provided through Title IVtbe Higher Education Act. In addition, many of ewerking adult students finance their
own education or receive full or partial tuitionmdursement from their employers. Those students ark veterans or active duty military
personnel have access to various additional govemivfnnded educational benefit programs.

A typical class is offered in weekly increments oaden-week period and is followed by an examdé&is who withdraw from a course
may be eligible for a refund of tuition chargesdzhsen the timing of the withdrawal. We use the shit$ last date of attendance for this
purpose. Student attendance is based on physes¢mee in class for gground classes. For online classes, attendancéstooslogging intc
one’s course shell and performing an academicalgted activity (e.g., engaging in a discussiort posaking a quiz).

If a student withdraws from a course prior to costiph, a portion of the tuition is refundable degieg on when the withdrawal occurs.
Our refund policy typically permits students whorguete less than half of a course to receive agbaetfund of tuition for that course.
Refunds reduce the tuition revenue that would twkerwise been recognized for that student. SimedJhiversitys academic terms coinci
with our financial reporting periods, all refunde @rocessed and recorded in the same quartee astiresponding revenue. The amount of
tuition revenue refundable to students may vargtas the stude’s state of residenc



For undergraduate students who withdraw from &lirtbourses during the quarter of instruction, e&ssess collectibility of tuition and
fees for revenue recognition purposes. In additimacease revenue recognition when a studentviithdraws from all of his or her courses
in the academic term. Tuition charges billed incadance with our billing schedule may be greatantthe pro rata revenue amount, but the
additional amounts are not recognized as revenigssithey are collected in cash.

For students who receive funding under Title I\ida are subject to return provisions as definethbyDepartment of Education. If Title
IV funds are returned to the Department of Educatibe student is responsible for paying the amotiptorated tuition charged to him or
her. Loss of financial aid eligibility during anaemic term is rare and would normally coincidenfite student’s withdrawal from the
institution. As discussed above, we cease revesnagnition upon a student’s withdrawal from alhig or her classes in an academic term.

49

New students registering in credit-bearing coumsesy undergraduate program for the summer 2013 tiscal third quarter) and
subsequent terms qualify for the Graduation Furitereby qualifying students earn tuition creditd tr@ redeemable in the final year of a
student’s course of study if he or she successfaltyains in the program. Students must meet alefJniversity’s admission requirements
and not be eligible for any previously offered delnship program. Our employees and their dependertsot eligible for the program. To
maintain eligibility, students must be enrolledaitvachelois degree program, and they become ineligible togiaate in the Graduation Fui
if they have more than one consecutive term of aib@rdance. In their final academic year, qualifystudents will receive one free course
every three courses that were successfully conthl&evenue and the value of the benefit earnedugiests participating in the Graduation
Fund is recognized based on a systematic and ahtidincation of the cost of honoring the beneditreed and claimed to each of the
underlying revenue transactions that result in prsg by the student toward earning the benefit.€Btienated value of awards under the
Graduation Fund that will be recognized in the fatis based on historical experience of a studgugtsistence in completing his or her co
of study and earning a degree. Each quarter wasisse methodologies and assumptions underlyingstimates and to date any adjustrr
to our estimates have not been material.

Tuition receivable —We record estimates for our allowance for doutdfidounts for tuition receivable from students pritpdased on
our historical collection rates by age of receieallet of recoveries, and consideration of othleweant factors. Our experience is that payr
of outstanding balances is significantly influentsdwvhether the student returns to the instituierwe require students to make payment
arrangements for their outstanding balances poientollment. Therefore, we monitor outstandingjdnireceivable balances through
subsequent terms, increasing the reserve on slmhdea over time as the likelihood of returninghe institution diminishes and our
historical experience indicates collection is lidssly. We periodically assess our methodologigsefstimating bad debts in consideration of
actual experience. If the financial condition of students were to deteriorate, resulting in evigesf impairment of their ability to make
required payments for tuition payable to us, adddl allowances or write-offs may be required. Bgr2013 and 2014, our bad debt expense
was 4.4% and 3.8% of revenue, respectively. A chamgur allowance for doubtful accounts of 1% adg$ tuition receivable as of
December 31, 2014 would have changed our inconme @qperations by approximately $0.3 million.

Accrued lease and related costsWe estimate potential sublease income and vaga@tyds for space that is not in use, adjustirg ou
estimates when circumstances change. If we erttesubleases at rates that are substantially diffehan our current estimates, we will
adjust our liability for lease and related costs2014, we reduced our estimated liability for &saby approximately $4.1 million.

Other estimates— We record estimates for certain of our accrugzeages and income tax liabilities. We estimateudedul lives of our
property and equipment. We periodically assess\giloahd intangible assets for impairment. We asghe value of our interest rate swap
arrangement every quarter. We periodically reviewassumed forfeiture rates and ability to achjgedormance targets for stock-based
awards and adjust them as necessary. Should aetudis differ from our estimates, revisions to accrued expenses, carrying amount of
goodwill and intangible assets, stock-based congigmsexpense, and income tax liabilities may lpiired.

Results of Operations

In 2014, we generated $446.0 million in revenuel B decrease compared to 2013, primarily as dt refsa decline in average
enrollment of 8% and a 3% decline in revenue pedestt. Income from operations was $81.7 millio2@i4, and includes approximately $
million in adjustments to reduce our liability flmsses on facilities no longer in use. Income fiagmarations in 2013 was $32.7 million, which
includes $54.7 million in charges related to thenpany’s restructuring implemented in the fourthrieraof that year. Net income in 2014
was $46.4 million, including approximately $2.6 Iioih in after-tax benefits from adjustments to @@mpany’s liability for facilities no
longer in use, compared to $16.4 million for themeaeriod in 2013, which reflected approximatel@.$3million in after-tax charges related
to the restructuring. Diluted earnings per share $435 compared to $1.55 for the same period 113 2Diluted earnings per share for 2014
includes $0.23 per share in after-tax earninggaélto the reduction of the
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Company’s liability for losses on facilities no per in use, and diluted earnings per share for 268fl&cts approximately $3.10 per share
in after-tax charges related to the restructuring.

Key enrollment trends by quarter were as follows:

% Change % Change
in total in new
Academic Term 2013 2014 students students
Winter 47,92¢ 41,09¢ -14% —-2%
Spring 46,13( 41,327 -1C% 1%
Summel 38,621 36,40: —-6% 2%
Fall 43,19: 42,18¢ 2% 5%
Average 43,96¢ 40,25¢ -8% 2%

Although we do not know for sure why our enrollméends and that of the proprietary higher educadiector generally have been
volatile, we believe that sustained levels of higiemployment (even though declining recently),résilting lower confidence in job
prospects, competition, and the high cost of aegelleducation are all contributing factors. The &3ine in our new students in 2013 had
an adverse impact on 2014 enrollment since theréeaver students from 2013 that continued theication in 2014.

In 2013, we undertook some restructuring initiagiviecluding the closing of approximately 20 phgsiocations. The revenue reduction
impact of these initiatives cannot be accuratetgheined since the University has made online elmswailable to the affected students.
However, we estimate these actions reduced ounbpgrexpenses by approximately $50 million in 204dditional information can be
found in Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Ams# of Financial Condition and Results of OpenadidWe believe these measures
others that are embedded in our strategic pristitimgether with our continuing operation at othleysical campuses, will allow us to contir
to deliver high quality, affordable education ardult in revenue and earnings growth for the Umsiteiover the long term.

In addition to the restructuring, we introduceduaiber of initiatives in response to these volaiieoliment trends. Recognizing that
affordability is an important factor in a prospeetistudent’s decision to seek a college degreeedigced our undergraduate tuition for new
students by 20% beginning in our 2014 winter acadéenm. We also introduced our Graduation Funiohid-2013, whereby qualifying
students can receive one free course for everg twarses successfully completed. The free coarseedeemable in the student’s final
academic year. These initiatives had a negativadatngn our revenue per student, which declinedr8201L4 and is expected to decline
approximately 4-5% in 2015.

Partially as a result of these measures, we expariesome new student growth in 2014. Should teessiment trends continue, we
believe total enroliment growth could occur in #ezond quarter of 2015, followed by revenue graagproximately two quarters later. Un
this scenario, we would expect revenue for theyfedlr 2015 to be flat to down 2%, revenue per stutebe down 4-5%, and operating
expenses to be flat to up 2%. Accordingly, if catrenroliment trends continue, we expect earnimgs/th after 2015.
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The following table sets forth certain income statet data as a percentage of revenues for thedgsandicated:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2013 2014
Revenue: 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Costs and expense
Instruction and educational supp 53.4 61.7 53.C
Marketing 12.¢ 15.C 14.€
Admissions advisor 4.7 4.C 3.7
General and administratic 8.6 12.¢ 10.1
Total costs and expens 79.¢ 93.t 81.7
Income from operation 20.2 6.5 18.2
Investment incom — — —
Interest expens 0.8 1.1 1.1
Income before income tax 19.4 5.4 17.2

Provision for income taxe 7.7 2.1 6.8




Net income 11.7% 3.5% 10.4%
Effective tax rate 39.5% 39.8% 39.5%

Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared To Year Endékecember 31, 2013

Enrollment.Average enroliment decreased 8% to 40,254 studentse year ended December 31, 2014 from 43,96%esits for the same
period in 2013.

RevenueskRevenues decreased 11% to $446.0 million in 204 $503.6 million in 2013, principally due to areaage enroliment
decline of 8% and a decline in revenue per stude8%. The decline in revenue per student is Igrgétibutable to a new pricing structure
which reduced tuition for new undergraduate stuslbgitapproximately 20%, and made them eligibleofar Graduation Fund. Revenues for
undergraduate students declined 17% in 2014, dbyesndecrease in enroliment of 10% and a declii8win revenue per student, resulting
mostly from the new pricing structure for new urgtaduate students. We expect this decline in rev@eu student to continue at the
undergraduate level as we enroll more new undeugtadstudents over time. For graduate studentspums increased 1% in 2014, driven by
an increase in revenue per student of 7%, offset dgcline in enroliment of 6%. The increase irdgede revenue per student was due
primarily to lower scholarships compared to the sgr@riod in 2013.

Instruction and educational support expensestruction and educational support expenses dsedebir4.1 million, or 24%, to $236.3
million in 2014 from $310.4 million in 2013, primbrdue to lower personnel and facility costs feliag the restructuring in the fourth
quarter of 2013, when we incurred a charge of $86ln for lease abandonments, asset write-@ff&l severance charges. The decrease in
instruction and educational support expenses Gstly attributable to lower average enrolimen2014. We also recorded $4.1 million in
adjustments in 2014 resulting from changes initheng and expected income from settlements andwggdcsublease agreements signed
during the period, and may record additional adpestts in the future. Instruction and educationgpsut expenses as a percentage of
revenues decreased to 53.0% for 2014 from 61.72013.

Marketing expenseMarketing expenses decreased $8.9 million, or 129%66.5 million in 2014 from $75.4 million in 201Blarketing
expenses as a percentage of revenues decreasely $6dl4.9% in 2014 from 15.0% in 2013. We expgeatontinue to invest in our
marketing efforts such that marketing expensesimagase in absolute terms and as a percentageefiue in 2015 as compared to 2014.

Admissions advisory expensesdmissions advisory expenses decreased by $3idmbr 18%, to $16.7 million in 2014 from $20.4
million in 2013, primarily as a result of lower gennel costs following the restructuring in therfowquarter of 2013. Admissions advisory
expenses as a percentage of revenues decreas&@otéoB 2014 from 4.0% in 2013.
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General and administration expens€&eneral and administration expenses decreased 8ilid, or 31%, to $44.8 million in 2014 from
$64.6 million in 2013 primarily due to lower persmh and facility costs following the restructuriimgthe fourth quarter of 2013, when we
incurred a charge of $18.2 million for lease abamdents, asset write-offs, and severance chargeer@eand administration expenses as a
percentage of revenues decreased to 10.1% forfei12.8% in 2013.

Income from operationsgncome from operations increased $49.0 million1 0%, to $81.7 million in 2014 from $32.7 milliom 2013.
Although we had $57.6 million less revenue in 26&#hpared to 2013, our operating expenses werefisanily lower following the
restructuring in the fourth quarter of 2013, whemincurred a charge of $54.7 million, as discusdmale.

Interest expensdnterest expense decreased slightly to $5.2 millic2014 from $5.4 million in 2013, primarily due bower average debt
outstanding in 2014.

Provision for income taxetncome tax expense increased $19.4 million, or ,48%30.3 million in 2014 from $10.9 million in 28,
primarily due to the increase in income before medaxes attributable to the factors discussedealour effective tax rate was 39.5% for
2014 compared to 39.8% for 2013, reflecting th@gadtion of certain state tax benefits in 2014. ¥¥pect our tax rate for 2015 to be
approximately 39.0%.

Net incomeNet income increased $30.0 million to $46.4 milliar2014 from $16.4 million in 2013 due to the fastdiscussed above.
Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared To Year Endékecember 31, 2012

Enroliment.Average enrollment decreased 11% to 43,969 studientise year ended December 31, 2013 from 49,8R&%ests for the
same period in 2012.

RevenuesRevenues decreased 10% to $503.6 million in 2048 $562.0 million in 2012 principally due to lowererage enrollment. |



late 2013, we introduced a new pricing structurenfawv undergraduate students which could signiflgarduce their cost of tuition. A
shift in enrollment toward students eligible foe tlower tuition will result in lower revenue peudent in the future.

Instruction and educational support expensastruction and educational support expenses isere&10.3 million, or 3%, to $310.4
million in 2013 from $300.1 million in 2012. Thiadrease is primarily attributable to lease abandonts) asset write-offs, and severance
charges of $36.2 million associated with the restming, partially offset by lower overall persotinelated costs due to lower average
enrollment. These expenses as a percentage ofuevarcreased to 61.7% in 2013 from 53.4% in 2012.

Marketing expenseMarketing expenses increased $3.5 million, or 59%%5.4 million in 2013 from $71.9 million in 201Phis increase
is primarily due to the full year impact in 2013raw markets opened during 2012. These expensepasentage of revenues increased to
15.0% in 2013 from 12.8% in 2012, largely due taketing expenses increasing while tuition reverdesdined.

Admissions advisory expensesdmissions advisory expenses decreased by $#i0mor 23%, to $20.4 million in 2013 from $26.4
million in 2012, primarily as a result of lower gennel costs from consolidating Global Online cenie the fourth quarter of 2012.
Admissions advisory expenses as a percentage efueg decreased to 4.0% in 2013 from 4.7% in 20&2althese expenses declining at a
higher rate than tuition revenues.

General and administration expens€gneral and administration expenses increased $ii#ién, or 29%, to $64.6 million in 2013 from
$50.1 million in 2012. The increase is primarilyriiutable to one-time lease abandonment, ass&-off, and severance charges of $18.2
million associated with the restructuring initiasy partially offset by lower overall personneltet costs. General and administration
expenses as a percentage of revenues increas2d@¥ ih 2013 compared to 8.9% in 2012 due to te&penses increasing while tuition
revenues declined. We believe general and adnatistrexpenses will decline in the aggregate irftigre as a result of savings expected to
be achieved as a result of the restructuring, whiaharily will affect instruction and educatiorslpport expenses and general and
administration expenses.
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Income from operationgncome from operations decreased $80.9 milliory, 186, to $32.7 million in 2013 from $113.6 milliom 2012,
primarily due to the $54.7 million incurred withetiestructuring and due to the aforementioned facto

Investment incoménvestment income decreased from approximatelydi® 2012 to approximately $2,000 in 2013.

Interest expensénterest expense increased $0.8 million, or 179%%5td million in 2013 compared to $4.6 million iQ12, primarily due
to higher average debt outstanding in 2013.

Provision for income taxefncome tax expense decreased $32.1 million, or ¥6%10.9 million in 2013 from $43.0 million in 221
primarily due to the decrease in income beforedattibutable to the factors discussed above.effactive tax rate was 39.8% for 2013 as
compared to 39.5% for 2012.

Net incomeNet income decreased $49.5 million, or 75%, to $haillion in 2013 from $65.9 million in 2012 due tioe factors discussed
above.

Seasonality

Our quarterly results of operations tend to vagnsicantly within a year because of student emnelht patterns. Enrollment is generally
lowest in the third quarter, or summer term. TH®feing table sets forth our enrollment by term 8012, 2013 and 2014:

Enrollment by Term

Term 2012 2013 2014

Winter 50,43: 47,92¢ 41,09¢
Spring 50,89¢ 46,13( 41,32]
Summet 44,23¢ 38,62: 36,40
Fall 51,721 43,19: 42,18¢
Average 49,32 43,96¢ 40,25¢

The following table sets forth our revenues on artprly basis for the years ended December 31,2013 and 201¢



Quarterly Revenues
(dollars in thousands)

2012 2013 2014
Three Months Ended Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
March 31 $149,53: 27% $137,50¢ 27% $116,46¢ 26%
June 3( 146,25 26 131,98( 26 112,74 25
September 3 124,26( 22 110,03: 22 100,75t 23
December 3. 141,93: 25 124,08: 25 116,07( 26
Total for yeai $561,97¢ 10C% $503,60( 100% $446,04: 100%

Costs generally are not affected by the seasontdrfaas much as enroliment and revenue, and argladie-time items, do not vary
significantly on a quarterly basis.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2014, we had cash and cash eqotsadé $162.3 million compared to $94.8 million#cember 31, 2013. At Decem
31, 2014, most of our cash was invested in bankniylet deposits.

On November 8, 2012, we entered into a second aedesad restated revolving credit and term loaneageant which is secured by our
assets and provides for a $100.0 million revoldredit facility and $125.0 million term loan fagjliwith a maturity date of December 31,
2016. Proceeds from the new term loan were uspdy®ff $77.5 million outstanding under our exigtierm loan facility. The amended
credit facility is used for general corporate pug®including share repurchases. The amended faettitly is
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guaranteed by the University and is secured bytanhally all of the personal property and asséth® Company and the guarantor.

The term loan portion of the amended credit facikitquires quarterly principal payments of $781,B88inning in March 2013 through
December 2014, and $1,562,500 beginning in Mardb28ny remaining principal is payable in full ore@mber 31, 2016. Borrowings bear
interest at LIBOR or a base rate plus a marginiranfyom 2.00% to 2.50%, depending on our levenrage. For the term loan facility, we ¢
party to an interest rate swap arrangement thasfilie interest rate on the entire term loan fgali an effective rate ranging from 2.85% to
3.35%, depending on our leverage ratio. An unusadngitment fee ranging from 0.30% to 0.40%, depemdin our leverage ratio, accrues
unused amounts under the revolving portion of theraded credit facility. During the year ended Deben81, 2013 and 2014, we paid cash
interest of $4.6 million and $4.4 million, respeely. We had no outstanding balance under the pewolving credit facility on the day of
closing. At December 31, 2014, we had $118.8 mmlboitstanding under the term loan and no balantstamding under the revolving credit
facility. We are obligated to repay a total of $Blion of the term loan over the next four calenduarters.

The amended credit facility contains customary caves, representations, warranties, events of efad remedies upon default. In
addition, we must satisfy certain financial maigtiece covenants, including a total leverage ratamwveerage ratio and a U.S. Department of
Education financial responsibility composite scaf& were in compliance with all applicable covesarlated to the amended credit facility
as of December 31, 2014.

Our net cash from operating activities decreasaDitl to $77.6 million, as compared to $84.1 millfor the same period in 2013. The
decrease in net cash from operating activitieslamgly the result of the change in income fromrapiens from $32.7 million in 2013, or
$87.4 million excluding $54.7 million in chargedated to our restructuring, to $77.6 million in 20ivhich excludes $4.1 million in
adjustments to our liability for losses on fadd#ino longer in use. Capital expenditures were S@l®n for the year ended December 31,
2014, compared to $8.7 million for the same penpa013. Capital expenditures for the year endiegdnber 31, 2015 are expected to be in
the range of $10-12 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we did potchase any shares of common stock and, at Dece3hp2014, had $70 million in
repurchase authorization to use through Decembhe2@®5. We did not pay a regular quarterly dividendither 2013 or 2014.

In 2014, bad debt expense as a percentage of rewessi3.8% compared to 4.4% for 2013. Days salestamaling was 15 days at the end
of the fourth quarter of 2014 compared to 14 daybeend of the fourth quarter of 2013.

We have available $100 million under our revolvangdit facility. We believe that existing cash adh equivalents, cash generated 1



operating activities, and if necessary, cash boetbunder the credit facility, will be sufficient teeet our requirements for at least the
12 months. Currently, we maintain our cash in nydSBIC-insured bank accounts. Excess cash is inddatmoney market funds, which is
included in cash and cash equivalents at Decenhet(@ 2, 2013 and 2014. We earned interest incdrfi¢,0600, $2,000 and $0.1 million in
each of the years ended December 31, 2012, 201304 respectively.

Contractual Obligations

The table below sets forth our contractual commitim@ssociated with operating leases, excludinfpasbs, and the repayment of dek
of December 31, 2014:

Payments Due By Period (in thousands

Less than More than

Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years

Operating lease $192,58"  $38,96¢ ¢ 67,48 $47,82¢ $38,31:
Term loan 118,75( 6,25( 112,50( — —

$311,33! $45,21¢ $179,98 $47,82¢ $38,31:
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Impact of Inflation
Inflation has not had a significant impact on oistdrical operations.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2014, we do not have any offuhet sheet arrangements as defined by Item 30B¢d){de Securities Exchange
Commission Regulation S-K.

ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

We are subject to the impact of interest rate charmmd may be subject to changes in the market¢saluour future investments. We
invest our excess cash in bank overnight depasitsiey market funds and marketable securities. We hat used derivative financial
instruments in our investment portfolio. Earningsfi investments in bank overnight deposits, moneyket mutual funds, and marketable
securities may be adversely affected in the fustneuld interest rates decline, although such ardenhay reduce the interest rate payable on
any borrowings under our revolving credit facili@ur future investment income may fall short of estations due to changes in interest rates
or we may suffer losses in principal if forced &l securities that have declined in market value th changes in interest rates. As of
December 31, 2014, a 1% increase or decreaseeiegtirates would not have a material impact orfudure earnings, fair values, or cash
flows related to investments in cash equivalentstaerest earning marketable securities.

Changing interest rates could also have a negatigact on the amount of interest expense we i@arNovember 8, 2012, we entered
into a second amended and restated revolving aaditerm loan agreement providing for a $100 arillievolving credit facility and a $125
million term loan facility. Borrowings under the & million revolving credit facility bear intereat LIBOR or a base rate plus a margin
ranging from 2.00% to 2.50%, depending on our lagerratio. Also on November 8, 2012, we entereglantadditional interest rate swap
arrangement for the $125 million term loan facilityt fixes our interest rate on the term loanlifggcat an effective rate ranging from 2.85%
to 3.35%, depending on our leverage ratio, fordinetion of the term loan. Although an increaseIBOR would not affect interest expense
on the term loan, it would affect interest expeoiseany outstanding balance of the revolving criaditlity and the fair value of the interest
rate swap arrangement. For every 100 basis paiotease in LIBOR, we would incur an incrementaD$illion in interest expense per year
assuming the entire $100 million revolving creditifity were utilized, but such an increase in LIB@ould not materially affect the value of
our interest rate swap.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To Board of Directors and Stockholders
Strayer Education, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the accompanying index present fairyall material respects, the financial
position of Strayer Education, Inc. and its sulagidss (the “Company”at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the resulteofdperations an
their cash flows for each of the three years inpeod ended December 31, 2014 in conformity w&itbhounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. Also in our opmithe Company maintained, in all material respextsctive internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on aitstiablished iinternal Control — Integrated Framework (20183ued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway ComimisCOSO). The Company’s management is responfabliese financial statements
and for maintaining effective internal control ofigrancial reporting and for its assessment ofetfiectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting, included in Management’s Remor Internal Control Over Financial Reporting agieg under Item 9A. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on theserfaia statements and on the Company’s internalrobaver financial reporting based on our
integrated audits. We conducted our audits in ataoore with the standards of the Public Company Beting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan erfidrp the audits to obtain reasonable assuranmat alhether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement and whether effedtiternal control over financial reporting was ntained in all material respects. Our audits
of the financial statements included examiningadast basis, evidence supporting the amounts iantbslures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &igntfestimates made by management, and evaluagngverall financial statement
presentation. Our audit of internal control oveaficial reporting included obtaining an understagdif internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weskexists, and testing and evaluating the desidmoperating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. Our auditsralkaed performing such other procedures as wesidered necessary in the circumstan
We believe that our audits provide a reasonablis basour opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; anda(idiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@iiz statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadegibecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
McLean, Virginia
February 20, 2015
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Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Tuition receivable, ne
Other current asse
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Deferred income taxe
Goodwill
Other asset
Total asset

LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Income taxes payab
Deferred revenu
Other current liabilitie:
Current portion of term loa
Total current liabilities
Term loan, less current portit
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder' equity:

STRAYER EDUCATION, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

ASSETS

" EQUITY

Common stock, par value $0.01; 20,000,000 sharb®ared; 10,797,464 and 10,903,341 shares is
and outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2014ecggely

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive incc
Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

December 31

2013 2014
$94,76(  $162,28
15,84: 16,94:
16,73¢ 17,42¢
127,34( 196,65
94,42 82,26t
17,12¢ 16,24
6,80( 6,80(
8,57¢ 5,857
$254,26( _$307,81!
$ 38,527  § 43,83
2,56¢ 1,28¢€
65€ 4,68:
281 281
3,12 6,25(
45,15 56,33
118,75 112,50(
51,45 46,24¢
215,36 215,08
10€ 10¢
7,13 14,55(
31,62 77,98t
28 88
38,90: 92,73:
$254,26( _$307,81

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.

Revenue:
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STRAYER EDUCATION, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per share data)

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2012

2013

2014

$561,97¢

$503,60(

$446,04:




Costs and expense

Instruction and educational supp 300,09¢ 310,44¢ 236,30:
Marketing 71,86¢ 75,42¢ 66,49¢
Admissions advisor 26,37 20,39( 16,66
General and administratic 50,05¢ 64,63’ 44,83
Total costs and expens 448,39: 470,89¢ 364,29:
Income from operation 113,58 32,70 81,747
Investment incom 4 2 117
Interest expens 4,61¢ 5,41¢ 5,24t
Income before income tax 108,97! 27,28¢ 76,61¢
Provision for income taxe 43,04¢ 10,85¢ 30,26(
Net income $ 65,93( $ 16,42¢ $ 46,35¢
Earnings per shar
Basic ¢ 5.7¢ ¢ 1.5¢ $ 4.3¢
Diluted $ b5.7¢ $ 15t § 4.3t
Weighted average shares outstand
Basic 11,39( 10,58¢ 10,56
Diluted 11,44( 10,62¢ 10,65(

STRAYER EDUCATION, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

For the Year Ended

December 31,

2012 2013 2014
Net income $65,93( $16,42¢ $46,35¢
Other comprehensive incorr
Change in fair value of derivative instrument, okincome ta» (12E) 764 60
Comprehensive incorr $65,80! $17,18¢ $46,41¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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STRAYER EDUCATION, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands, except share data)

Common Stock

Accumulated

Additional Other
Paid-in Retained Comprehensive
Shares Par Value Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Total
Balance, December 31, 20 11,792,45 $11¢€ $ 29t $42,49: ¢ (611) $42,29:
Tax shortfall associated with stock-based
compensation arrangemel — — (24%) — — (24%)
Repurchase of common sta (484,84) 5) (5,219 (29,787 — (25,007
Restricted stock grants, net of forfeitu 79,68¢ 1 (1) — — —
Stoclk-based compensatic — — 5,46¢ — — 5,46¢
Common stock dividenc — — — (47,329 — (47,32%)
Change in fair value of derivative instrumen
net of income ta: — — — — (12%) (12%)
Net income — — — 65,93( — 65,93(




Balance, December 31, 20 11,387,29 114 29¢ 41,31 (73€) 40,98¢
Tax shortfall associated with stock-based

compensation arrangemel — — (702) (2,865 — (3,567%)
Repurchase of common sta (495,089 ) (1,752) (23,249 — (24,999
Restricted stock forfeitures and cancellations,

net of grant: (94,750 (D] 1 — — —
Stocl-based compensatic — — 9,291 — — 9,291
Change in fair value of derivative instrument,

net of income ta: — — — — 764 764
Net income G G G 16,42¢ — 16,42¢

Balance, December 31, 20 10,797,46 10¢ 7,133 31,62¢ 28 38,90:
Tax shortfall associated with stock-based

compensation arrangemel — — (2,039 — — (2,039
Restricted stock grants, net of forfeitu 105,87 1 (@D} — — —
Stocl-based compensatic — — 9,45: — — 9,45:
Change in fair value of derivative instrument,

net of income ta: — — — — 60 60
Net income G G G 46,35¢ — 46,35¢

Ba]ance, December 31, 20 10,903,34 $109 $14,55( $ 77,985 $ 88 $ 92,73:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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STRAYER EDUCATION, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2013 2014
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income § 65,93( $16,42¢ $ 46,35¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:
Amortization of gain on sale of ass (287) (287) (280
Amortization of deferred rel 32: (462) (2,097)
Amortization of deferred financing cos 79t 78C 78C
Depreciation and amortizatic 23,97: 35,56: 20,63(
Deferred income taxe (38) (23,435 (1,036
Stoclk-based compensatic 5,46¢ 9,291 9,45:
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Tuition receivable, ne 1,744 4,02¢ 68¢
Other current asse (2,130 2,43¢ (2,862
Other asset (13%) 494 21¢
Accounts payable and accrued expel 5,67: (11€) 6,55(
Income taxes payable and income taxes recei (4,306 7,79¢ 737
Deferred revenu (14,870 2,05¢ 11,78:
Other lon¢-term liabilities (80) 29,51¢ (14,379)
Net cash provided by operating activit 82,06: 84,09: 77,55(
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipm (24,739 (8,726 (6,902
Net cash used in investing activiti (24,737) (8,726) (6,907)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Payments on term lo¢ (20,000 (3,12 (3,12
Repurchase of common sta (25,007 (24,999 —

Proceeds from term loe 47,50( — —



Payments on revolving credit facili (83,000 — —

Proceeds from revolving credit facili 63,00( — —
Common dividends pai (47,329 — —
Payment of deferred financing co (2,120 — —
Net cash used in financing activiti (66,949 (28,124 (3,125
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (9,620 47,24 67,52
Cash and cash equivale— beginning of yea 57,13] 47,51, 94,76(
Cash and cash equivale— end of yea 47517 _§94,76( _§162,28
Non-cash transaction
Purchases of property and equipment included inwatts payabli $§ 52¢ ¢ 47 $ 417

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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STRAYER EDUCATION, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Nature of Operations

Strayer Education, Inc. (the “Company”), a Marylamdporation, conducts its operations through t®Ny owned subsidiary, Strayer
University (the “University”). The University is aaccredited institution of higher education thaiides undergraduate and graduate degrees
in various fields of study through physical cammggedominantly located in the eastern UnitedeStand online. With the Company’s
focus on the student, regardless of whether ha@cbooses to take classes at a physical cammumine, it has only one reporting segment.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Financial statement presentati

The consolidated financial statements include tu@ants of the Company and its only subsidiary Uh#ersity. All intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminatdteindnsolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognitic

The Company’s educational programs are offered queaterly basis and such periods coincide withGbmpany’s quarterly financial
reporting periods. Approximately 96% of the Compamgvenues during the year ended December 31,, 20h4isted of tuition revenue.
Tuition revenue is recognized in the quarter ofrirction. Tuition revenue is assessed for collédtton a student-by-student basis
throughout the quarter of instruction, and is shawhof any refunds, withdrawals, corporate dis¢suscholarships and employee tuition
discounts. This collectibility assessment considealable sources of funds for the student inclgdrederal Financial Student Aid programs.
The Company reassesses the collectibility of tnitewvenue that it may earn based on new informatmmhchanges in the facts and
circumstances relevant to a student’s ability tp, frecluding the timing of a student’s withdrawabiin a program of study.

At the start of each academic term, a liabilityfédeed revenue) is recorded for academic servizé®tprovided and a tuition receivable is
recorded for the portion of the tuition not paidropt in cash. Any cash received prior to the stadn academic term is recorded as deferred
revenue. The estimated value of scholarship awahiish will be realized in the future is based ostbiical experience of students who are
expected to realize scholarship awards earneduaseoare successfully completed. Deferred revenaeorded as a current or long-term
liability in the consolidated balance sheets bagedhen the benefit is expected to be realizedeReass also include textbook-related
income, certificate revenue, certain academic fie@msing revenue, and other income, which aregeized when earned.

The Company’s refund policy typically permits stattewho complete less than half of a course toiveaepartial refund of tuition for
that course. Refunds reduce the tuition revenuentbald have otherwise been recognized for thatesiti Since the Company’s academic
terms coincide with its financial reporting peripdi refunds are processed and recorded withiiséinee quarter as the corresponding
revenue. The amount of tuition revenue refundabkuddents may vary based on the student’s statssimfence. Unused books and related
academic materials may be returned for a full réfwithin 21 days of the start of class; howevercphases of electronic content are not
refundable if downloaded. Revenues derived frors tee not eligible for a refund.

Graduation Func



In the third quarter of 2013, the Company introdlttee Graduation Fund, which allows new undergreelstudents to earn tuition credits
that are redeemable in the final year of a studerdurse of study if he or she successfully remiaitise program. New students registering in
credit-bearing courses in any undergraduate prodoathe summer 2013 term (fiscal third quarter) anbsequent terms qualify for the
Graduation Fund. Students must meet all of the &hsity’s admission requirements and not be eligible
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STRAYER EDUCATION, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for any previously offered scholarship program. Twmpany’s employees and their dependents ardigitie for the program. To maintain
eligibility, students must be enrolled in a bachisldegree program, and they become ineligiblestdigipate in the Graduation Fund if they
have more than one consecutive term of non-atteradan their final academic year, qualifying studewill receive one free course for every
three courses that were successfully completed.

Revenue from students participating in the Gradwa&und is recorded in accordance with the Rev&agmgnition Topic, ASC 605-50.
The Company allocates the value of benefits todseezl evenly to each of the underlying revenuestrations that result in progress by the
student toward earning the benefit. The Compaegtimate of the benefits that will be earnedanfuture is based on its historical experie
of student persistence toward completion of a euofstudy within this program and similar prografach quarter, the Company assesses
its methodologies and assumptions underlying tesmates and, to date, any adjustments to thmasts have not been material.

The table below presents activity in the Graduakand for the year ended December 31, 2014 (instods):

Balance at December 31, 20 $1,89¢
Revenue deferre 8,501
Benefit redeeme (699)
Balance at December 31, 20 $9,70¢

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash maidtaimaostly FDIC-insured bank accounts and cashsted in bank overnight deposits
and money market mutual funds. The Company plasessh and temporary cash investments with vafinaacial institutions. The
Company considers all highly liquid instrumentsghased with a maturity of three months or lest@tiate of purchase to be cash
equivalents.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company places its cash and temporary casktmeats in bank overnight deposits and money mankétial funds with various
financial institutions. Cash and cash equivaletdt@es are in excess of the FDIC insurance linfie Tompany has not experienced any
losses on its cash and cash equivalents.

Restricted Cas

A significant portion of the Company’s revenues fareded by various federal and state governmergraros. The Company generally
does not receive funds from these programs prithiécstart of the corresponding academic term.dbdmpany may be required to return
certain funds for students who withdraw from theéugdrsity during the academic term. At DecemberZ114, the Company had
approximately $0.2 million of these unpaid obligas, which are recorded as restricted cash anddedlin other current assets in the
consolidated balance sheet. There was no amouabfgafpr these obligations at December 31, 2013.

As part of commencing operations in Pennsylvani20®3, the Company was required to maintain a ‘‘imimn protective endowment” of
at least $0.5 million in an interest-bearing acdoihese funds are required as long as the Compaerates its campuses in the state. The
Company holds these funds in an interest-bearinguatt which is included in other assets.

64

STRAYER EDUCATION, INC.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Tuition Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Aautsu

The Company records tuition receivable and deferegdnue for its students upon the start of thel@wéc term. Therefore, at the end of
the quarter (and academic term), tuition receivaiigesents amounts due from students for eduedtenvices already provided and
deferred revenue represents advance payments fualenss for academic services to be provided irffuhee. Tuition receivables are not
collateralized; however, credit risk is minimizexlaresult of the diverse nature of the Universigtudent base. The University establishes an
allowance for doubtful accounts primarily basedrupastorical collection rates by age of receivahk, of recoveries. These collection rates
incorporate historical performance based on a stigleurrent enrollment status and likelihood dtife enrollment. The Company
periodically assesses its methodologies for estimdtad debts in consideration of actual experience

The Company'’s tuition receivable and allowancedimubtful accounts were as follows:

December 31

2013 2014

(% in thousands;

Tuition receivable $ 26,14¢ $25,77:

Allowance for doubtful accoun (10,307 (8,835
Tuition receivable, ne ¢ 15,84: $16,94.

Approximately $3.4 million and $1.6 million of tigh receivable is included in “Other assets” in #fiteompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2014, resfdgctieeause these amounts are expected to betedllafter 12 months.

The following table illustrates changes in the Camgs allowance for doubtful accounts for eachhef past three years:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2013 2014

(% in thousands;

Beginning allowance for doubtful accoul $ 7,27¢ $ 6,59¢ ¢ 10,30¢

Additions charged to expen 23,72¢ 22,22t 16,941

Write-offs, net of recoverie (24,417) (18,519 (18,41%)
Ending allowance for doubtful accou $ 6,59¢ $ 10,30: § 8,83t

Property and Equipmel

Property and equipment are stated at cost lessradated depreciation and amortization. In accordamith the Property, Plant and
Equipment Topic, ASC 360, the carrying values ef @ompany’s assets are re-evaluated when evenl®oges in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not bavezable. If it is determined that an impairmerssitias occurred based on expected
undiscounted future cash flows, then a loss isgeized using a fairalue based model. Through 2014, no such impairfesathad occurre:
Depreciation and amortization of property and emgpt is calculated using the straight-line metheer ahe estimated useful lives ranging
from 3 to 40 years. Depreciation and amortizatiomanted to $24.0 million, $35.6 and $20.6 milli@m the years ended December 31, 2012,
2013, and 2014, respectively.

Construction in progress includes costs of compadéxvare developed for internal use, which is aoted for in accordance with the
Internal-Use Software Topic, ASC 350-40. Computdtvgare development costs that are incurred irptieéminary project stage are
expensed as incurred. During the development stinget consulting costs, payroll and payroll-retht®sts for employees that are directly
associated with the project are capitalized antlheilamortized over the estimated useful life ef sbftware once placed into operation.
Purchases of property and equipment and changesaunts payable for each of the three years ipg¢hied ended December 31, 2014 in
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows have beestadjto exclude non-cash purchases of propertggunipment transactions during that
period.
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Fair Value

The Fair Value Measurement Topic, ASC 820-10 (“ABD-10"), establishes a framework for measuringvfalue, establishes a fair
value hierarchy based upon the observability ofiisused to measure fair value, and expands disel®sibout fair value measurements.
Assets and liabilities are classified in their gty within the fair value hierarchy based on thwést level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement. Under ASC 820-10, fair valusnahvestment is the price that would be receivesktl an asset or to transfer a liability
to an entity in an orderly transaction between ragpgarticipants at the measurement date. The blerayives the highest priority to assets
liabilities with readily available quoted pricesan active market and lowest priority to unobselwafputs which require a higher degree of
judgment when measuring fair value, as follo

e Level 1 assets or liabilities use quoted priceadtive markets for identical assets or liabiligssof the measurement date;

* Level 2 assets or liabilities use observable inpaitser than quoted market prices, that are eithiectly or indirectly observable in the
marketplace for identical or similar assets ankiiliées; and

« Level 3 assets or liabilities use unobservabletsthat are supported by little or no market attivi

The Company’s assets and liabilities that are stiltjefair value measurement are categorized inobrtiee three levels above. Fair values
are based on the inputs available at the measutatates, and may rely on certain assumptions thgtaffect the valuation of fair value for
certain assets or liabilities.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase pfian acquired business over the amount assigrtbé assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. Indefinite-lived intangible assets, wimnctude a trade name, are recorded at fair markieievon their acquisition date. An
indefinite life was assigned to the trade name bsedt has the continued ability to generate clsbsfindefinitely.

Goodwill and the indefinite-lived intangible asse¢ assessed at least annually for impairment gltinie three-month period ending
September 30, or more frequently if events occuir@umstances change between annual tests thadl weare likely than not reduce the fair
value of the respective reporting unit below itergimag amount. Under Accounting Standards Update20d.1-08|ntangibles-Goodwill and
Other (Topic 350): Testing Goodwill for Impairmerihe Company is permitted, but not required, it fissess qualitative factors to
determine whether it is necessary to perform theerttiorough quantitative goodwill impairment tdallowing its qualitative assessment,
Company determined it was not more likely thanthat the fair value of its goodwill was less thha tarrying amount and, accordingly, no
impairment existed in 2014.

Long-Term Liabilities

Included in the Company’s long-term liabilities @he non-current portion of the Company’s borrowingder its term loan and revolving
credit facility, liabilities related to the Compadsyperating leases, deferred payments related sxquisition, fair value of the Company’s
interest rate swap, and the non-current portiomnafarned tuition. In conjunction with the openirfigome campuses and other facilities, the
Company was reimbursed by the lessors for impromtsnmaade to those leased properties. In accordaiticghe Operating Leases Subtopic,
ASC 840-20 (*ASC 840-20"), these underlying assetse capitalized as leasehold improvements arabdity was established for the
reimbursements. The leasehold improvements anlibthity are amortized on a straight-line basi®othe corresponding lease terms, which
generally range from five to ten years. In accoogarnith ASC 840-20, the Company records rent expensa straight-line basis over the
initial term of a lease. The cumulative differefi@dween the rent payment and the straight-lineerpénse is recorded as a liability. The
Company also records the non-current portion ofjyéia related to the sale and lease back of a cafiaygility as a long-term liability.
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Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgingivities

On the date that the Company enters into a devivatintract, it designates the derivative as a dedga) a forecasted transaction or (b)
the variability of cash flows that are to be reegivor paid in connection with a recognized asséability (a cash flow hedge). All derivativ
are recognized in the balance sheet at their &irev

Changes in the fair value of a derivative thatighly effective and that is designated and qualifis a cash flow hedge, to the extent that
the hedge is effective, are recorded, net of inctargin other comprehensive income, until earnimgsaffected by the variability of cash
flows of the hedged transaction (e.g., until pedagbttiements of a varial-rate asset or liability are recorded in earningsly hedge



ineffectiveness (which represents the amount bylwthie changes in the fair value of the derivagixeeed the variability in the cash
flows of the forecasted transaction) is recordedlirrent-period earnings.

The Company formally documents all relationshipsveen hedging instruments and hedged items, asawdié risk-management
objective and strategy for undertaking various leeignsactions. The Company also formally ass€bsés at the hedge’s inception and on
an ongoing basis) whether the derivatives thatiaeel in hedging transactions have been highly t&ffein offsetting changes in the fair val
or cash flows of hedged items and whether thoseatares may be expected to remain highly effectivluture periods. When it is
determined that a derivative is not (or has ce&sd&®) highly effective as a hedge, the Compangodisnues hedge accounting prospectively.

Authorized Stoc

The Company has authorized 20,000,000 shares ahoonstock, par value $.01, of which 10,797,464 Hh@03,341 shares were issued
and outstanding as of December 31, 2013 and 28%gectively. The Company also has authorized 8)00Ghares of preferred stock, none
of which has been issued or outstanding since 2B8fbre any preferred stock may be issued in thadéythe Board of Directors would need
to establish the preferences, conversion or otgbts; voting powers, restrictions, limitationstaslividends, qualifications, and the terms or
conditions of the redemption of the preferred stock

Advertising Cost

The Company expenses advertising costs in theequadurred, except for costs associated with theyrction of media commercials
which are expensed when the commercial is firgtdair

Stock-Based Compensation

As required by the Stock Compensation Topic, AS8, Tie Company measures and recognizes compensapense for all share-based
payment awards made to employees and directotading employee stock options, restricted stocktrieted stock units, and employee
stock purchases related to the Company’s Employeek P urchase Plan, based on estimated fair vaBiesk-based compensation expense
recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Inclmmeach of the three years in the period endezkBer 31, 2014, is based on awards
ultimately expected to vest and, therefore, has leusted for estimated forfeitures. The Compamgquired to estimate forfeitures at the
time of grant and revise, if necessary, the estnrasubsequent periods if actual forfeitures diffem those estimates. The forfeiture rate
used is based on historical experience. The Comaksayassesses the likelihood that performancerieribssociated with performance-based
awards will be met. If it is determined that ihi®re likely than not that performance criteria widlt be achieved, the Company revises its
estimate of the number of shares it believes wtinately vest.
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Net Income Per Shai

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividirigno®me by the weighted average number of sheresromon stock outstanding
during the periods. Diluted earnings per sharectdlthe potential dilution that could occur assigr@onversion or exercise of all dilutive
unexercised stock options, restricted stock anmicesd stock units. The dilutive effect of stookads was determined using the treasury
stock method. Under the treasury stock methoayfahe following are assumed to be used to repseishares of the Company’s common
stock: (1) the proceeds received from the exeaistock options, (2) the amount of compensaticst essociated with the stock awards for
future service not yet recognized by the Compang,(8) the amount of tax benefits that would beréded in additional paid-in capital when
the stock awards become deductible for income tmggses. Stock options are not included in the adatjpn of diluted earnings per share
when the stock option exercise price of an indigidyrant exceeds the average market price foreheg During the year ended December
31, 2014, the Company had no issued and outstastiieg options that were excluded from the caloomat

Set forth below is a reconciliation of shares umedalculate basic and diluted earnings per shardgusands):

2012 2013 2014
Weighted average shares outstanding used to corbpsie earnings per she 11,39( 10,58 10,56:
Incremental shares issuable upon the assumed sx@fcstock option — — 6
Unvested restricted stock and restricted stocks! 5C 4C 83

Shares used to compute diluted earnings per : 11,44( 10,62 10,65(




Income Taxe

The Company provides for deferred income taxestarsgemporary differences between financial statgrand income tax bases of
assets and liabilities using enacted tax rateffétein the year in which the differences are extpd to reverse.

The Income Taxes Topic, ASC 740, requires the Compadetermine whether uncertain tax positionsighbe recognized within the
Company’s financial statements. The Company re@agninterest and penalties, if any, related to daitetax positions in income tax
expense. Uncertain tax positions are recognizedwaheax position, based solely on its technicalitsies determined to be more likely than
not to be sustained upon examination. Upon detextioim, uncertain tax positions are measured torahéte the amount of benefit that is
greater than 50% likely to be realized upon ultersgttiement with a taxing authority that has kalbwledge of all relevant information. A t
position is derecognized if it no longer meetsriwe likely than not threshold of being sustained.

The tax years 2012-2014 remain open for Federadtarnination and the tax years 2010-2014 remain gpexamination by state and
local taxing jurisdictions in which the Companysishject.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assasfiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of expensieg dine period reported. The most significant mamagnt estimates included allowances
for doubtful accounts, the useful lives of propeatyd equipment, fair value of future contractuaraging lease obligations, potential sublease
income and vacancy periods, accrued expensesitfoefeates and the likelihood of achieving perfaroe criteria for stock-based awards,
value of free courses earned by students
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that will be redeemed in the future, valuation 0bdwill, intangible assets and the interest ratepserrangement, and the provision for
income taxes. Actual results could differ from thestimates.

Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of net income andtthage in the fair value of the Company’s interast swap, net of income taxes.
Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Rewefrom Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)” (1A8014-09"). The standard
establishes a new recognition model that requaesrtue to be recognized in a manner to depicramsfer of goods or services to a custo
at an amount that reflects the consideration exgeict be received in exchange for those goodsreices. ASU 20149 is effective for fisce
years beginning after December 15, 2016, and ealdption is not permitted. The Company currentigvaluating the impact that tl
standard will have on its financial condition, rikswf operations, and disclosures.

3. Restructuring and Related Charges

In October 2013, the Company implemented a restringt to better align the Company’s resources wilturrent student enrollments.
This restructuring, which occurred primarily in tfoeirth quarter of 2013, included the closing gbregximately 20 physical locations and
reductions in the number of campus-based and catgemployees.

The following table sets forth the changes in tlhen@any’s restructuring liability by type of costrthg the year ended December 31,
2014:

Severance

Lease and Other

and Related Employee
Costs, Net Separation Costs Total

(% in thousands;
Balance at December 31, 203 $ 42,55( $ 2,21¢ $ 44,76¢
Payment: (12,41%) (2,13¢) (14,55¢)



Adjustmentd?) (2,849 (78) (2,929
Balance at December 31, 2044 $ 27,28: $ — $ 27,28:¢

(1) The current portion of restructuring liabilities sv@10.4 million and $6.0 million as of December 3013 and December 31, 2014,
respectively, which are included in Accounts pagabid accrued expenses. The long-term portiorcisded in Other long-term
liabilities.

(2 Adjustments for lease and related costs duringyéae ended December 31, 2014 primarily result fobignges in the timing and
expected income from settlements and executed astbigreements signed during the period, which ataddo $4.1 million, partly
offset by the accretion of interest on lease costpproximately $1.3 million. Adjustments for seaece and other employee
separation costs primarily related to employees ware re-hired to other roles within the Company and werepaid severanci

Lease and Related Costs, Net During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Universityplemented a plan to close approximately 209f it
campus locations. The Company recorded approxign&88.0 million of aggregate charges representiegestimated fair value of future
contractual operating lease obligations, which weoarded in the periods the Company ceased useespective facilities. Lease
obligations, some of which continue through 2022,raeasured at fair value using a discounted dashdpproach encompassing significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3). The estimation ¢dfe cash flows includes non-cancelable contradtzesle costs over the remaining terms of
the leases discounted at the Compamgarginal borrowing rate of 4.5%, partially offegtestimated future sublease rental income digeal
at credit-adjusted rates. The Company’s estimateeomount and timing of sublease rental inconmsiciers
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subleases that have been executed and subleaseseekip be executed, based on current commeeeibéstate market data and conditions,
and other qualitative factors specific to the fitie. The estimates are adjusted as market condithange or as new information becomes
available. Through December 31, 2014, adjustmeritisetse reserves have related to settlementssd#demith the landlords, execution of
sublease agreements and accretion of interest.

Severance and Other Employee Separation Cest®uring the fourth quarter of 2013, the Companpliemented workforce reductions
in order to better align its human capital resosiwéth the evolving needs of students. A total @R#million in severance and other employee
separation costs were recorded at that time. Tieaireng liability at December 31, 2013 was pai@@14.

4. Property and Equipment

The composition of property and equipment as ofdbdmer 31, 2013 and 2014 is as follows (in thousgnds

Estimated useful

2013 2014 life (years)

Land ¢ 7,13¢ $ 7,13¢ —
Buildings and improvemen 19,10¢ 18,99¢ 5-4C
Furniture, equipment, and computer hardware arivaoé 159,16( 153,41 5-1C
Leasehold improvemen 39,29¢ 38,73: 3-1C
Construction in progres 79C 1,94 —

225,49: 220,22
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (131,07) (137,967

§ 94,42: § 82,26¢

Construction in progress includes costs associaitbdthe construction of new campuses and the deveént of information technology
applications. In 2013 and 2014, the Company reablei@sehold improvements of $0.3 million and $0illian, respectively, which were
reimbursed by lessors as lease incentives. In 2612014, the Company wrote off $0.8 million an8.8Imillion, respectively, in fixed
assets that were fully depreciated and no longeeiwice.



5. Term Loan and Revolving Credit Facility

On November 8, 2012, the Company entered into arBedmended and Restated Revolving Credit and Texam Agreement (the
“Amended Credit Facility”), providing for a $100million revolving credit facility and $125.0 millioterm loan facility, with an option,
subject to obtaining additional loan commitmentd #re satisfaction of certain conditions, to inseethe commitments under the Amended
Credit Facility by up to $50.0 million in the furirEach of the revolving portions of the AmendeddiirFacility, which includes a letter of
credit subfacility of $50.0 million, and the terpah portion of the Amended Credit Facility matuvesDecember 31, 2016, and amends and
refinances the Company’s original Credit Facilije term loan portion of the Amended Credit Fac#itso includes required quarterly
amortization payments in the amount of $781,25Méncase of each payment made during calendar 26a8sand 2014 (0.625% of the
aggregate original principal amount of the terrmléexcility), and $1,562,500 in the case of eachhpayt made during calendar years 2015
2016 (1.25% of the aggregate original principal antef the term loan facility). The Amended Crdeicility is guaranteed by the
Company'’s subsidiary and is secured by substantdllof the personal property and assets of the@my and the guarantor.

Borrowings under the Amended Credit Facility bedeiest at LIBOR or a base rate plus a margin ranfyjom 2.00% to 2.50%,
depending on the Company’s leverage ratio. The Gow|s party to an interest rate swap arrangenhenffixes its interest rate on the entire
term loan facility at an effective rate rangingnr@.85% to 3.35%, depending on the Company’s l@eeratio. In addition, an unused
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commitment fee ranging from 0.30% to 0.40%, depemdin the Company’s leverage ratio, accrues onathamounts under the revolving
portion of the Amended Credit Facility. The Amend&edit Facility contains customary affirmative amebative covenants, representations,
warranties, events of default and remedies upoauiteincluding acceleration and rights to foreeles the collateral securing the Amended
Credit Facility. In addition, the Amended CreditcHigy requires that the Company satisfy certamaficial maintenance covenants, including:

< Aleverage ratio of not greater than 2 to 1. Legereatio is defined as the ratio of total debt#iling four-quarter EBITDA (earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortizadiot nol-cash charges such as si-based compensatior

* A coverage ratio of not less than 1.75 to 1. Cayenatio is defined as the ratio of trailing fowragter EBITDA and rent expense to
trailing foul-quarter interest and rent exper

« A Department of Education Financial Responsibiitynposite Score of not less than 1.5.
The Company was in compliance with all the termthefAmended Credit Facility at December 31, 2014.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Coynpaid cash interest of $4.4 million, and the Compsa average annual interest r.
including non-cash charges for the amortizatiodedst financing costs, was 4.3%.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had $118 ®mibutstanding under the term loan facility arodbalance outstanding under the
revolving credit facility.

Debt and short-term borrowings consist of the feilltg as of December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

Term loan $118,75(
Revolving credit facility —
Total debt 118,75(
Less: Current portion of lorterm debt 6,25(
Long-term debt $112,50(

Aggregate debt maturities as of December 31, 2@dasfollows (in thousands):

2015 § 6,25(
2016 112,50(
$118,75(



Interest Rate Swa

The Company is party to an interest rate swap erothstanding balance of the Amended Credit Fadilibrder to minimize the interest
rate exposure on the balance of the term loantfathe “Swap”). The Swap effectively fixes theriable interest rate on the associated term
loan at a rate ranging from 2.85% to 3.35%, dependn the Compang’leverage ratio, rather than being subject tadkutions in the LIBOF
rate. The term of the Swap effectively matched¢hm of the underlying term loan facility. The Swas been designated as a cash flow
hedge and has been deemed effective in accordaticéhe Derivatives and Hedging Topic, ASC 815. Thempany expects the Swap to
continue to be deemed effective for the duratiothefSwap. The fair value of the Swap is include®ither assets in the Company’s

consolidated balance sheets.
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6. Fair Value Measurement

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oacarrring basis consist of the following as of Dmber 31, 2014 (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Usini

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets for Other Significant
Identical Assets/ Observable Unobservable
December 31 Liabilities Inputs Inputs
2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Cash equivalent:
Money market fund $ 8,27t § 8,27t $§ — & —
Interest rate swa 145 — 145 —
Total assets at fair value on a recurring b § 8/41¢ $ 8,27¢ § 14c $ —
Liabilities:
Other lon¢-term liabilities:
Deferred payment 2,39¢ — — 2,39¢
Total liabilities at fair value on a recurring ba § 239 ¢ — § — & 23%

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oacarrring basis consist of the following as of Dmber 31, 2013 (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Usin

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets for Other Significant
Identical Assets/ Observable Unobservable
December 31 Liabilities Inputs Inputs
2013 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Cash equivalent:
Money market fund ¢ 8,38 $ 8,38: § — & —
Interest rate sway 45 — 45 —
Total assets at fair value on a recurring b § 842 § 8,38: § 45 § —
Liabilities:
Other lon¢-term liabilities:
Deferred payment 2,11¢ — — 2,11¢
Total liabilities at fair value on a recurring ba § 2118 ¢ — _8 — _§ 211

The Company measures the above items on a reclnaiig at fair value as follows:

« Money market funds — Classified in Level 1 is exxeash the Company holds in both taxable and tarmpkmoney market funds



and are included in Cash and cash equivalenteiadhompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The&uonrecords any net
unrealized gains and losses for changes in fairevas a component of Accumulated other comprehemstome in Stockholders’
equity. The Company’s cash and cash equivalentheldtin money market funds at December 31, 20832814, approximate fair
value and are not disclosed in the above tableausecof the shc-term nature of the financial instrumer
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« Interest rate swap — The Company has an intergstwreap with a notional amount of $118.8 millionrod®ecember 31, 2014, used
to minimize the interest rate exposure and fixwhgable interest rate on a portion of the Compamgriable rate debt. The swap is
classified within Level 2 and is valued using réadvailable pricing sources which utilize markéservable inputs including the
current variable interest rate for similar typesnstruments

» Deferred payments — The Company acquired certaetasind entered into a deferred payment arrandemiterone of the sellers in
connection with an acquisition completed in 201hich is classified within Level 3 as there is rouiid market for similarly priced
instruments. The deferred payment is valued usidig@unted cash flow model that encompasses gigntfunobservable inputs to
estimate the operating results of the acquiredsisEhe assumptions used to prepare the discosasddflows include estimates for
interest rates, enroliment growth, retention rates pricing strategies. These assumptions aredubjehange as the underlying data
sources evolve and the program matu

The Company’s lease loss liability incorporatesaasessment of current sublease market conditiahases Level 3 inputs, but is not
deemed a fair value liability as the future leaggnpents are required to be discounted using thep@oy’s incremental borrowing rate at the
date of lease abandonment without subsequent adjast See Note 3 for further discussion of the Camyfs lease loss liability.

At December 31, 2014, the carrying value of the Gany’s debt was $118.8 million. All of the Compasigebt is variable interest rate
debt and is classified within Level 2 because Wtakied using readily available pricing sourceschhitilize market observable inputs. The
Company has determined the carrying amount appeisfair value.

The Company did not change its valuation technigsssciated with recurring fair value measuremfeats prior periods, and no assets
or liabilities were transferred between levelsha fair value hierarchy during the years ended Béaz 31, 2013 or 2014. Assets measured at
fair value on a non-recurring basis as of DecerBie2013 and 2014, include $6.8 million of goodwitid $1.6 million of other indefinite-
lived intangible assets. Changes in the fair valudne Company’s Level 3 liability that was outslarg throughout the year ended December
31, 2014 are as follows (in thousands):

Deferred

Payments
Balance at December 31, 20 $2,11¢
Amounts earne (545)
Adjustments to fair valu 82¢
Transfers in or out of Level —
Balance at December 31, 20 §2,39¢

7. Stock Options, Restricted Stock and Restricted StadUnits

In April 2011, the Company’s stockholders approthesl Strayer Education, Inc. 2011 Equity Compensdiian (the “Plan”), which
provides for the granting of restricted stock, nieg¢d stock units, stock options intended to dyals incentive stock options, options that do
not qualify as incentive stock options, and ottoents of equity compensation and performance-bas@dds to employees, officers and
directors of the Company, or to a consultant oiisahto the Company, at the discretion of the BadrBirectors. Vesting provisions are at
the discretion of the Board of Directors. Optionsynbe granted at option prices based at or ab@/&thmarket value of the shares at the
date of grant. The maximum term of the awards g@dnonder the Plan is ten years.

In February 2014, the Company’s Board of Directgproved grants of 46,064 shares of restrictedkdtocertain individuals. These
shares, which vest 100% in February 2018, weretggdgoursuant to the Plan. The Company’s stock pifizeed at $33.65 on the date of these
restricted stock grants.
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In May 2014, the Company’s Board of Directors apprbgrants of 46,674 shares of restricted stocksé&lshares, which vest in their
entirety four years from the date of grant, wer@nged pursuant to the Plan. The ComparBoard of Directors also approved grants of 15
shares of restricted stock. These shares, whidhoves a three-year period, were awarded to nonleyap members of the Company’s Board
of Directors, as part of the Company’s annual direcompensation program. The Companstock price closed at $42.85 on the date of 1
restricted stock grants.

Dividends paid on unvested restricted stock amlairsed to the Company if the recipient forfeits &ni her shares as a result of
termination of employment prior to vesting in theaad, unless waived by the Board of Directors.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock L

The table below sets forth the restricted stockrastricted stock units activity for the years esh@=cember 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014:

Number of Weighted-average
shares grant price

Balance, December 31, 20 380,94« $ 194.2¢
Grants 82,74 111.4¢
Vested share (26,189 195.5¢
Forfeitures (3,057) 127.5!
Balance, December 31, 20 434,43¢ $ 178.8¢
Grants 225,74 57.9(C
Vested share (51,916 164.2:
Forfeitures (120,49) 140.3(
Balance, December 31, 20 487,77 $ 131.5:
Grants 108,60t 38.9¢
Vested share (69,439 158.97
Forfeitures (2,729 93.44
Balance, December 31, 20 524,21t § 115.6.

74

STRAYER EDUCATION, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Stock Options

The table below sets forth the stock option agtifdt the years ended December 31, 2012, 2013 @bd @nd other stock option
information at December 31, 2014:

Weighted-

Aggregate
average igtgrinsgic
remaining
Number of Weighted-average contractual value ®
shares exercise price life (years) (in thousands)
Balance, December 31, 20 100,00( $ 107.2¢ 1.1 $ —
Grants — —
Exercises — —
Forfeitures — —
Balance, December 31, 20 100,00( $ 107.2¢ 0.1 $ —
Grants 100,00( 51.9¢
Exercises — —
Forfeitures/Expiration (100,000) 107.2¢

Balance, December 31, 20 100,00( $ 51.9¢ 7.C $ —



Grants — —

Exercises — —
Forfeitures — —
Balance, December 31, 20 100,00( $ 51.9¢ 6.C $ 2,23
Exercisable, December 31, 20 — $ — — _

Q) The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeasents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (théedénce between the Company’s
closing stock price on the respective trading day the exercise price, multiplied by the numbeinethe-money options) that would
have been received by the option holder had albnptbeen exercised on the respective tradingTas amount of intrinsic value will
change based on the fair market value of the Cog’s common stock

The number of shares exercisable as of Decemb&03P2, 2013 and 2014 are as follows:

Number of Weighted-average

shares exercise price
Exercisable, December 31, 20 100,00( $ 107.2¢
Exercisable, December 31, 20 — ¢ 51.9¢
Exercisable, December 31, 20 — $ 51.9¢

Valuation and Expense Information under Stock Carsation Topic ASC 718

At December 31, 2014, total stock-based compensatist which has not yet been recognized was $88li®n for unvested restricted
stock, restricted stock units, and stock optionrad&aThis cost is expected to be recognized ovenéxt 42 months on a weighted-average
basis. Awards of approximately 398,000 sharessificted stock and restricted stock units are slgeperformance conditions. The accrual
for stock-based compensation for performance awardased on the Company’s estimates that sucbrpgghce criteria are probable of
being achieved. Such a determination involves Baait judgment surrounding the Company’s abildymaintain regulatory compliance. If
the performance targets are not reached duringastng period, or it is determined it is more likthan not that the performance criteria will
not be achieved, related compensation expensgusted. During 2012, the Company determined thati more likely than not that certain
performance criteria for 45,920 shares would natle¢ and reduced stock-based compensation expgreggporoximately $7.0 million.
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The following table sets forth the amount of stbeised compensation expense recorded in each explemse line items (in thousands):

2012 2013 2014

Instruction and educational supp $3,27: $1,97¢ $1,73¢
Marketing — — —
Admissions advisor — — —
General and administratic 2,191 7,31f 7,717
Stoclk-based compensation expense included in operatipensg 5,46¢ 9,291 9,45:
Tax benefit 2,15¢ 3,69¢ 3,73¢
Stock-based compensation expense, net o $3,30¢ $5,59:¢ $5,71¢

The following table summarizes information regagd#are-based payment arrangements for the yedesl &ecember 31, 2012, 2013
and 2014 (in thousands):

For the year ended
December 31,

2012 2013 2014



Proceeds from stock options exerci: § — § — § —
Excess tax benefits (shortfall) related to s-based payment arrangeme $(24x) $(3,567) $(2,039)
Intrinsic value of stock options exercis § — § — § —

8. Other Long-Term Liabilities

Other long-term liabilities consist of the follovgras of December 31, 2013 and 2014 (in thousands):

2013 2014
Loss on facilities not in us $34,33¢ $21,28(
Deferred revenue, net of current port 1,897 9,65¢
Deferred rent and other facility co: 8,25¢ 8,64¢
Deferred payments related to acquisit 4,91¢ 5,19¢
Lease incentive 1,35: 1,05¢
Deferred gain on sale of campus build 694 414

$51,45¢ $46,24¢

Loss on Facilities Not in Use and Deferred Rent &tler Facility Costt

The Company records a liability for lease costesashpuses and non-campus facilities that are no¢mtly in use (see Note 3). For
facilities still in use, the Company records rexpense on a straight-line basis over the initiahtef a lease. The difference between the rent
payment and the straight-line rent expense is dexbas a liability.

Deferred Revenu

The Company provides for certain scholarship andrdsvprograms, such as the Graduation Fund (see2\for additional information),
that are earned by students when they successfulfiplete course requirements. The Company alstidessed certain of its non-credit
bearing course content to a third party. Includelbng-term deferred revenue is the amount of regamder these arrangements that the
Company expects will be realized after one year.
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Deferred Payments Related to Acquisit

The Company acquired certain assets and enteredeéferred payment arrangements with one of tHerseh connection with an
acquisition completed in 2011. In addition, onehaf sellers contributed $2.8 million to the Compagpgresenting the seller’s continuing
interest in the assets acquired.

Lease Incentive

In conjunction with the opening of new campuseseopvating existing ones, the Company, in someantss, was reimbursed by the
lessors for improvements made to the leased piliepehh accordance with ASC 840-20, the underlyagets were capitalized as leasehold
improvements and a liability was established fertsimbursements. The leasehold improvements anlibttility are amortized on a straight-
line basis over the corresponding lease terms,wdpmerally range from five to 10 years.

Deferred Gain on Sale of Campus Build

In June 2007, the Company sold one of its campildibgs for $5.8 million. The Company is leasingchanost of the campus building
over a 10year period. In conjunction with this sale and éback transaction, the Company realized a ga#2@& million before tax, which
deferred and recognized over the 10-year lease term

9. Other Employee Benefit Plans



The Company has a 401(k) plan covering all eligdigployees of the Company. Effective January 152participants may contribute up
to $18,000 of their base compensation annually.|Byee contributions are voluntary. Discretionaryiributions were made by the Comp.
matching 50% of employee deferrals up to a maximfiBPo of the employee’s annual salary. The Companghtributions, which vest
immediately, totaled $2.9 million, $1.1 million a$6.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2@023, and 2014, respectively.

In May 1998, the Company adopted the Strayer Edutdinc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”de&dthe ESPP, eligible
employees may purchase shares of the Company’s oaratack, subject to certain limitations, at 90%t®imarket value at the date of
purchase. Purchases are limited to 10% of an eraplseligible compensation. The aggregate numbshafes of common stock that may be
made available for purchase by participating emgésyunder the ESPP is 2,500,000 shares. Sharémpedcin the open market for
employees for the years ended December 31, 2013, 20d 2014 were as follows:

Shares Average price

purchased per share
2012 6,54¢ $ 71.1¢
2013 8,911 $ 42.2]
2014 5,87% $ 44 .5¢

10. Stock Repurchase Plar

As announced on November 3, 2003, the Company’sdBafeDirectors initially authorized the Companyrépurchase up to an aggregate
of $15 million in value of common stock through Bether 31, 2004 in open market purchases from tintiene at the discretion of the
Company’s management depending on market condiindother corporate considerations. The Compad@yad of Directors amended the
program on various dates, increasing the repurcimeeint authorized and extending the expiratioe.dst December 31, 2014,
approximately $70 million of the Compayshare repurchase authorization was remainingfarchases through December 31, 2015. A
the Company’s share repurchases were effectedmplance with Rule 10b-18 under the Securities Excfe Act of 1934, as amended. This
stock repurchase plan may be modified, suspendestrainated at any time by the Company withoutaeoti
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A summary of the Company’s stock repurchase agtfoit the years ended December 31, 2012, 201328#hd, all of which was part of a
publicly announced plan, is set forth in the tatdéow:

Number of Amount available for
shares Average price paid future repurchases

repurchased per share (in millions)
2012 484,84 $ 51.5¢ $ 95.C
2013 495,08! $ 50.4¢ $ 70.C
2014 — $ — $ 70.C

Repurchases of common stock are recorded as ati@dta additional paid-in capital. To the extedtaional paid-in capital had been
reduced to zero through stock repurchases, retaaetdngs was then reduced.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

The University participates in various federal stoidfinancial assistance programs which are subjeztidit. Management believes that
the potential effects of audit adjustments, if doy.the periods currently under audit will not lkeav material adverse effect, individually or in
the aggregate, on the Company’s consolidated finbposition, results of operations or cash flows.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had 93 long;teoneancelable operating leases for campuses and adh@nistrative facilities
Rent expense was $46.5 million, $82.2 million aB8.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2Q023, and 2014, respectively. Rent
expense for 2013 includes approximately $36.0 amilin charges related to the closure of approxilp&@e locations. Rent expense for 2014
includes a benefit of approximately $4.1 millionrézmluce the Company’s liability for losses on féiei$ no longer in use. The rents on the
Company’s leases are subject to annual increabesminimum rental commitments for the Company adexfember 31, 2014 are as follows
(in thousands):

Minimum



rental
commitments

2015 $ 38,96¢
2016 36,20:
2017 31,28:
2018 26,62«
2019 21,20(
Thereaftel 38,31:

Total $192,58!
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12. Income Taxes

The income tax provision for the years ended Deeer8h, 2012, 2013 and 2014 is summarized beloth{insands):

2012 2013 2014
Current:
Federa $36,02¢ $ 26,39( $25,28:
State 8,33: 4,58 4,49(
Total current 44,36 30,97 29,77¢
Deferred:
Federa (60¢) (18,387 141
State (708) (1,726) 344
Total deferrec (1,316 (20,117) 48~
Total provision for income taxe $43,04¢ $ 10,85¢ $30,26(

The tax effects of the principal temporary differes that give rise to the Company’s deferred tartasare as follows as of December 31,
2013 and 2014 (in thousands):

2013 2014
Tuition receivable $ 4,021 $ 3,43¢
Other facility-related cost 3,68¢ 2,82¢
Employerrelated liabilities 144 (96)
Current net deferred tax as: 7,84¢ 6,167
Stoclk-based compensatic 13,87: 12,99
Property and equipme (13,09) (11,627
Other facility-related cost 13,69¢ 8,90z
Deferred revenu — 3,75¢
Deferred leasing cos 3,08z 2,79
Interest rate swa (18) (56)
Other (417) (539)
Long-term net deferred tax as: 17,12¢ 16,24:
Net deferred tax ass § 24,97¢ § 22,40¢

As of December 31, 2013 and 2014, the Companybdlitias for unrecognized tax benefits are includethcome taxes payable in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Interest and penati@sding those related to uncertain tax posgiare included in the provision for income
taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Income .Cldrapany recognized $0.4 million of expense in 2848 $0.1 million of benefits in
2014, related to interest and penalties. The sotadunt of interest and penalties included in thasBbdated Balance Sheets was $0.4 mil



and $0.3 million as of December 31, 2013 and 268<hectively.

The following table summarizes changes in unrecoghtax benefits, excluding interest and penalt@she respective periods (in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2013 2014

Beginning unrecognized tax bene: § — $1,74¢
Additions based on tax positions taken in the auryear 1,74¢ 2,08t
Gross reductions for tax positions taken in prieang — (565)
Settlements with taxing authoriti — (329
Ending unrecognized tax benef $1,74t  _$2,93¢
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It is reasonably possible that approximately $0ilian of unrecognized tax benefits will be redudadhe next twelve months due to
expiration of the applicable statutes of limitasomhe Company does not anticipate significant gharo other unrecognized tax benefits.

As of December 31, 2014, $2.1 million of the Compsautotal unrecognized tax benefits would favoraalfect the Company’s effective
tax rate if recognized. If amounts accrued aretless amounts ultimately assessed by taxing atigmrthe Company would record additic
income tax expense.

A reconciliation between the Company’s statutowyrete and the effective tax rate for the yearsedridecember 31, 2012, 2013, and
2014 is as follows:

2012 2013 2014
Statutory federal rat 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes, net of federal bent 4.3 4.6 4.2
Other 0.2 0.2 0.2
Effective tax rate 39.5% 39.8% 39.5%

Cash payments for income taxes were $47.4 milo2012, $26.5 million in 2013, and $30.8 millionZ@14.

13. Summarized Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Quarterly financial information for 2013 and 20%4as follows (in thousands except per share data):

Quarter
2013 First Second Third Fourth
Revenue! $137,50¢ $131,98( $110,03: $124,08:
Income (loss) from operatiol 29,91¢ 26,257 6,621 (30,09¢)
Net income (loss 17,23 15,00: 3,14¢ (18,959
Net income (loss) per shal
Basic $§ 1.5¢ $ 1.4:c $ 0.3 $ (1.80
Diluted $ 1.5¢ $ 1.4z $ 0.3 $ (1.80
Quarter

2014 First Second Third Fourth



Revenue! $116,46¢ $112,74 $100,75¢ $116,07(

Income from operation 25,90¢ 23,99¢ 9,21¢ 22,62«
Net income 14,78 13,673 4,95: 12,94:
Net income per shar
Basic $ 1.4C ¢ 1.2¢ ¢ 047 $ 122
Diluted $ 1.4C ¢ 1.2¢ $ 0.4¢€ $ 121
14. Litigation

From time to time, the Company is involved in liigpn and other legal proceedings arising out efdidinary course of its business.
There are no pending material legal proceedingghich the Company is subject or to which the Comyfsproperty is subject.

15. Regulation

The Department of Education (the “Department”) pyasly attempted to define “an eligible prograntraining to prepare students for
gainful employment in a recognized occupation.”ehfa federal court invalidated the Department'sitatipn, the Department established a
negotiated rulemaking committee to consider thegss gainful employment. The negotiations did mestult in the required consensus. On
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March 25, 2014, the Department issued a Noticegpdsed Rulemaking for public comment, and on Cat@&i, 2014, the Department
published the final regulation which will becoméeetive on July 1, 2015.

The new requirements include two debt-to-earningasures, consisting of an annual income rate agteetionary income rate. The
annual income rate measures student debt in nelagiearnings, and the discretionary income ratasmes student debt in relation to
discretionary income. Under the new gainful emplentregulation, a program would pass if the progsaraduates:

* have an annual income rate that does not excee®8%;

« have a discretionary income rate that does notezk26%.

In addition, a program that does not pass eithéneftlebt-toearnings metrics, and that has an annual incoraéeatveen 8% and 12%,
a discretionary income rate between 20% and 30%idnwe considered to be in a warning zone. A prognebuld fail if the program’s
graduates have an annual income rate of 12% otegraad a discretionary income rate of 30% or gred program would become Title V-
ineligible for three years if it fails both metrif@r two out of three consecutive years, or fallpass at least one metric for four consecutive
award years.

If an institution is notified by the Secretary tlaaprogram could become ineligible, based oniial fiates, for the next award year:

< the institution must provide a warning with resptecthe program to students and prospective stadedicating, among other things,
that students may not be able to use Title IV fuedsttend or continue in the program; :

« the institution must not enroll, register or eriteo a financial commitment with a prospective smduntil a specified time after
providing the warning to the prospective stud

The new regulation also requires institutions jworé student and program level data to the Departnaed comply with additional
disclosure requirements beginning in January 2017.

In addition, the gainful employment regulation riggs institutions to certify by December 31, 20a80ng other things, that each eligible
gainful employment program is programmatically adited if required by a federal governmental entity state governmental entity in the
state in which it is located or is otherwise reqdito obtain state approval, and that the eacibidigrogram satisfies the applicable
educational prerequisites for professional liceasrcertification requirements in each state ichilit is located or is otherwise required to
obtain state approval, so that a student who camptbe program and seeks employment in that gtetifies to take any licensure or
certification exam that is needed for the studemiractice or find employment in an occupation thatprogram prepares students to el



The Company does not have adequate guidance ofrdatahe Department to determine definitively th financial or operational
impact, if any, of the new regulations going fordiafhe requirements associated with the gainfulleympent regulations will substantially
increase our administrative burdens and could affecstudent enroliment, persistence and retenEarther, although the regulations proy
opportunities for an institution to correct any gxttial deficiencies in a program prior to the logJitle 1V eligibility, the continuing
eligibility of our academic programs will be affedtby factors beyond management’s control sucthasges in our graduates’ income levels,
changes in student borrowing levels, increasestarést rates, changes in the percentage of fa@tadents who are current in the repayment
of their student loans, and various other factBrgn if we were able to correct any deficiencyhia gainful employment metrics in a timely
manner, the disclosure requirements associatedantiogram’s failure to meet at least one metrig adversely affect student enrollments in
that program and may adversely affect the reputadfour institution.

In November 2014, two organizations filed sepalatesuits against the Department in federal cowatking to have the new regulation
invalidated. Both suits allege that the Departnexcieeded its statutory authority in promulgating tbgulation, that the regulation violates
the institution’s constitutional rights, and
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that the regulation is arbitrary and capricious. ¥danot predict when or how the courts may rul¢hese lawsuits.

Strayer University must comply with the campus saéad security reporting requirements as wellthgrorequirements in the Jeanne
Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Casn@rime Statistics Act, or Clery Act, includingceat changes made to the Clery Ac
the Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act 012, which was signed into law on March 7, 2013.Apnil 1, 2014, a negotiated
rulemaking committee reached consensus on propegetations, and on October 20, 2014, the Depattpr@mulgated regulations
implementing the recent amendments to the Clery lacddition, the Department has interpreted TKl®f the Education Amendments of
1972, or Title IX, to categorize sexual violenceadsrm of prohibited sex discrimination and touiq institutions to follow certain
disciplinary procedures with respect to such ofésn&ailure to comply with the Clery Act or Titlé tequirements or regulations thereunder
could result in action by the Department to requaection action, fine the Company or limit ospand its participation in Title IV
programs, could lead to litigation, and could halnen Company’s reputation.

Strayer University is subject to announced and noanced compliance reviews and audits by variotereal agencies, including the
Department, its Office of Inspector General, stiansing agencies, and accrediting agencies. T#mBment conducted four campus-based
program reviews of Strayer University campuses$ieé states and the District of Columbia, with onesite review conducted August 18-20,
2014; one on-site review conducted September 014; and two on-site reviews conducted Septemd&62 2014. The reviews covered
federal financial aid years 2012-2013 and 2013-2ahd two of the reviews also covered compliandé thie Jeanne Clery Disclosure of
Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statigtatsthe Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act, msgalilations related thereto. On
October 21, 2014, the Department issued an ExpkHiteal Program Review Determination Letter for afi¢he program reviews conducted
the week of September 22, 2014, closing the progeaew with no further action required by the Canp. On November 17, 2014, the
Company received a Program Review Report for thgnam review conducted in August 2014, and proviegsponse to the Department
December 15, 2014. On January 7, 2015, the Compmejved a Final Program Review Determination tdttam that review, closing the
review with no further action required by the Compawhile the on-site portions of the other twogmam reviews have concluded, Strayer
University has yet to receive determination letfeosn these reviews.

Each institution participating in Title IV programsust enter into a Program Participation Agreemstit the Department. Under the
agreement, the institution agrees to follow the &@#pent’s rules and regulations governing Titlepidgrams. On October 1, 2014, Strayer
University received an executed provisional ProgRarticipation Agreement from the Department allugvit to participate in Title IV
programs until June 30, 2017. The Program ParticipaAgreement was issued on a provisional basiaiee of the Department’s open
program reviews. Under the provisional agreeméetonly material additional condition that the Usrisity must comply with is obtaining
Department approval for substantial changes, imetuthe addition of any new location, level of agatic offering, non-degree program, or
degree program.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Aounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures



The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chiefdfinial Officer have evaluated the effectiveneshefCompanys disclosure contro
and procedures as of December 31, 2014. Basedayatrreview, the Chief Executive Officer and Cligfancial Officer have concluded
that the Company had in place, as of December@®14,2ffective controls and procedures designeshsuire that information required to be
disclosed by the Company (including consolidatdasaliaries) in the reports it files or submits unttee Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and the rules thereunder, is recordedegsed, summarized and reported within the timegespecified in the Commission’s
rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedimeade, without limitation, controls and procedsidesigned to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by an issuer in repofte# or submits under the Securities Exchangeig\accumulated and communicated to the
Company’s management, including its principal exieewfficer or officers and principal financialfafer or officers, or persons performing
similar functions, as appropriate to allow timebBcgsions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Companys management is responsible for establishing andtanaing adequate internal control over financegorting, as such tel
is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). A comygarnternal control over financial reporting igpeocess designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financigloging and the preparation of financial statemémt&xternal purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A comjgimgernal control over financial reporting inckeslthose policies and procedures that (i)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, inaralsle detail, accurately and fairly reflect thensactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance thasa@ions are recorded as necessary to permitratapeof financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptess and that receipts and expenditures are baade only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of timepany; and (iii) provide reasonable assurancerdaugprevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of¢gbmpany’s assets that could have a material effethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detaisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the poligeprocedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participationh&f Company’s principal executive officer and pijral financial officer, the
Company’s management assessed the effectivendss igistrant’s internal control over financigbogting as of December 31, 2014, based
on the framework itnternal Control — Integrated Framewo(R013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgitins of the Treadway
Commission. Based on our assessment under thevirankén Internal Control — Integrated Frameworlour management concluded that
our internal control over financial reporting wdteetive as of December 31, 2014.

The effectiveness of the Company'’s internal cortk@r financial reporting as of December 31, 2044 been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent regstaiblic accounting firm, as stated in their rémdrich appears herein.
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Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportng

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chiefdfinial Officer have evaluated any changes in the@2my’s internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the quaeteded December 31, 2014, and have concludedhity@ was no change during such
quarter that has materially affected, or is reablbynigkely to materially affect, the Company’s int@l control over financial reporting.

Item 9B.  Other Information
None
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace

The following table sets forth certain informatiith respect to the Company’s directors, execubifficers, and significant employees:

Name Age Position



Directors:

Robert S. Silberman 57 Executive Chairman of the Board

Dr. John T. Casteen llI 71 Presiding Independent Director

Dr. Charlotte F. Beason 67 Director

William E. Brock 84 Director

Robert R. Grusky 57 Director

Robert L. Johnson 68 Director

Karl McDonnell 48 Director, Chief Executive Officer

Todd A. Milano 62 Director

G. Thomas Waite, Il 63 Director

J. David Wargo 61 Director

Executive Officers and Significant Employees

Dr. Michael Plater 58 President, Strayer University

Mark C. Brown 55 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

Kelly J. Bozarth 46 Executive Vice President, Administration

Daniel W. Jackson 40 Senior Vice President and Treasurer

Directors

Mr. Robert S. Silbermawas named Strayer’s Executive Chairman of the Boa2013. He was Chairman of the Board from Febyruar
2003 to 2013 and Chief Executive Officer from Ma&d01 to 2013. From 1995 to 2000, Mr. Silbermawesgin a variety of senior
management positions at CalEnergy Company, Indyding as President and Chief Operating Officeont1993 to 1995, Mr. Silberman
was Assistant to the Chairman and Chief Executiffe€ of International Paper Company. From 1989993, Mr. Silberman served in
several senior positions in the U.S. Departmemefense, including as Assistant Secretary of theyAMr. Silberman has been a Director of
Strayer since March 2001. He serves on the BoaRirettors of Covanta Holding Company, Par Petnoleand 21st Century Fox. Mr.
Silberman is a member of the Council on ForeigraiRahs. Mr. Silberman holds a bachelor’'s degrdeistory from Dartmouth College and a
master’s degree in international policy from Thar®Hopkins University.

Dr. John T. Casteen lik the President Emeritus and University Professtine University of Virginia, where he teachesrses in
literature, intellectual history, and public polidye served as President of the University of Viigifrom 1990 through 2010. He was
President of the University of Connecticut from £98 1990. From 1982 to 1985, Dr. Casteen servédeaSecretary of Education for the
Commonwealth of Virginia. Dr. Casteen is on therdaaf directors of Altria, Inc., and served on thaard of directors of Wachovia
Corporation until 2008. Dr. Casteen also is direofca number of charitable and privately-held bass entities, including ECHO 360, the
Virginia Foundation for Community College Educatiemd the Woodrow Wilson International Center fon&ars. Dr. Casteen serves on the
Board of Trustees of the Jamestown-Yorktown FoundatHe has chaired the boards of both the Collegeance Examination Board
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and the Association of American Universities. Dasten has been a member of the Board since 20Chair of the Nominating Committee
of the Board, and currently serves as the Presididgpendent Director. Dr. Casteen holds a baclsale@gree, master’s degree and a Ph.D. in
English from the University of Virginia, as well agveral honorary degrees, including degrees franmuniversities of Athens (Greece) and
Edinburgh (Scotland) and two community college¥iiminia.

Dr. Charlotte F. Beasors a consultant in education and health care adtnation, as she was from 2004 to 2005. She wasUfxe
Director of the Kentucky Board of Nursing from 20@52012. From 2000 to 2003, Dr. Beason was Chadr\éice Chair of the Commission
on Collegiate Nursing Education (an autonomous @gancrediting baccalaureate and graduate progimmssing); she is an evaluator for
the Commission on Collegiate Nursing Educationni-d®88 to 2004, Dr. Beason was with the Departroéteterans Affairs, first as
Director of Health Professions Education Service tne Health Professional Scholarship Program tiaew as Program Director, Office of
Nursing Services. Dr. Beason has served on thedBiace 1996 and is a member of the Nominating Cittmenof the Board. She is al
Chairwoman of the Strayer University Board of Teest. Dr. Beason holds a bachelor's degree in rqufgim Berea College, a master’'s
degree in psychiatric nursing from Boston Univegrsind a doctorate in clinical psychology and pupliactice from Harvard University.

Senator William E. Brocls the Founder and Chairman of the Brock Officefi;na specializing in international trade, investmand
human resources. From 1985 to 1987, Senator Bmxdled in the President’s Cabinet as the U.S. Sagref Labor, and from 1981 to 1985,
as the U.S. Trade Representative. Senator Broskgudy served as a Member of Congress and substigas U.S. Senator for the State of
Tennessee. Senator Brock is a member of the Bdddeactors of On Assignment, Inc., and ResCare,, land is a Senior Counselor ¢



Member of the Board of Trustees of the Center tomt8gic and International Studies, where he chib@dnternational Policy Roundtable.
In the past five years, Senator Brock has alsceskon the Board of Directors of Catalyst HealthuBohs, Inc. Senator Brock has been a
member of the Board since 2001 and is a membdreoCbmpensation Committee of the Board. He holascaelor’'s degree in commerce
from Washington and Lee University.

Mr. Robert R. Gruskis a member of Strayer Education, Inc. Board o&Btors, on which he has served since 2001. Heeifdluinder and
Managing Member of Hope Capital Management, LLCinaestment manager, since 2000. He co-founded Meuntain Capital, LLC, a
private equity firm, in 2000 and was a Principal &ember from 2000 to 2005, and has been a SemwisAr since then. From 1998 to 20
Mr. Grusky served as President of RSL Investmentp@ation. From 1985 to 1997, with the exceptibd @90 to 1991 when he was on a
leave of absence to serve as a White House FeliowAasistant for Special Projects to the Secratiyefense, Mr. Grusky served in a
variety of capacities at Goldman, Sachs & Co.t firsts Mergers & Acquisitions Department and thieiits Principal Investment Area. He
also serves on the Board of Directors of AutoNatlan. In the past five years, he has also servetthe® Board of Directors of AutoZone, Inc.
He is a member of the Company’s Audit Committee hdkels a bachelor’s degree in history from Unionl€ie and a master’s degree in
business administration from Harvard University.

Mr. Robert L. Johnsois the Founder and Chairman of The RLJ Companiesjreovative business network that owns or holdisrésts in
businesses operating in hotel real estate investmpewate equity, consumer financial servicesgassanagement, automobile dealerships,
sports and entertainment, and video lottery terbM&T) gaming. Mr. Johnson is the founder of Bla€ktertainment Television (BET), a
subsidiary of Viacom and the leading African-Amaricperated media and entertainment company ibiited States, and served as its
Chief Executive Officer until January 2006. In 200%. Johnson became the first African-Americananigy owner of a major sports
franchise, the Charlotte Bobcats of the NBA. Frd@i@.to 1979, he served as Vice President of Goventeth Relations for the National
Cable & Telecommunications Association (NCTA). Mohnson also served as Press Secretary for therétdadWalter E. Fauntroy,
Congressional Delegate from the District of Coluanlbie serves on the following boards: RLJ Lodgingst; RLJ Entertainment, Inc.; KB
Home; Lowe’s Companies, Inc.; Elevate Credit, Iitie Business Council; and the Smithsonian Ingtitcé National Museum of African
American History and Culture. Mr. Johnson has stomethe Board since 2003, and is a member of trepgénsation Committee of the
Board. He holds a bachelor’s degree in social stuftom the University of Illinois and a master’s
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degree in public affairs from the Woodrow Wilsorh8al of Public and International Affairs at PrinmetUniversity.

Mr. Karl McDonnellwas named Strayer’s Chief Executive Officer in N21.3. He was President and Chief Operating Officen 2006
to 2013. Mr. McDonnell served as Chief Operatinfig@f of InteliStaf Healthcare, Inc., one of theioa’s largest privately-held healthcare
staffing firms. Prior to his tenure at InteliSthg served as Vice President of the Investment BgnRivision at Goldman, Sachs & Co. Mr.
McDonnell has held senior management positions gétreral Fortune 100 companies, including The Walhey Company. He has served
on the Board since 2011 and from 2006 to 2013 wasraber of the Strayer University Board of Trustédss McDonnell holds a bachelor’s
degree from Virginia Wesleyan College and a mastgegree in business administration from Duke Usite

Mr. Todd A. Milands President Emeritus and Ambassador for Centnah [@Bollege, where he served as President and Ekesfutive
Officer from 1989 to 2012. Mr. Milano has servedtba Board since 1996 and is a member of the AColihmittee of the Board and is also a
member of the Strayer University Board of Trustéés.Milano holds a bachelor’s degree in industniednagement from Purdue University.

Mr. G. Thomas Waite, Ilhas been Treasurer and Chief Financial OfficehefHlumane Society of the United States since 1887dor
to that served as Controller beginning in 19931982, Mr. Waite was the Director of Commercial Mgeiaent of The National Housing
Partnership. Mr. Waite has served on the Boarckesl®96, is Chair of the Audit Committee of the Bband is a former member of the
Strayer University Board of Trustees. Mr. Waitedsoh bachelor’s degree in commerce from the Uniyeo$ Virginia and is a Certified
Public Accountant.

Mr. J. David Wargdas been President of Wargo and Company, Incnasiment management company, since 1993. Mr. Warggo-
founder and was a Member of New Mountain CapitalZ]from 2000 to 2008, and was a Senior Advisorg¢tfeom 2008 until 2011. From
1989 to 1992, Mr. Wargo was a Managing Director 8edior Analyst of The Putham Companies, a Bostseth investment management
company. From 1985 to 1989, Mr. Wargo was a padndrheld other positions at Marble Arch Partnighs.Wargo is also a Director of
Liberty Global, Inc., Discovery Communications, \nand Liberty TripAdvisor Holdings, Inc. Mr. Wardms served on the Board since 2001
and is Chair of the Compensation Committee of tharB. Mr. Wargo holds a bachelor’s degree in plsyaitd a master’s degree in nuclear
engineering, both from the Massachusetts Institifeechnology. He also holds a master’s degreeanagement science from the Sloan
School of Management, which is the business sobiothie Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

Executive Officers and Significant Employees

Dr. Michael A. Platetis the University President. He joined Strayer énsity in March 2010 as the Provost and Chief AoadeOfficer.
Prior to joining Strayer, Dr. Plater was the De#the College of Arts and Sciences at North Caeo&T State University, where he
managed a faculty and staff of approximately 40@ppein 13 academic departments, and five affii@eademic programs. Previous



joining North Carolina A&T, Dr. Plater was at Browmiversity as the Associate Dean of the Graduate8l. Before joining Brown, Dr.
Plater taught “capstone” Business Policy/Stratdpmagement classes in the M.B.A. program and ttnedaoctory undergraduate
management course at the University of Florida.Faiter is also an ex officio member of the Strdyeiversity Board of Trustees. He
received a bachelor’'s degree in economics from &tdridniversity, a master’'s degree in business agdirdétion from the University of
Pennsylvania, and a Ph.D. from the College of \Afilliand Mary.

Mr. Mark C. Brownis Executive Vice President and Chief Financiali€gff, having joined Strayer in 2001. He is retirfngm this positiol
effective March 1, 2015 and will serve on the Strayniversity Board of Trustees. Mr. Brown was poesly the Chief Financial Officer of
the Kantar Group, the information and consultaneistbn of WPP Group, a multi-national communicasicservices company. Prior to that,
for nearly 12 years, Mr. Brown held a variety ofmagement positions at PepsiCo, Inc., including @meof Corporate Planning for Pepsi
Bottling Group and Business Unit Chief FinanciafiGdr for Pepsi€ola International. Mr. Brown is a Certified Publccountant who starte
his career with PricewaterhouseCoopers,
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LLP. Mr. Brown holds a bachelor’'s degree in accouqmfrom Duke University and a master’s degreeusibess administration from Harvard
University.

Ms. Rosemary J. RogeExecutive Vice President, Operations, havinggdi Strayer in 2009. Previously, over an elevem gedod, Ms.
Rose held senior management positions with The Watiey Company including Vice President of Food Beverage and Merchandise
Operations and Vice President of Disney Universit9perations Learning and Development for Walt Bysworld. During this time, she h
responsibility for the lines of business for Food 8everage and Merchandise for all Walt Disnekgand resorts worldwide. Prior to
Disney, Ms. Rose held a variety of senior managémesitions at Darden Restaurants and the Genallal Restaurant Group. She also held
positions with Automatic Data Processing and BarBehks. She holds a bachelor’s degree in finandenaaster’'s degree in business
administration from the University of Central Fliai

Ms. Kelly J. Bozartlis Executive Vice President, Administration. Shiagal Strayer in 2008 and has served as SeniorRfiesident and
Chief Business Officer of Strayer University, arsdSenior Vice President and Controller of the Camyp&reviously, Ms. Bozarth held ser
management roles in finance and operations indbeation sector for five years. Prior to that, Beld a variety of senior management
positions in finance and in operations with The ¥asney Company over a 10 year period. Ms. BozarthCertified Public Accountant wi
began her career at Deloitte and Touche. Ms. Bozaftds a bachelor’'s degree in accounting from dlisisState University and a master’s
degree in business administration from Pepperdimgdusity.

Mr. Daniel W. Jacksois Senior Vice President and Treasurer. Effectiardl 1, 2015, Mr. Jackson will assume the positibExecutive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Ksan has been with the company since 2003 anddmasdsas Vice President of Finance,
Regional Vice President of Operations, DirectoBaginess Operations, Campus Director, Managerradrial Analysis, and as an adjunct
faculty member. Prior to joining Strayer, Mr. Jawksvas an Equity Research Associate with Legg M&goad Walker, and Director of
Operations for Fairmont Schools, Inc. Mr. Jacksoli$ a bachelor’'s degree in international affaios the University of Colorado at
Boulder, and a master’s degree in business admatigt from Georgetown University.

Additional information responsive to this item isreby incorporated by reference from the sectiibiesit‘Election of Directors,” “Board
Structure,” “Code of Ethics” and “Section 16(a) Bé&nial Ownership Reporting Compliance” containedtie Company’s Proxy Statement,
which will be filed no later than 120 days followiDecember 31, 2014.

Item 11. Executive Compensatior

The information required by this Item is herebyammorated by reference from the sections entitlédrfipensation Discussion and
Analysis” and the related tables and narrativedfter‘Director Compensation” and the related tabiheseto, “Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “CompdimsaCommittee Report” to be contained in the Cony®Proxy Statement, which will be
filed no later than 120 days following December 2014.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andvlanagement

The information required by this Item is herebyarporated by reference from the section entitledrigficial Ownership of Common
Stock” and “Securities Authorized for Issuance Unidquity Compensation Plans” to be contained inGbenpany’s Proxy Statement, which
will be filed no later than 120 days following Deceer 31, 2014.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this Item is herebyarmmorated by reference from the sections ent“Board Structur’ and“Certain



Transactions with Related Parties” to be containdgtie Company’s Proxy Statement, which will bedilno later than 120 days following
December 31, 2014.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

The information required by this Item is herebyarpmorated by reference from the section entitlesfi@sal 2 — Ratification of
Appointment of Independent Registered Public ActimgnFirm” to be contained in the Company’s Proxgt€ment, which will be filed no
later than 120 days following December 31, 2014.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule
(A)(1) Financial Statements
All required financial statements of the registrard set forth under Item 8 of this report on FAO¥K.
(A)(2) Financial Statement Schedule
The required financial statement schedule of tigessteant is set forth under Item 8 of this repartFmrm 10-K.
(A)(3) Exhibits

The exhibits required to be filed as a part of thismual Report on Form 10-K are listed in the Exthlibdex attached hereto and are
incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regithas duly caused this Report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

STRAYER EDUCATION, INC.

By: /s/ Karl McDonnell
Karl McDonnell
Chief Executive Office

Date: February 20, 2015
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each persoroa signature appears below constitutes and agpgéant McDonnell an
Mark C. Brown, and each of them individually, as tiue and lawful attorne-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitutiord:



resubstitution, for him and his name, place anddste any and all capacities, to sign the repattamy and all amendments to this report,
and to file the same, with all exhibits theretod ather documents in connection therewith, withSleeurities and Exchange Commission,
granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agentspfuwer and authority to perform each and evetyaad thing requisite and necessary to be
done in and about the premises, as fully to adirtg and purposes as he might or could do in pehgwaby ratifying and confirming all that
said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or their sulistt may lawfully do or cause to be done by vithereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bbjpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant in the capacities and on the blatieated.

SIGNATURES TITLE DATE

/sl Robert S. Silberman Executive Chairman of the Board February 20, 2015

(Robert S. Silbermar
/sl Karl McDonnell Chief Executive Officer and Director February 20, 2015
(Principal Executive Officer)

(Karl McDonnell)
/sl Mark C. Brown Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial February 20, 2015
and Accounting Officer)

(Mark C. Brown)
/sl Charlotte F. Beason Director February 20, 2015

(Charlotte F. Beasor
/s/ William E. Brock Director February 20, 2015

(William E. Brock)
/sl John T. Casteen, llI Director February 20, 2015

(John T. Casteen, Il
/sl Robert R. Grusky Director February 20, 2015

(Robert R. Grusky
/s/ Robert L. Johnson Director February 20, 2015

(Robert L. Johnsor
/sl Todd A. Milano Director February 20, 2015

(Todd A. Milano)
/sl G. Thomas Waite, IlI Director February 20, 2015

(G. Thomas Waite, IlI
/sl J. David Wargo Director February 20, 2015

(J. David Wargo
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit
Number Description

3.1 Amended Articles of Incorporation and Articles Slgmpentary of the Company (incorporated by referéndexhibit
3.01 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-Ke(No. 000-21039) filed with the Commission on a8,
2002).

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (incatpd by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Compar@isrent
Report on Form-K filed with the Commission on November 4, 201

4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate (incorporated by refeesto Exhibit 4.01 of Amendment No. 3 to the Compsin
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (File No. 33-3967) filed with the Commission on July 16, 19¢

10.1 Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit ant Tean Agreement, dated as of November 8, 2012ngrthe

Company, SunTrust Bank, as Administrative Agend tire other lenders and agents party thereto (cated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s CuriRaport on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on Eower 9,
2012).



10.21

10.31

10.41

10.51

10.61

10.71

21.1*
23.1*
24.1*
31.1*
31.2*
32.1*

32.2*

Exhibit
Number

*

T

101.IN<
101.SCt
101.CAL
101.LAB
101.PRE
101.DEF

Employment Agreement, dated as of April 6, 200iwleen Strayer Education, Inc. and Robert S. Silla@rm
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.03 of @@mpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. GI®39) filed
with the Commission on March 28, 200

2011 Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit A of the Company’s Proxy Staten{&ile No.
00C-21039) filed with the Commission on March 29, 20:

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement —Time Vfest— under the 2011 Equity Compensation Plan (incorgol
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Cutifeeport on Form 8-K (File No. 000-21039) filedthwihe
Commission on February 14, 201

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement — PerfarogaVesting — under the 2011 Equity Compensatian PI
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of then®any’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 0a®29) filed
with the Commission on February 14, 201

Form of Option Agreement under the 2011 Equity Cengation Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi8 of the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00(-21039) filed with the Commission on February 14120
Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Nongwgee Directors under the 2011 Equity CompensdRiam
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of then®any’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 0a®29) filed
with the Commission on February 14, 201

Subsidiaries of Registrant.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Power of Attorney (included in signature page h®ret

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Act.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursualtRule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Act.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdioBe906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiio8e906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002
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Description

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Schema Document

XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Labels Linkbase Document
XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document
XBRL Definition Linkbase Document

Filed herewith.

Denotes management contract or compensation plarrargement.
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Exhibit 21.1
Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Strayer University, LLC



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8-BA3732, No. 333-71182 and No.
333-71104) of Strayer Education, Inc. of our replated February 20, 2015 relating to the finamnstialements, financial statement schedule
and the effectiveness of internal control overfiicial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
McLean, Virginia
February 20, 2015




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

[, Karl McDonnell, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-IStvyer Education, Inc. (the “registrant”);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets under which such statements were made, nigagisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) %(nd internal control over financial reportirazg @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e-15(f) and 15-(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargading the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purpose in accordancegeitterally accepted accounting princip!

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldsire controls and procedures and presentedsimeihort our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thainhaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registré' s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofimancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the registrant’interna
control over financial reporting

Date: February 20, 2015

/s/ Karl McDonnell
Karl McDonnell
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Mark C. Brown, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-IStvyer Education, Inc. (the “registrant”);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets under which such statements were made, nigagisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) %(nd internal control over financial reportirazg @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargading the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldsire controls and procedures and presentedsimeihort our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thainhaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registré' s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@sperson performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofimancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the registrant’interna
control over financial reporting

Date: February 20, 2015

/s/ Mark C. Browr

Mark C. Brown

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13b — 14(b) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
AND 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TGECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES — OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Strayer Eation, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form Xfor the year ended December 31, 2014 as
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, Karl McDonnell, Chiexecutive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopteduyant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 200, t

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirenmeenf section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfeaAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finaraaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s Karl McDonnell
Karl McDonnell
Chief Executive Officer

February 20, 2015



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13b — 14(b) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
AND 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TGECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES — OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Strayer Eation, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form Xfor the year ended December 31, 2014 as
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ort#tte hereof (the “Report”), I, Mark C. Brown, Ex&ea Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuémtl8 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §9@t§eabarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirenmeenf section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfgaAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Mark C. Brown
Mark C. Brown
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

February 20, 2015



